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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS

Lnsl year at this time, our letter
to you was very short because we
were in the midst of planning the
integration of Wells Fargo and
First Interstate Bancorp, We said
we'l report back to you at year-
end 1996, and, as promised, this
lerter chronicles the events of the
st year,

Wells Fargo won its bid o
acguire First Interstate Bancorp
in January 1996, and on April 1,
we completed the acquisition
for $11.3 hillion in stock. With
this merger, Wells Fargo not only
acquited customers, stalf and
offices throughour the West -
we returmed o our 19eh century
roors, when the compiny opemted
its banking and express businesses
in this same territory,

By the end of 1996, we were a
very different-looking company
than we had been ar the beginning
of the year, Our assers had more
than doubled, from $50.3 billion
in January to $108,9 billion in
Diecember; we operated our retail
business in 10 stares instead of one;
staff numbered 36,900 at year end,
up from 19,250 twelve months
carlier; we had 1,950 retail locations
throughadut the West, instead of
475 only in Californiag and we
had a nerwork of 4,300 Wells
Fargo ATMs throughout the West
instead of 2,400 only in California.

Between April 1 and December
31, we converted 6 million retail
and whalesale accounts, over
1,500 ATMs and nearly 900 retail
outlets from the First Interstare o
Wells Fargo system. To capitalize
on our new multi-state operarional
capabilities, we moved operarions
centers to non-earthquake prone
locations. We also restructired
some of First Interstate’s husinesses

into focused seraregic parmenships;
continued restructuring our
California branch nerwork;

added supermarker locations; and
continued to promote our key
business initiatives.

We sold First Interstare banks
in three of the 13 states soon
after the mermger became official -
Alasgka, Montang and Wyoming —
Whl.'ﬂ.‘ our I'I\ilrki". sl\'li".' Wils vory
small and opportunities o expand
were limited. All three sales closed
in the fourth quarter. Additionally,
to sarisfy o regulatory requirement
for the completion of the merger,
we divested 61 branches in
California in September.

How the merger came together,
whar we believe we gained with
the speed of our integration and
at what cost, are the topics of this
year's letter.

EARLY DECISIONS
Our early decision in January 1o
stick predominantly with Wells
Fargo's systems architecture
throughout the entire conversion
process quickly established
company-wide standards for systems
changes and eliminared months
of decigion-making discussions,
It alsi enabled us to link some
Wells FargofFirst Interstate systems
almost immediately so we could
affer customers throughout the
West specific benehts as soon as
the acquisition was completed,
When April | amrived, customers
uf ]K]lh hl‘k’ Ilmi im nCoess to H"
4,300 Wells Farigo/First Interstate
ATMs to get cash. First Intersmre
customers also could call 24-hour
telephone banking agents and surf
 merged Internet site of the two

companies for information on
the merger.

By April 1, we had fmalized
many important decisions. We
had arganized the First Interstate
franchise along Wells Fargo business
lines, determined the final senior
management structure, and
announced plans to close approxi-
mately 350 of the combined
bank's Califormin branches by
the end of Seprember.

We also announced our plans
to reduee the combined staff of
45,800 by 7,200 by year-end
through attrition and severance.
By December 31, the numbers
were somewhat higher, with o total
staffl reduction of 8,900, More
First Interstate employees than we
anticipated were able to decline
our job offers under the terms of
the severance program put in place
by First Interstate during the take-
over attempt in lare 1995,

One of the biggest and most
aritical decisions we made at this
early date involved the plan for
converting retail and wholesale
customers onto Wells Fargo
systems, Instesd of shifting retail
customers along product lines
(e, all consumer checking
accounts changed over simulta-
neoisly, followed by savings
accounts, erc.), we chose 1o convert
the “whole” customer by geogmphic
region over several months. This
meant that as we transformed
branches within each state, custom-
ers of those branches had all their

accounts converted simultaneously,
COMING TOGETHER
We ser an ambitious conversion

schedule for both our retail and
whaolesale customers: convert the

entire customer hase by year end.
There were several important
reasons behind our decision to move
with such speed. Primary among
them was to control expenses by
quickly reducing the multiple-stare
infrastructure of First Interstire
and its costs, and by eliminating
business unit and staff redundancies
I the two companivs. Equally
important, we knew from prior
mergers that it was eritical o keep
the period of uncertainty and
turbulence for customers and
employees as short as possible, Our
intent was to get gquickly past the
disruptions we knew were inevimable,
and begin to build relavionships with
our new customers. Unfortunarely,
the disruptions lasred longer than
we anticipated. Nevertheless, we
held to our timelines, believing
that there was no value gained in
trying to maintain the stmtus quo
longer than necessary.

In preparing for the conversion,
every business unit in the company
developed its own integration plan.
Thiose plans were then incorporated
into an overall schedule. A small
integration team reviewed key
milestones and coordinated critical

dependencies between |

I problems or issues needed o
be resolved, they surfaced to the
integration team. Ortherwise,
husinesses ran their part of the
process independently. This early
strategy helped involve new man-
PLTE 6 El'ld ﬂ“pl“m‘ﬁ fmm Eﬁr
Interstare in integral parts of
planning and execuring the
CONVErsion.

Throughour the integeation,
managers had to make decisions
about how they were going to run
newly acquired First Interstare
businesses within the Wells Fargo

ERUL WAEEN - CHRINMAN

framework. For example,
Commercinl Banking managers
faced the guestion of how best to
serve new Jockbox customers. Wells
Fargo had prwinunhr created n
strategic allinnce for ity lockbox
operations in 1992, We realized
ﬁigl'll]imnl bl.'l'll‘ﬁm fur CUSTOMETS
and shareholders by aligning it
with a company that had better
economies of scale: costs came
down, efficiency increased and
customer service improved.

In acquiring First Interstare’s
lockbox business, our Commercial
Banking senior managers were ance
again confronted by the challenge
of delivering low-cost, high-quality
customer service. The solution was
astearegic allinnee with Regulus
Group LLC. The combined strengths
of this alliance give customers three
improvements they have requested
over the years: stute-of-the-art
technology to enhance service,
addirional lockhox sites and strong
service quality. Wells Fargo chose
Regulus because its senior managers
are leaders in applying rechnology
o create customer benefits, The

WILLIAM ZUENDT « FEERIDNNT

agreement between the two com-
panies outlines shared responsibility
and revenue, with full involvement
by both parties in product devel-
opment and strategic planning

The independence our sl
had in operating their businesses
“nﬂwi fl'l[m o ;H:Cﬂm]‘lll.*\ an
unprecedented number of tasks
andd adddress logistical problems
of massive scale during the nine
months of the integration. One of
the best examples of the collective
strengrh of our employee base
came from our experience during
the physical conversions of First
Interstare locations into Wells
Fargo locations,

Besides completing several major
facilities such as a new relephone
banking center in Sacramento,
building out over 2.5 supermarket
branches per week, and moving dam
center operations from California
to Arizana, berween April 1 and
December 31, our employees
hanidled thousands of rasks during
branch conversions. Last year, the
Physical Diseribution and Comporate
Facilities teams closed over 280
branches, remodeled teller
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counters and changed sipnapge at

over 1,000 First Interstate locations.

In addition, they completed the
sale of 70 operating branches in
California, Montana, Wyoming
and Alaska.

The seale of the task our staff
faced can be put in perspective
by comparing the events of our
California conversions o the 1986
Crocker Bank merger. In 1986, 175
branches in California were closed
over an eight-month period. This
year, 257 Californin locations were
closed over two weekends in July
and August. To add w the logistical
L'h:llleng{:, mare than two dozen of
rthose moves had w be complered
in total darkness, with only
flashlights, candles and generators
because the largest power outage
ever to hit the West Coast struck
on Saturday, August 10,

To meer our inancial goals for
the merger, we needed to move
fast to control costs everywhere,
given the integration expenses we
knew we would incur — hence our
speed in consolidaring branches
and sealing back staff. Some other
major cost suvings came from
consolidating data centers. Prior
to the merger, Wells Fargo had
planned o consolidate its three
data centers into two; the two
additional centers we aciquired ram
First Interstare were incorporated
into this plan. We retained our
new data center near Sacramenta,
California, and First Interstare’s
center in Tempe, Arizona, Both
are seismically stable, in relatively
low-cost arens, and the Tempe
sive required less expansion than
ot Southemn California site to
accommodare the combined
bank's needs.

One business we tried to insalate
from the rigors of the integration
process during 1996 was our
Business Direct program. This is
the Business Banking Group's
nationwide, direct lending program
to pre-qualified small businesses
vin direct mail and fax. Because
they are acquired through direct
muil, and serviced round-the-clock
vin telephone from our National
Business Banking Cenrer, customers
of Business Direct are rot tied to
any physical Wells Fargo locations,
Business expansion effors and
growth continued unabated
throughout the year, with origina-
tion volumes reaching $2.1 billion,
up 44% over 1995,

The decision to fund small
business growth throughour 1996
was straightforward, However, many
decisions involving First [nterstate’s
businesses rook more time. Given
the hostile nature of the acquisition,
we did not have access o all the
data necessary for business
evaluation until after April 1,

One business decision thar
waited until we were well beyond
consummation of the merper
involved Corporate and Municipal
Bond Administration. After
thoroughly examining this business,
we determined thar irs scale, though
sizable, was not large enough o
enable us to be comperitive. We
thevefore made the decision ro sell
it to The Bank of New York, and
that decision was announced in
the fourth quarter, We chose to sell
the business to The Bank of New
York because of its "hest in class"
reputarion in this field and its prior
success in menging with other
corparate and municipal bond
administration businesses. The sale
invilves the mransfer of 5,000 bond

trustee and agency appointments
representing more than $85 hillion
in putstanding securities for
municipal and corporate Issuers,
primarily in the western United
States.

Delivering products and services
cfficiently 1o customers are among
the criveria thar determine whether
we remain in and grow a business,
estructure o sell it. One business
thar conrinued ro grow during 1996
was Online Financial Services
{OFS). From the merged Internet
site that was available on April |
for customers of both banks tw the
new services we introduced during
the year, OFS has demonstrated irs
abiility to quickly come o market
with products and services its audi-
ence demands. Customers can now
apply on the Internet for accounts,
send money and pay bills to any-
one in the ULS,, tansfer funds
herween accounts, and purchase
travelers checks and foreign
exchange. Our [ntemet services,
combined with the other online
services we offer such as Money,
Quicken, Prodigy and America
Omnline, have resulted in healthy
growth in online use. At year-end
1996, we hod more than 300,000
online customers, o significant
increase from the 20,000 we had
in May 1995, Nearly half of our
enline customers bank with us
directly through the Intemer.

Chur ageressive conversion schedule
allowed us 1o begin functioning as
ane bank across our territory,

so that afrer the conversion was
campleted we could offer customers
the benefits of true interstare
banking.

—

The WellsOne account, which
Commercinl Banking introduced
in late 1996, is a good example
of one of the immexdinte benefits
WE are now l'lhlﬂ (8] U“ﬁl’ ur Cus-
romers. An interstate dcpoeil.rory
account designed to serve the
needs of commercial banking cus-
tomers with imulti-state operations,
WellsOne mikes it possible for a
company’s deposits and payables
to flow through one account any-
whiere in the 10 Wester states
served by the bank.

Customers benefir because they
gain faster access to funds, and
do not have to juggle multiple
accounts, statements and reconcili-
ation issues with different banks in
different stares. WellsOne gives
cash managers what they want:
convenpience, control and
efficiency in banking.

Retail customers living in any of
our 10 states also benefit from our
interstate service. They can open
accounts, make deposirs and cash
checks anywhere. If they relocate
1w a residenice in any one of our
10 states, they can keep the same
account, and use our familiar
resources and services.

Timely completion of the
integration also allowed us o retum
our focus to our in-store banking
expansion in California and
introduce it in severnl of our new
markets, In Calilornia, we apened
an additional 110 in-store loeations
throughout the state, hringing our
total 1o 500 a8 of the end of the
year. We also announced plans for
the expansion of this program in
Arizana and Nevada. By early 1997,
we will have added 70 new branches
in Bashas' supermarkess throughout
Artzona, giving Wells Fargo 218

taral retail locations, more than
any other bank in the state. In
Nevadn, our purtnership with
Lucky Stores in Las Viegas and
Scolari Brothers Food and Drug
Company in Reno will result in
the installation of 35 in-store
banking locations during the first
Talf of 1997,

Diuring the year, we also
announced an agreement in
principle that would allow Wells
Fargo to open as many as 450 new
braniches in Safeway stores through-
out the West. These Safeway branch
apenings will begin in 1997.

WHAT IT cOST US

The hnancial costs of the merger
have been disclosed in previous
quarterly reports and details can
he found in the pages following
this letter.

In many ways, the costs ta our
customers and our employees were
just as significant. In moving as
quickly as we did, intfroducing new
ways to bank to 2 new customer
base, changing operating sy
and training thousands of new
employees in Wells Farpo's
procedures, we did not expect
things to go smoothly from start
1o finish. They didn'.

Many random but significant
telecommunications and systems
problems occurred in the initial
months after the menger, creating
major service issues and inconve-
niences for our remnil and wholesale
customers. Systems slow-downs,
clogged telephone service centers,
EITOS in customer accounts and
long branch lines plagued our
customers. These operating and
service problems also placed an
extra burden on employees, who

warked diligently o meet our cus-
romens' needs under very difficult
circumstances.

Owverall, v was a sorry experience
for far too many of our customers.
We did not measure up to our own
higly stanlards for delivering service.
For this we apologize.

Asour employees look back upon
the year, we hope It is with o feeling
of great accomplishment. Despite
the setbacks our company faced,
the conversions are complere and
we can now move forward. To our
thousands of employees whio worked
so hard to make this achievement
possible, and o the millions of
our customers who gave us the
benefit of the doubt during some
very trying times, we offer our
rremendous gratitude,

Much ground remains o be
covered as we move ahead. Our
foeus in 1997 will be w provide the
service our customers deserve and
deliver to shareholders the profie-
ability they expect. We're confident
we will reach our poals, thanks o
the talent and commitment of our
employees and the patience wnd
luyulw of our customers.

T
/ a.:).%k
Paul Hazen
Chatrman

Uhet.. CBM/

William Zuendr
President

March 6, 1997
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

OVERVIEW

WcFls Fargo & Company (Parent) is a bank holding com-
pany whose principal subsidiary is Wells Farpo Bank, N.A.
(Bank). In this Annual Report, Wells Fargo & Company
and its subsidiaries are referred o as the Company.

On April 1, 1996, the Company complered its acquisi-
tion (Merger) of First Interstare Banicorp (First Interstare),
which is being accounted for as & purchise business com-
bination. As a result, the hnancial information presented
in this Annual Report for the year ended December 31,
1996 reflects the effects of the acquisition subsequent to
the Merger's consummation. Since the Company's results
of operations subsequent o April 1, 1996 reflect amounts
recognized from the combined operations, they cannot be
divided between or attributed directly to either of the two
former entitics nor can they be directly compared with
prior periods,

In substantially all of the Company's income and
expense categories, the mereases in the amounts reported
tor the year ended December 31, 1996 compared ro the

RETURN ON AVERAGE TOTAL

1992 1943 1994 1995 159%,

1992 13 1994 1945 199

BUBRE}DIAN)ES

amounts reported in the corresponding period in 1995
resulted from the Merger. The increases in substantinlly
all of the caregories of the Company's balance sheet
berween amounts reported at December 31, 1996 and
those reported at December 31, 1995 also resulted from
the Merger. Other significane factors affecting the
Company's results of operations and financial position
are deseribed in the applicable secrions below.

Net income in 1996 was $1,071 million, compared
with §1,032 million in 1995, an increase of 4%. Net
income per share was $12.21, compared with $20.37 in
1995, a decrease of 40%.

The increase in eamings from a year ago reflected the
results of the Merger, substantially offset by a $163 million
(594 million after tax) gain resulting from the sale of the
Company’s joint venture interest in Wells Fargo Nikko
Investment Advisors (WINIA) in 1995 and a $105 mil-
Lion loan loss provision in 1996 compared with none
in 1995,

Return on average assets (ROA) was 1.15% and rerum
on average comnman equity (ROE) was B.83% in 1996,
compared with 2.03% and 29.708, respecrively, in 1995,

Earnings hefare the amortization of goodwill and
nongualifying core deposit intangible (CDL) (“cash” ar
“rangible” earnings) for the year ended December 31, 1996
were §16.74 per share, compared with $21.08 per share for
the year ended December 31, 1995, This decrease is suls-
smantially due ro the estimated expenses related w the Firse
Interstate integration of abour $440 million and a loan
loss provision of $105 million. On the same basis, ROA
was 166 and ROE was 28.46% in 1996, compared with
2.12% and 34.92%, respectively, in 1995,

Following the Menzer, “cush” eamings, as well as “cash”
ROA and ROE, are the mensures of performance which
will be most comparable with prior periods. They are also
the most relevant measures of financial performance for
sharcholders because they measure the Company's abilicy
o suppore growth, pay dividends and repurchase stock.
{See page 17 for additional information.)

Net interest income on a taxahle-equivalent basis was
$4.532 million in 1996, compare] with $2,655 million a
year ago, The Company's net interest murgin was 6.11%
for 1996, compared with 5.80% in 1995. The Increase
in the margin was primarily due to the mix of funding
sources due to the Merger, as core deposits replaced more
expensive short-term borrowings.

MNoninterest income Increased from $1,324 million in
1995 10 $2,200 million in 1996, an increase of 66%. In
addition to the effects of the Merger, the increase reflects
the loss on sale in 1995 of certain product types within the
reail estate 1-4 family first mortgage panfolio. The increase in

TAHLE I RATIOS AND PER COMMON SHARE DATA

1996 was parrially offser by the 1995 sale of the Company’s
joint venture interest in WENIA.

Noninterest expense increased from $2,201 million in
1995 1o §4,637 milllon in 1996, In addition o the effect
of combining operations of First Interstate with the
Company, the increase reflecred goodwill and nongualifying
CO1 amortization, severance for Wells Fargo employees
and other integration expenditures.

There was o proviston far loan losses of $105 million in
1996, compared with no provision in 1995, During 1996,
ner charge-offs were $640 million, or 1.05% of averge total
loans, compared with $288 million, or 83%, during 1995,
The allowance for loan lossis was $2,018 million, or
3.00% of total loans, at December 31, 1996, cnmmn:.]
with $1,794 million, or 5.04%, at December 31, 1995,

At December 31, 1996, total nonacerual and restructured
loans were $724 million, or 1.1% of towal loans, compared
with $552 million, or 1.6%, at December 31, 1995, Fore-
closed assers were $219 million ar December 31, 1996,
compared with $186 million ar December 31, 1995,

At December 31, 1996, the mtio of common stockhalders'
equity to torl assets was 12.41%, compared with 7.09% at
December 31, 1995, The Company's towl risk-hased capi-
ml (RBC) rario ar December 31, 1996 was 11.70% and irs
Tier 1 RBC ratio was 7.68%, exceeding the mivimum
regulatory guidelines of 8% and 4%, respectively, for bank
holding companies and the "well capitalized” puidelines
for banks of 10% and 6%, respectively. The Company's
ratios ot December 31, 1995 were 12.46% and 8.81%,
respectively, The Company’s leverage ratios were 6.65%
and 7.46% ar December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively,
exceeding the minimum regulatory puideline of 3% for bank
holding companies and the “well capitalized” guideline for
banks of 5%. A discussion of RBC and levernge ratio guide-
lines is in thee Capiral Adequacy/Rartios section.

The Company has boughe in the past, and will continue
tar buy, shares 1o offser stock issued or expected ro be issued
under the Company's employee benefit and dividend rein-
vestment plans, In addition to these shares, the Board of
Directors authorized in April 1996 the repurchase of up to
9.6 million shares of the Company's outstanding common
stock. The Company repurchased a roml of 8.4 million shares
of common stock during 1996, compared with 5.0 million
shares in 1995, The Company currently expects to repur-
chase approximately 1.5 million shares per quarter in 1997.

This Annual Repart includes forward-looking statements
that involve inherent risks and uncertainties. The Company
cautions readers thate a number of important facrors could
cause actual resules wo differ materially from thise in the
forward-looking statements. Those fctors Inelude luctuan-
tions in intevest raves, inflation, government regulations,
the progress of integrating First Interstate, economic con-
ditions and competition in the geographic and business
areas in which the Company conducts irs operations,

Yaeur ended December 3,

1996 1905 oy
PROFITABILITY RATIOS
Met lncote ko avorage lotal sdien (ROA)  115% 2.01% 1.62%
Mer wcome applicable to common stock
o wvermge common stockhalden'
expuity (ROE) B.8Y 29,70 2241
Net ineome 1 averiage
srockbhlers’ equiry K41 1699 20.61
EFFICIENCY RATIO (1) 69.0%  55.0% 56.6%
CAPITAL BATIOS
Ay yiar el
Common stockhilden’ equity o devers 12.41%  709%  6.41%
Stockholders” equity (o assets 12,96 HO6 .3
Risk-bused capiral 129
Ther | capiral 7.68 A8l .09
Total eapiral 1L.70 12.46 13.16
Leverage (2) 6.65 746 6,59
Averige balneys:
Commaon stockbolders’ equity 1o pssers 12,17 657 680
Srickholders’ equiry to fssits 13.01 .51 1.87
NET INCOME AND RATIOS
EXCLUDING GOODWILL AND

NONQUALIFYING CORE DEPOSIT
INTANGIBLE AMORTIZATION
AND BALANCES {("CASH" OR
“TANGIBLE™} (1)

Mo income ppplicable to common mock § 1,376 5 1,045 §  83)

Ner income per comman share 16,74 2108 15.45
ROA 1L.66%  LI2%  L7I%
ROE 2646 3402 16.88
Efficiency rutin 62.2 54.5 357
PER COMMON SHARE DATA
Dhvibend payour i 43% 1% 1%
Pewrk valoe $147.72 £ 759) & 6677
Market prices (51
High $260.88 §$22900 $160.38
Low 203.13 14338 LI7.63
Yeur el 269.75 21600 14500

1) The efficioncy mro is defined w nonimeeres espense divided by the vl of
et fterest et and nonkaeeeest incone.

123 Ser the Copital Adwcuacy/Rarion section e slditisnal informion.

1) Noppeabiying C11 smorizarion pnd average balance exchsbed from thes
calenbit v see, with the exceprion of the eficlency rle, net of applicible
wiwen. Thie alter i amonrvis for the smorczaion aid wersge balinee of
ey COF wiere $122 million and $927 aillion. respesrivily, hor
the year endind Dby 11, 199, Cioodwill smooizicion snd sverge
balunce (which e noe cax elfectod) were $250 million and §5,604 millkn,
mesprctively, for thie yeiu ended Devembaor 31, 1996, Sev page 17 fn
adiviomal wbormurion.

140 Diwhbenads dec arisd pror virmmon sl s o peroensie of nek o per
chmmminn share

90 Bused ondialy climing prices reporied on the New Yok Stock Exchange
Coompenipe Trajuustlon Repoiting System.
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TA'"JE 2 SIX-YEAR SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

Fim wnillisng) 19ue 1995
INCOME STATEMENT
Net interest income § 4521 § 2654
Provision for loan losses 105 -
Noninterest income 2,200 1324
Nuninterest expretise 4637 L0
Net income 1,071 L3z
Per commun share
Mot income § 1221 $ 087
Dividerls declared 5.20 460
BALANCE SHEET
Lk year enid)
Investiment securities $ 13,505 $ 8920
67,189 35,582
Allowanice for loan losses 2,018 1794
Coodwill 7322 382
Agsers 108,888 50,316
Cote deposits 81,581 37,858
Caommion stockholden’ equity 13,512 1,566
Stockholders' equity 4,112 4,055
Tier | copital 0,565 1635

Tl capital 10,000 5,141

MERGER WITH FIRST INTERSTATE BANCORP

1 1oy L, (1] e Clhange Fiveyear
T compound
1995 growth e
$ 2610 $ 2,657 $ 2,691 $ 250 70 % 12 %
00 550 L2153 1,535 - (40)
1,200 1,093 1,059 #H9 6 ki
L156 2,162 2,085 2,010 111 18
H41 612 283 U 4 120
§ T8 $ oo § 444 § M {40) 214
4.00 15 1.50 150 13 8
11,608 $13,058 $ 9.3 LR EE] 51 % 29 %
36,347 13,000 36,903 44,090 L] 9
1082 4122 1067 1646 12 4
416 477 523 350 - 67
31,374 52511 32537 53,547 16 15
38,508 41291 41,879 11941 115 14
1422 1,676 170 1.508 79 7
Yol 4315 3,509 Ly ] 248 34
1562 3,770 Y287 L4 1] 19
5,157 5,446 5,255 4,784 o5 16

“u April 1, 1996, the Company camplered its acquisition
of First Interstare. As a condition of the Merger, the
Company was required by regulatory agencies wo divest
61 First Interstute branches in California, In Seprember,
the Company completed the required divestiture of 61
branches to Home Savings of America, These branches
had aggregate deposits of approximately $1.9 billion and
loans of approximately $1.1 hillion. The selling price of
the divested branches represented o premium of 8.11%
an the deposits.

As of the acquisition dare, the California bank of First
Interstate merged into Wells Fargo Bank, NJA. In June
1996, the Company merged former First Interstate bank
subsidinries in six states (ldaho, Nevada, New Mexico,

Oregon, Utah and Washington) into Wells Fargo Bank, NLA.

In September 1996, Wells Fargo Bank of Arizona, N.A.
{formerly First Interstate Bank of Arizona, N.A.) menped
into Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. Each of these states has
opted-in enrly under the interstate branching provisions
of the Riegle-Neal Interstare Banking and Branching
Efficiency Act of 1994, In addition, the Company com-

pleted the sales of the First lnterstare banks in Wyoming,
Montann and Alasks in the fourth quarter of 1996, Each
bank had three branches, The three banks had nggregare
aussers of approximately $.6 billion and aggregate deposits
of approximately $.5 billion. Banks in the ather states
retnined by the Company are expected to merge into Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A. as soon as permitted by applicable state
lnws (i.e., Colorado in June 1997; Texas not earlier than
Seprember 1999),

The Company expects to meet its pre-merger objective
of realizing annual cost savings of $800 million nor lnter
than 18 months after the dute of the Merger. About 50%
($100 million, or $400 million annualized) of the cost
savings is anticipated to be realized (n the first quarter of
1997, The full impact of revenue losses due to the Merger
is expected o be recognized by the first quarter of 1997,
with revenue growth resuming in the second quiarter of
1997, Far addirional discussion of the Company's plan for
branch closures and cansolidations and for pro forma infor-

mation, see Mote 2 to the Finuncial Sttements,

LINE OF BUSINESS RESULTS

The Company has identified six distinet lines of business
for the purposes of management reporting, as shown in
Table 3.

The line of business results show the financial perfor:
mance of the major business unirs. Line of business resulix
are determined based on the Company’s management
accuunting process, which assigns balance sheet and
income statement items to each responsible business unit.
This process is dynamic and somewhat subjective, Unlike
financial accounting, there is no comprehensive, authori-
mtive hody of guidance for management accounting
eruivalent ro generally accepred accounting prineiples.

£ 0K INg Process the
performance of the business lines based on the manage-
ment structure of the Company and is nor necessarily
compatable with similar information for any ather
financial nstitution. First Interstute resulis prior to
April 1, 1996 are not included and, therefore, the year
1996 is not comparable to 1995,

The results incomorate estimares of cost allocations,
transters and reflecting s current
understanding of the First Interstare businesses. The cost
alloeations are based on estimates of the steady state level
of expenses. Changes in management scructure and/for the
allocation process may result in changes in ollocations,
transfers and assignments. In that cose, resules for prior
periods would be (and have been) restated to allow
comparsthility from one period to the next.

The Compuny believes that cash eamings is the most
relevant messure of inmncial performance for shareholders,
For this reason, goodwill and nongualifying core deposit
intangible have not heen allocated 1o the business units
in this presentation and are reported in “Other”

Internal expense allocations are independently negotiated
between business units and, where possible, service and
price is | agminst ce ble services available
in the external marketplace.

The following describes the six major business units.

The Retail Distribution Grougp sells and services a
complete line of retail financial products for consumers
and small businesses. In addition to the 24-hour Tele-
phone Banking Centers and Wells Fargo's Online Finan-
ciul Services (the Company's personal compurer banking
services), the Group encompasses Physical Distribution's
network of rraditional branches, in-store branches, bank-
ing centers and ATMs, Retail Distribution also includes
the consumer checking business, which primarily uses the
network as o source of new customers.

In 1996, the Rerail Distriburion Group completed the
integration of First Interstare into Wells Fargo with the
consolidation of the two bunks' physical distribution net-
works: This consolidation consisted of the sale and elosure
of traditional branches as well as the continued opening
of in-store branches and banking centers. The Company
clowed 107 praditional Wells Fargo branches and 176 vendi-
tional former Fiest Interstate branches, The Company
also divested 61 eracitional former First Interstate branches
to Home Savings of America and sold the former First
Interstate banks, including nine traditional branches,
in Alaska, Montanas and Wyoming,

The new in-store branches and hanking centers are part
of the ongoing effort to provide higher-convenience, lower-
cust service to customers. The in-store banking centers
(modularly designed kiosks equipped with an ATM, i cus-
tomier service telephone and staffed by a banking manager)
are capable of providing substantially all consumer services,
As of December 31, 1996, there were 673 in-store branches
und banking centers.

The number of ATM locations continued to increase
in 1996, reaching a total of 2,672 at December 31, 1996
{including 1,295 former First Interstare ATM locarions).

Average consumer checking core deposits for 1996 were
$15.8 billion, compared with $9.2 billion in 1995.

The Business Banking Group provides a full range of
eredit products and hoancial services o small businesses
and their owners, These include lines of eredit, receivables
and inventory financing, equipment loans and leases, real
estate inancing, SBA financing, cash management, deposic
and investment accounts, payroll services, retirement
plans and eredit and debit cand processing. Business Banking
customers are small businesses with annual sales up 1o
$10 million in which the owner is also the principal
financiol decision muker. Core deposits for 1996 averaged
$11.2 billion, compared with $6.4 billion in 1995. Loans
avernged $4.3 billion, compared with $2.4 billion in 1995
Business Banking distributes credic products rthrough
national direct marketing and 135 commercial loan special-
ists in small business lending offices in 22 markets in the
western United Stites, Business Banking jointly owns
with First Data Corp. o merchune card processing alliance,
which acyuires customers through o 125-person sales foree.
Business Banking provides access to customers through
 wide range of channels. These include Business Banking
Ofticers who are relationship managers for the premier
segment of small business customers, as well as Wells Fargo's
extensive nerwork of traditional and in-store branches,
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TAHIJE 3 LINE OF BUSINESS RESULTS (ESTIMATED)

{meamefexperse tnomillions,

Retnil Bininess

average balances i billions ) Phsnribuaiion Crp Tanking Crymap Inwvestmuns Group
19946 1995 1996 1095 1996 1995
Net interest income (1) § 836 $463 5612 8312 § 745 $4n
Provision for loan loses () n I 99 55 4 i
Noninterest income (1) 1,046 560 165 144 475 464
Noninterest expense (1) 1,858 1 428 276 626 425
Income before income tx expense (benehit) 4 &l 150 145 590 510
Income tax expense (henefit) 1) o 6 4 1 43 28
Net income (loss) $ 8 $3 §206 $106 § M7 $ 294
Average loans 5 - § - § 43 $24 $ 16 $05
Average assets L9 10 6.4 36 23 0B
Average core depaosits 16.2 LX) 112 6.4 322 180
Return on equity (31 1% % 28% 8% S0% 'l
Risk-adjusted efficiency ritho (6 109%: 103% T3% 7% 62% 54%

(1) Nt inteeress incoie is the differsnce between sictul interest carned on et (and intesen paid on Babilivies) owned by o group sl 3 funding chargs (and coodit) baed oo
whe Compuny’s cost of funds. Ciroups are charged o cost oo funid vy woets (eg., boans) snd are paid o funding credic for any funds provided (eg.. deposind, The et sl
s the difference betwren the tnreress rate carned om ae mset o pabd onos Babiling snd the Catnpany’s cone of fimds rte.

123 The provision allocared o the lne groopn for 1996 sid 1995 i based on

s cugrent of the Disnd et chanpe-off nutho fon each line of busines.

Ty vy pasticnilar pear, te sctual med chanpe-ofiv can e highee oe biwer than the mormalioed provision sligesied 1o the lines of besivess The difference bevween the normaliznd

prroriabonn il the Compuiny prvisbost bs fachided (n Other.

133 Rexnil Distribuition Group’s charges w the peodisct jgroups are shiown s naninteoes income to the branches snd nimineerest expense s the product grompe. They amounied
10 3392 million und $106 mallion for 1996 and 1999, respectively. These changss ure climinated in the Other category i amiving ar the Comslidarod Compuny rowls for

moedntetest v sl expeooe.

banking centers, ATMs and, starting in 1997, business
branches. Business Banking also serves customers th

and Municipal Bond Administration (Corporate Trust)
buisi The sale is scheduled o close during the st quarter

its National Business Banking Center, a 24-hour telephone
center dedicated o the small business customer, and
through Business Gateway, a personal computer banking
service exclusively for the small business custamer.

The Investment Group is responsible for the sales and
management of savings and investment products, invest-
ment management and fiduciary and brokerage services
institutions, retatl customers and high net worth individuals.
This includes the Stagecoach and Overdand Express families
of murual funds as well as personal frust, employee benefit
trust and agency assers. [t also includes product manage-
ment for marker rate accounts, savings deposits, Individual
Retirement Accounts (IRAs) and time deposies. Within
this Group, Private Client Services operates as a fully inte-
grated financial services organization focusing on banking/
credir, rrust services, investment management and full ser-
vice and discount brokerage.

Significant integration activities in 1996 included the
merger of the Stagecoach and Pacifica families of mutual
funds, the merger of personal trust funds and the consolidi-
tion of investment management and private banking
aperations. In addition, the Bank entered into an agree-
ment with The Bank of New York to sell the Corporare

of 1997. The Corporate Trust business had net income for
1996 of approximately $4 million.

Assers under management ar December 31, 1996 were
$57.3 billion, compared with $34.2 billion in 1995, For 1996,
average loans were $1.6 billion and average core deposits
were $32.2 billion, compared with average loans of $.5 bil-
lion and average core deposits of $18.0 billion in 1995.

The Real Estate Group provides a complete line of services
supporting the commercinl real estare marker. Products and
services include construction loans for commercial and resi-
dential development, land scquisition and d 0

loans, secured and unsecured lines of credit, interim
financing ar for completed structures, rehabili-
tation loans, affordable housing loans and letrers of credit.
Secandary market services are provided through the Real
Estare Capiral Markets Group. lts business includes pur-
chasing distressed loans at a discount, mezzanine financing,
acquisition financing, origination of permanent loans for
securitization, syndications, commercial real estare loan
servicing and real estate pension fund advisory services.
The Merger added lending offices in Portland, Houston,
San Diego and Phoenix. 1 ion activities completed

Whidesale
Weal Esnte Cirovgy _ Povducr G Comwmer Leuding Ohibver Conmolidared Compumy
1996 1 1986 1S 1996 1995 1956 1995 1M 1945
$ 382 $142 §771 $ 396 §1.062 $ 641 5113 § 68 34521 $2,654
42 29 il 41 454 2 (575) (369} 15 -
86 15 278 143 24 I8 (244) (240) 2,200 1,524
13 82 455 0 4495 268 684 (43 4,637 2201
13 166 545 198 407 9 (240) 260 1,979 177
129 ! 214 125 167 127 __(5) il 908 5
5 154 595 5321 $171 § 240 s $1235) § 159 $1.071 $1.082
$ 94 §6.3 §15.9 §9.1 § 214 $10:4 § 840 § 34 § 60.6 $ M5
100 () 19.9 10.2 221 1.2 30.48 172 93.4 308
0.2 0.1 9.3 [ 3] 0.4 0.2 14 o3 0.9 6.0
20 15% 21% 2% 18% 24% o - 9 F0
68% H3N 4% 0% B4% Ti% -% ] % %

(4) Businenses ave eaoced ax vhe Company's monginal (sommony ) s e, sdjseed for sy nondeducrible expenses. Any dilfenmces beeween: the merginad and effecive

gt are in Orhee.

150 Expuiry i whlocoted v e N of Dusiness buscd om an assciminent of the lisherens sk asocimosd with esch siness st the semmm on allicaned coicy wee o

wvnk-adustenl basis mnal companable s i line.

L) Thaee bk csichjummredd offichensey ratter b detined s nenvintenet expesse plus thie cont ol capitil divided by severties (ned lotenes oot sl nonloteees cone)

Jew novimadised |nan bosses

in 1996 included operation and office consolidations. The
Real Estate Group's loans averaged $9.4 billion in 1996,
compared with $6.3 billion in 1995,

The Whaolesale Products Group serves businesses with
annual sales in excess of $5 million and maintains rela-
tionships with major corporations throughour the United
Sates. The Group is responsible for soliciting and main-
raining credit and noncredir relationships with businesses
by offering a variety of products and services, including
rraditionnl commercial loans and lines, letters of eredit,
international trade facilities, foreign exchange setvices,
cash manngement and electronic products. The Group
includes the majority ownership interest in the Wells Fargo
HSBC Trade Bank established in October 1995 that pro-
vides trade financing, letrers of credit and collection services.
Middle marker commercial banking distribution capability
was enhanced through the Merger with the addition of
offices in the Pacific Northwest, Southwest and Texas. The
Merger also provided additional cash management and
electronic products market penetration, especially in the
large corporate segment. Integration activities complered
in 1996 were the consolidations of the regional commer-
cial banking offices, cash management service centers and
commercial loan service centers. The Wholesale Products

L

Group's loans averaged $15.9 hillion in 1996, compared
with $9.1 billion in 1995, and average core deposits were
$9.3 billion, compared with $2.2 billion in 1995,

Consumer Lending offers o full armay of consumer loan
products, including credit cards, transportation (auto,
recreational vehicle, marine) financing and leases, home
equity lines and loans, lines of credit and installment Joans.
The loan portfolio for 1996 averaged $21.4 hillion, consist-
ing of $4.9 billion in credit cards, $10.6 billion in equity/
unsecured loans and $5.9 billion in transportation inancing.
This compares with $3.5 billion in credit cards, $5.3 billion
i equityfunsecurad loans and $2.0 hillion in trnsportation
financing in 1995,

The Other category incldes the Company 1-4 family first
mattgage portfolio, the Investiment securities partfolio, good-
will and the nongualifying core diposit intangible, the differ-
ence between the normalized provision for the line groups
ankl the Company provision for loan losses, the net impact of
rransfer pricing loan and deposic balances, rhe cost of exter-
nal debt, the elimmation of intergroup noninterest income
and expense, and any residual effects of unallocated systems
aned other support groups: [ralso inclides the impact of nsset/
libility strategies thie Company has put in place to manage
the sensitivity of net interest spreads.
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EARNINGS PERFORMANCE

The Bank generated ner income of $1,006 million and
§1,105 million in 1996 and 1995, respecrively. The Parent
(excluding its equity in eamings of subsidinries) and is
other bank and nonbank subsidiaries had ner income
(loss) of $65 million and $(73) million in 1996 and

1995, respectively.

MNET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income s the difference between interest
income (which includes yield-related loan fees) and inrerest
expense. Net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis
was §4,532 million in 1996, compared with 32,655 million
in 1995,

Net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis
expressed as o percentage of average towl caming assets
is referred 1o us the net interest margin, which represents
the average ner effective yield on eaming nssets. For 1996,
the net interest margin wis 6.1 1%, compared with 5.80%
in 1995,

Table 5 presents the individual compenents of net interest
income and net interest mangin,

The increase in the margin in 1996 compured with 1995
was primarily ateributable to the mix of funding sources
due o the Merger, as core deposits replaced more expensive
short-term borrowings. The increase in net interest income
for 1996 compared with 1995 was primarily due w an
increase in average eaming assets as a result of the Merger.

Interest income included hedging income of $81 million

hedging income resulted primarily from the swap hedges
put in place to hedge floating-rate loans and fixed-mte
deposits, partially offser by lower gains from futures used
o hedge deposits.

Net inrerest income and the net interest margin are
expected to increase in 1997, assuming both loan growth
and investment securities ninoff and there is no significant
change in deposit rates.

NONINTEREST INCOME

Tahle 4 shows the major components of noninterest income.

TAHI.IE 4 MNOMNINTEREST INCOME

L milliomad Year endet Diccetmber 31, # Climge
meh 19 1994 19060 1995/
1995 1994

Service changes on

deposit accounts 5 BH6H $ 478 § 4T3 B2% 1%

Fees and commissions:

Credit card membershi

and other credit cand fees 116 o5 M 22 48
Debit s eredit canl _

merchant fees 1z 63 i T2 8
Charges and fees on loans 112 52 42 115 M
Shared ATM metwork fees 102 51 435 100 9
Mustual fund and

annuity sales fees a1 51 04 B5 {48)
All cither 237 BT 18 B 15

Testal fees arnl

740 433 woomn 12

in 1996, compared with $4 million in 1995, Interest exj
included hedging income of $3 million in 1996, compared
with $15 million in 1995. The increase of $65 million in

625%

£75 =

5.50

1994 199 1996

Yield om voral
earmiig uwrs RO0% A1 HHI%

Raee omy gl
fundirs snroes 145 L L

Trust and invesement
seIVICEE ICome:
Asser manigement

il euseoddy fees 214 129 14 66 4
Mutual fund
mangenienr ek 129 mn i B2 4
All ather 34 41 3oun 24
Towal rrse nrad investmer
servives lneoiwe LY A 0 56 Ib]
Tvestment securities
gning (losses) w o an B = -
Sale of joint
Ve interest R - {100} -
Income from equity
investments geconnited
for by the:
Cost method 137 54 M3 87
Eqquiry mwethod 24 9 31 (38) 16
Check printing chorges 61 1) 0 56 (&1
Gianns (bosses) on sales
of loans 22 (40 4 = -
Losses from duspositions
ol operations 95)  (85) (51 7 =
Toosses on dhispositions of
premises and equipmenst (46)  (31) {12) 48 158
Al ather 102 50 40 104 25
Tomal $2,200 $1,324 51,200 o6 % 10 %

The overall increase in noninterest income in 1996
compared with 1995 reflected the impact of the Merger.

“All other” fees and commissions include mortgage loan
servicing fees and the related amortization expense for
purchased mortgage servicing righrs. Mortgage laan servic-
ing fees totaled $82 million and $55 million in 1996 and
1995, respectively, The related smortizition experise wis
$63 million and $39 million in 1996 and 1995, respectively.
The balance of purchased mortgage servicing rights was
$257 million and $152 million ar December 31, 1996 and
1995, respectively. The purchased morgage loan servicing
portfolio totaled $22 billion ar December 31, 1996, com-
pared with $13 billion ar December 31, 1995,

A major portion of the increase in trust and investment
services income for 1996 was due to greater mutual fund
management fees, reflecting the overall growth in the fund
families” net assers, including the Pacifica funds previously

ged by First 1 In September 1996, the Pacifica
funds, totaling $5.3 billion, were merged into the Stage-
1

At December 31, 1995, the Company had a linbility
of $83 million related o the disposition of premises and,
1o  lesser extent, nee and miscell P
nssociated with scheduled branch dispositions. OF this
amoumt, $13 million represented a thind quarter 1995
acerual for the closure of 21 branches, of which 19 were
closed in March 1996, The ¢ ing amount consisted
of a fourth quarter 1995 acerual for the disposition of 120
branches, of which 88 branches were closed in the third
quarter of 1996, In 1996, the 1995 accrual was increased
by approximately $7 million based on revised estimares of
premise dWM|tl¢m and severance expenses. In October
1996, the Company entered into definitive agreements with
seven institutions to sell 12 trditionn] branches, includ-
ing deposits, of Wells Fargo located in California, The
sales, which had been included in the fourth quarter 1995
accrual (and which are in sddition 1o 20 former First
Interstate Californin branches being sold), closed in rhe
first quarter of 1997, In the fourth quarter, the Company

coach family of murual finds, The Company
28 of the Stageconch family of murual funds consisting of
$14.2 billion of assets ar December 31, 1996, compared
with 15 mutual funds consisting of $7.0 billion of assers ar
December 31, 1995, Of the merged Pacifica funds, $2.4 bil-
lion was added to the Stgeconch imstitutional funds with
the remaining $2.9 billion merged into the Stagecoach
retail funds, The Company also ges the Overlund
Express family of 14 mutual funds, which had $5.1 billion
of assets under management at December 31, 1996, com-
pared with 12 mutual funds consisting of $3.7 billion at
December 31, 1995, and is sold through brokers around
the country. In addition to managing Stagecoach and
Overlund Express Funds, the Company also managed or
maintined personal trust, corporare trust, employee
beneht trust and agency assets of approximately $300 hil-
lion (including $245 billion from First Interstate) and

$51 billion at December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively.
In addition, the incrense in asset management and custody
fees was predominantly due to the Merger.

The MasterWorks division along with the Company's
joint venture interest in Wells Fargo Nikko Investment
Advisors were sold ar year-end 1995, resulting in a
reduction of $.5 hillion of the retail funds and the entire
$1.8 billion in institurional funds.

Income from cost method equiry investments in both
1996 and 1995 reflected net gains on the sales of and
distribution from nonmarkemble equity investments.

'

eval | the r ining 22 scheduled branch dispositions
andl decided ro retain 11 branches. Of the other 11
branches, 10 were elosed in the first quarter of 1997

and 1 is expected to be sold in the third quarter of 1997.
The liability ar December 31, 1996 for the remaining 11
branches was $14.8 million. In addition, an expense
acerual of $96 million was made in the fourth quarter of
1996, reg iz disposition of premises andl, to a lesser
extent, severance and communication expenses associated
with the disposition of another 137 traditional branches
in California in 1997,

At December 31, 1996, the Company had 1,947 retail
outlers, comprised of 1,274 taditional branches, 298 super-
market banches and 375 banking centers, in 10 western
stares. In 1996, the Company and Safewsy Inc. signed an
agreement in principle that would allow the Company
to apen as many as 430 new retall ourlets (banking
centers and branches) in Saleway stores in the western
Unived States,

During 1995, gins and losses on sales of loans included
an estimared $83 million write-down to the lower of cost
ot estimated market due to the reclassification of certain
types of products within the real estate 1-4 family first
mortgage loan portfolio ro mortgage loans held for sale.
This write-dawn was |v.1niﬂ||v offset by gains on sales of
twor loans, resulting from the assumption of the borrowers'
loans by third parties.
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| TAHLE 5 AVERAGE BALANCES, YIELDS AND RATES PAID (TAXABLE-EQUIVALENT BASIS) (1)
L=
{irs il - 1996 N 1993 . i N 1993 1993
Average Yickds/ Frterest Ave Yiehb/ Tieres Average Vil fr o - :
(o e i e acomel bobnce o A o S Rrersee Vil e
EARNING ASSETS ez e S huad xpitons e
Federal funds skd and securities purchased
wndder resile agrements $ 512 5.55% 5 9 § & 3.94'% § 4 § 1@ 351% s 1 § M 517% $ B § 9 3.62% § B
Investment securitien:
Ad fair virlue (1)
| Us Tmnsnhs«:mnn 2460 597 142 499 6.34 il 190 .66 13 N - = o = _
Securities of LS. povernment agencics
andl corporiitions 6,980 6,20 435 1426 5.595 1] 1,547 5.682 93 - i . 5 _ _
| Privare eoll lised bl 1,691 6.39 174 1.095 6.14 Tl L2 6,14 B0 - - = = N =:
Orhier securities 455 684 28 L1 19.69 _ !l 6 14.13 o . - = = = >
i Tonal investment securities ot fair value 12,586 6,18 ™ AL 617 194 1053 a1l 192 - - - - = =
X cumt:
Ty — = - = 1,246 488 6l 2376 477 1 2,283 503 1s 1,562 550 9l |
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and thens - - - 4428 6.07 244 5.902 6.05 357 7,97 a4l 511
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e = = E 14 10 133 5.75 8 189 567 i 1o 616 7
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At lower of vost ar mntker = - - - - = e - - - - - 108 B 9
Toral investment securitics 12,5806 [N 779 10,044 504 600 12,706 579 741 11310 5905 & “¥am
| I}ulunm;‘ Tisarss held for sale (11 - - - 1,002 48 T - - = - z» & 5‘“‘3 &93 ¢l¢.|
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Savings certihcates 14,433 4.93 712 8,060 5.25 424 1.030 4.28 01 7 437 347 10,763 494 512
Other time deponits 385 .64 27 385 614 24 104 135 3] 719 24 ] 751 3
Pleponits in fimeign affices 136 5.19 17 1771 591 104 925 473 4 i - = 43 789 3
“Towal interest-biin its 48,872 3.25 1,586 29.695 1,36 w7 31,802 269 55 11,145 268
Fodes s pchased s : : - L
under repurehiise agreements 1,769 5.22 92 3401 5.84 199 2223 445 1,051 279 9 1,299 116 i
Commereial paper an ather short-retin borrowings 369 413 16 544 5.82 32 224 415 10 07 290 & 252 154 9
e s 8 ¢ % £ % ® B4 T
Subsetdinate t ’ 3 . A 958 543 X
Chunrmineed preferrad benefelal interests in L hatk LAl o
Company’s subordinared debentures .7 7.82 . - - - - - - = = = - .
Totil interessbearing labilitics 55,708 3.59 2,002 36,717 390 1431 7,688 1.06 1,155 17,635 0 s
| Pattion :lfmmimcrm-lsming Tunding sourees 18,406 - = _B.968 - - 9,209 - ] CA713 2 il I.lU_ !'65 |.'|5‘Z_
Townl funding sources § 74114 2.70 2,002 $45,685 113 143 $46,988 245 1,155 $46,348 238 1,105 .07 1452
Net interest margin and net interest income ; e BLELE
an a tazable-cyuivalent basis o1 611% 84,532 S.60%  §2,655 _5.55%  $2.610 Sldm 8265 550M  S2.698
NONINTEREST-EARNING ASSETS
Cash s dhue from binks $ 7977 § 2681 $ 2618 § 2456 § 2536
Goodwill 5,614 399 458 501 541
Other _ 5,687 1002 1,783 1,505 2117
Total nonintercst-cnming asers $ 19,278 § 5,082 $ 4861 § 4,762 $ 5,194
NONINTEREST-BEARING FUNDING SOURCES $ § 9085
s 22,759 9, $ BA4B2
Orhwr liabitiries 2,79 1,142 8'997 $ :f‘f.% I
Preferred stockholden' equity 779 459 639
Commor stockholden’ equiry 11,370 33 3357
Naninrenest-beiring hmding sournces
vl o fnnd earning assers (18,406) (8.968) 18,713)
Met noninterest-bearing funding sources 3 19,276 § 5,082 § 4,762
TOTAL ASSETS $ 93,392 §50,767 $5L110
1) The average el s ofthe Bk o 8177, 845%, 7.14%, 6.00% s 6.25% o 199, 1995, 1994, 1993 aed 1992, rspetively. The averape thiee-stioh London 41 lsorunt incomne inchules s s, net of deferred anses, of approsimately $104 mllion, $41 illion, $40 milion, $41 million and 57 million (n 1996, 1995, 1094,
Iriterbenk Cffered ot (LIBORY woss 5509, 6.04%, 4.75%, 5.29% ond 3HVR for the sme yean, repecrively. 1993 and 1992, respectively.
1) Ireress vures sesh pmwnes e i effects of hedage and sk o | withs dhe: sy nmrt, arwd Libsiliny awde:;. i i 193 Muswsonanl lons and pelared neome are tnelided in el respective loan curepories,
{39 Yirlids are Hosedd on med cont Balniices. Thie average el couhalances for tmirni securities ar fii valie totadnd $12610 nillioe, $3,144 milljon s 16} Inschodes tixai it bent adfuntmonis shat piime i Ol a —
il‘.l 1 willion I;';'ﬁ..ll"ll'ﬂ s 1994, pespecnively, Thi sverae wn:.tlml u::hdu:ﬁ-:‘:nw b Dl b sl "":"" $1002 million in 1995, ':':alhdrrul 'lllllll:;.:uk::a -::u\m:.; |s;v:. mi';:w:m..z IWT:HNI;:.;:‘ Ih;ﬂ'.; i R YRR S

m : i~ Eae @
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MNONINTEREST EXPENSE

Table 6 shows the major components of noninterest expense.

TABI‘E ﬁ NONINTEREST EXPENSE

e winlind Dhecember 31, B Chunipe
(] 5 199 1S |

[im sl livsms )

1995 1oay

Silaries 81,357 § T F 671 0% 6%
Incentive compensution 227 126 155 B0 (19
Employes benehis 373 187 bl 99 1]
Exublprment 194 193 174 107 1
Net oecupuncy B TTUR 1 N 4 & i3 (21
Conrmict services 295 149 101 98 448
Gioolwill 150 55 o 6l4 (3
Core deposit intngible:

Memualifying (11 206 - - - -

Cuanlifying 37 42 4 (a2 (8
Opernring losses 145 45 6 232 an
Telecommunicatioms 140 58 49 Ml 18
Advertisiog and promation 16 73 63 59 12
Ousiee professional services 112 45 31w 6
Posiage L] 51 44 85 18
Travel anad entemiinment 78 {1 Wwooug 0
Stationery aud supplics 6 il i 1ws 23
Security 56 1 20 167 5
Olutsicle it processing 55 I 0 400 10
Check printing 43 5 29 n (14)
Escrow and collection )

mgeticy fees 33 15 19 120 {21)
Federal deposic insumnce 28 52 101 (46) ()
Foreclimal nssets il 1 - 600
Al orher 142 4 6 92 19

Toal £4.637 SL201 $2056 1% 1%
A ol e digemit e ancprined witer Fobrumny 1992 vl are

wbrrmered drom seckholdon” sty i computing regulitory capial fn
Tk hwlcling companies.

In addition 1o the effect of combining operations of
First | with the Cx y, the ovemll incrensé in
noninterest expense primarily reflected intangible amorti-
sation and other integration expenses, including severance,
advertising and higher expenses for contract and outside
professional services.

Salaries, incentive compensation and employee benefirs
expense increased $93 1 million in 1996 compared with
1995, This was subseantinlly due 1o higher scaff levels after
the consummation of the Menger. Salaries and employee
benefits expense during 1996 included integration-relaved
severmnce expense of 378 million. Additional severance
expense may be incurred in 1997 as the Company continues
the integration process. The Company's active full-time

equivalent (FTE) staff, including hourly employees, was
36,902 ar December 31, 1996, compared with 19,249 ar
December 31, 1995, Fitst Interstare hiad 27,200 average FTE
in December 1995, The Company currently expects to have
less than 35,000 active FTE by the thind quarter of 1997,

Excluding the effects of the Merger, Increases in equip-
ment expense in 1996 compared with 1995 were primarily
due to  higher level of spending on software and rechnol-
oy for product development and inerdased depreciation
expense on equipment related to business inittatives and
system upgrades.

Goodwill and CDI amortization resulving from the Menger
were $216 million and $206 million, respectively, for the
year ended December 31, 1996. The care deposit intngible
is amortized on an accelerated hasis based on an estimated
useful life of 15 yedrs. The impact on noninterest expense
from the amortization of the nongualifying core deposit
intangible in 1997, 1998 and 1999 is expected to be $241 mil-
lion, $211 million and $186 million, respectively. The
related impact on income tax expense is expected ro he
o benefir of $99 million, $87 million and $76 million
in 1997, 1998 and 1999, respectively.

The decrease in federal deposiv insurmnee expense in
1996, compared with 1995, was substntially due to the
revised rate structure effective June 1, 1995, partially offser
by the passage of the Deposit Insurance Funds Aer of 1996
(DIFA). DIFA was enacted, in part, to increase the Federal
Dleposit Insuranece Corpormtion Savings Association Insur-
ance Fund reserve mtio to 1.25% and levied a 65.7 cent
fee on every $100 of thrift deposits held on March 31, 1995.
The Company acquired thrift deposits through the Merger.
Aceordingly, $22 million was paid in 1996 hased on the
thrife deposits of First Interstare,

The Company expects noninterest expense, excluding
goodwill and nongualifying CDL amortization, to decrease
in 1997 campared with 1996, By the fourth quarter of
1997, naninrerest expense is expected o reflect the full
impact of integrating the two separate companies, by
reducing noninterest expense by $200 million per quarter
from the pre-merger combined amounts.

INCOME TAXES

The Company’ effective tax rre was 46% for 1996 and
429 for 1995, The inerease in the effective tix mee for 1996
wins due o incrensed goodwill amortization related o the
Merger, which is not mx deductible.

Table 7 reconciles reported eamings 1o net income excluding
goodwill and nonqualifying core dipasit intangible (“eash”
or "tangible”) for the year ended December 31, 1996,

TM“]E EARNINGS EXCLUDING GDODWILL
AND NONQUALIFYING CDI

(i milHion) Yoar endend December 31, 1996
e | A "
g eodwill Moqulifying Smiee
wote deponi
tmangilile
Ineune belore
income tax expense  $1,979 $250 5106 52435
Income tax expense 908 - 84 92
Met income 107 50 122 1443
Preferesd stoclk
dividends 67 - - 67
Net income applicable
o comimnh stock 51,004 § 250 §ilz §L36
Per common share §1121 §3.05 $148 51674

Table B presents the calculation of the ROA, ROE and
efficiency ratios excluding goodwill and nongualifying core
deposit intanjzible amortization and balances for the year

BALAQN:E SHEET ANALYSIS

(\cnm:mrisun between the year-end 1996 and 1995
balance sheets is discussed below, The Bank's assets of
$98.7 billion and $48.6 billion ar December 31, 1996 and
1995, respectively, represented more than 90% of the
Company's consolidated assets ar those dates.

INVESTMIEENT SECURITIES

Primurily as o resulk of the Merger, totl investment securities
averaged $12.6 billlon in 1996, o 26% increase from

$10.0 billion in 1995, Total investment securities were
$13.5 billion at December 31, 1996, a 52% increase from
$8.9 billion ar December 31, 1995, Investment securities
are expected o decrease in the future as the cash received
from their maturities is used o fund loan growth.

r ﬁ—

ended December 31, 1996. These caleularions were specific-
ally formulaced by the Company and may not be comparable
1o similurly titled measures reported by other companies.
Also, “cash” or “tangible" earnings are nor entirely available
for use by management. See the Consclidated Statement

of Cash Flows and Note 3 to the Financial Statements for
ather information regarding funds available for use by
management.

'M“LE RATIOS EXCLUDING GOODWILL AND
NONQUALIFYING CcDI

in willions) Year ended Docomber 11, 1996
ROWA: ANCE) = 166% |
ROE: BIVE) =  28.46%
| Efficiency: (FOYH = 62.2% |
Net ienime $ 1443 (A)
Met income applicable w common stock 1376 (B)
Avernge ol wssetn 23,302 (C)
Avenige common stockholden® squity 11,370 (D)
Avernge goodwill (35.614) and afer-tx nongualifying
core deposit inngible ($922) 6,536 (E)
Nominterss) expense 4637 (F)
Anmtortization expense for goadwill and nongualifying
cote deponit intengille 436 (G)
Net inversst income plus tominterest income 6,711 (H)

Table 9 provides expecred remaining maturities and
yields (raxable-equivalent hasis) of debt securities within
the investment partfolio. The weighted average expected
remaining maturity of the debt securities portfolio was
2 years and 2 months ar December 31, 1996, compared
with 2 years pndd | menth ot December 31, 1995, In replacing
the maruring securities with new securiries, it has been rthe
intention of the Company o maintain a short-term expected
maturity position in order to provide additional liguidiey
and 1o fund furure loan growth. Expecrad remaining maturities
will differ from remaining contractual maturities becanse
borrowers may have the right to prepay certain obligarions
with or without penalties. [t s more appropriate to monitor
investment seeurity maturivies and yields using prepayment

TERADATA, Ex. 1018, p. 10




TAHLE g INVESTMENT SECURITIES

EXPECTED REMAINING MATURITIES AND YIELDS

Lirn mmilliony)

Total  Weighted  Weighned
et livernge v
yield  expociml

H Anpinirid
reming
imarvminy (i
yis—nos. )
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
SECURITIES (13
LLE. Teeusury sccurities § 2,824 5.8, 1-10 5 689
Securities of L5,
pevErTInent pgencies
wnd corpomtions 7043 .56 13 Lald
Private collateralined
mongage shligations 3037 .6 2-1 1081
Owher M2 700 10 101
TOTAL COST OF
DIBT SECURITIES $13.446 6ATH 22 $4465
ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE  $13,460 490

Wiithin one year

Thecember 31, 1990

Ay v yeans

Aftor fve years
_ Uimgh son yeuny

At ety
thiongh frve

E ‘r: W Amaun \‘II'L:I. Amissin Yield  Ampinin Vield

5.70% $2,11v DA% 35 0.26% 51 685N

[ME] LE A 674 498 28 (V) 1.3

650 108 6,70 14 6.7l

6.68 236 i 3 672 2 671

G.1BY. 58,304 .56% 3554 1.22% 103 T.32%
$8.313 §534 $103

1) The weighzed wrerage yiehd is compured g thie ymortceed co of svibable-dorsile invesiment sconrives carmied at far vale: Soe Note 4 m ibe Fimcial Stiemeonis

low Friar vt of mvailnble-for-sale wewrition by vppe of dcuriny,

assumptions since this better reflects whar the Company
expects to oceur: (Note 4 o the Financial Sratements shows
the remaining contractunl principal maturities and yields
of debr securities.)

The available-for-sale portfolio includes borh debr and
markerable equity securities. At December 31, 1996, the
availuble-for-sale secutities portiolio had an unrealized
net gain of $41 million, comprised of unrealized gross
gains of $107 million und unrealized gross loses of $66 mil-
lion, At December 3, 1995, the available-forsale securities
portfolio had an unrealized net gain of $47 million, com-
prised] of unrenlized gross gains of $88 million and unrealized
ross losses of $41 million. The unrealized net gain or loss
om available-for-sale securities is reported on an after-tax
hasis as a valuation allowance that is a separate compo-
nent of stockholders” equity. At December 31, 1996, the
valuation allowanee smounted to an unrealized net giin
af $23 million, compared with an unrealized net gain of
$26 million ar December 31, 1995,

The unrealized ner gain in the debt securities portion
of the available-for-sale portiolio ar December 31, 1996
was predominantly avtributahle ro ULS. Treasury securities,
reflecting a decrease in market interest mtes since the time
of purchase. The Company may decide 1o sell certain of
the available-for-sale securities to mannge the level of

earning assets (for example, to offset loan growth that may
exceed expecred maturities and prepayments of securities).
(See Note 4 to the Financial Statements for investment
securities at fair value and av cost by security rype.)

At December 31, 1996, mornpmge-hacked securities
included in securities of LS. government ngencies and
corportions consisted of pass-through securities and
collateralized martgage obligations (CMOs) and substan-
tially all were issued or backed by federal agencies. These
securities, wlong with the privice CMOs, represented
$10,280 million, or 76% of the Company's investment
securiries portfolio at December 31, 1996, The CMO secu-
rittes held by the Company (including the private issues)
ure prim.‘lri[\r shortermaturity class bonds that were struc-
rured to have more predictable cash flows by being less
sensitive to prepayments during periods of changing interest
rates. As an indication of interest e risk, the Company
has estimated the impact of u 200 basis point increase in
Interest rates on the value of the mongage-bicked securities
and the cormesponding expected rempining maturities.
Based on this rate scenario, mortgage-hacked securities
would decrease in fuir value from $10,280 million w
59,784 million and the expected remaining maturity of
these securities would tnerease from 2 years and 3 months
to 2 years and 7 months.

LoAN PORTFOLIO

A comparative schedule of average loan balances is presented
in Table 5; vear-end balances are presented in Note 5 1o
the Finnncial Statements.

Loans averaged $60.6 billion in 1996, compared with
$34.5 billion in 1995, Towal loans at December 31, 1996
were 3674 billion, compared with $35.6 billion at year-
end 1995, Most of the increase resulved from the Merger.
The most significant increases for average loans were in
commercinl and the vther revolving monthly payment
portfolios, The Company's tatal unfunded loan commit-
ments grew to $55.2 billion at December 31, 1996, from
524.2 billion ar December 31, 1995.

Commercinl loans grew 99% to $19.5 billion ar year-
end 1996, froan $9.8 billion ot December 31, 1995, This
increase of 39.7 billion was due to the Merger. Total
unfunded commercial loan commitments grew from
$8.4 hillion ar December 31, 1995 to $28.1 billion at
December 31, 1996, Included in the commercial loan
partfolio are agricultural loans of $1,409 million and
$1,029 million ar December 31, 1996 and 1995, respec-
tively. Agricultural loans consist of loans to inance
agricultural production and other loans to farmers.

Table 10 presents comparative period-end commercial
real estare loans,

TA “[IE 1[' COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE LOANS

[l lions) - December 31, % Change
[ty 1995 14 19960 15
995 194
Cuommercinl loans
vl estate devielopens
aned REFTs (11 51070 § T & 525 5% %
ther real estate
e (1) 11,660 Bl6) B0V 44 2
Real estare construerion. 2,303 Lies 1013 69 15
Towl §15.233  §10319 #9617 4% T
Normeeral lonms § 376 § 371 % 416 % (D%
Nonaceeual o s i
W of voeal 2.5% 1.6 4.3%

LY Do il ien conmneneiind fosins, TS are read estnne ivestnsent imies.

L2} tinelmbes agricnd bl lomns thar s primarily secaned by real estase of
S525 ol oo, F 256 ema Do monel 5250 wil bows we Diecomnbior 11, 11590,
1995 and 194, respectively,
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Table 11 summarizes other real estate mortgage loans by
state and property cype. Table 12 summatizes real estate
construction loans by state and project type.




TAHLE 11 REAL ESTATE MORTGAGE LOANS BY STATE AND TYPE
IEXCLUDING -4 FAMILY FIRET MORTGAGE LOANS)

Lim milbbns) Decembet 3, 1996
_ Calibostrln —_ Tam Wit Nevada _ Ohes sates () Allvates  Non.
Tol  Noee  Totl  Now Rl Moo Teml Mo Towd  Mewe  Towl  Noa "“""'ﬂ
loans  wccaunl boums  sccrual Ropns sl T el lowms  mccrual lois awcral ollnu.nnl
by type
Oifice buildings $2,285  $i44 $1i8 $1 5 87 $- $ 96 - § 582 1 $3178 MM %
Inlustrinl 1425 25 o I 18 - 4 - 195 2 L1 L] 2
Apartments 910 1 66 5 150 19 . 190 - 1M i 2
Shopping cenrers 572 12 m - B3 - 11 - 285 3 1122 15 I
Hotelsfmorels 360 5 51 - 19 350 - W9 - 1209 5 =
Rerail huildings
{other than
pping centers) 568 14 T4 42 = 1 - 179 - a4 17 T
Institueional B39 8 129 3 200 2 15 = 78 L] 1,501 36 2
Tanul 1 18 i - - 2 - 44 - 246 18 7
Agricultural 49 & ] - 13 - - - o 2 3 10 3
-4 family (1)
Larud 1 - - - - & = = = - 1 - -
Structures 16 i - - i4 - - 1 - i I i
Orher e | S [N - R 6 = _n A 1w 7 W W 4
Toral by suare §1.571 8290 $767 10 8632 2 $559 §1 §2.351 46 S11B60  §340 %
% of totl boans % 6% % % 0% 100%
MNonaccrush asa %
of toeal by stare 4% 1% — M 2%
(1) Represienrs boans o tval estaie devidopets sscured by 14 fansily residentinl develupments
(21 Conlain of 40 siutey o wiste hid b in exces ol 21 million si Deceember 11, 1004,
30 Trchides fosn A by collnneral pols of imaroly $28 million (whore the pool is o misture of vatiom neal e propenty ypes locaed i various sistes, nun:
veal estate-related awcts and othor prarantees)
TAHLE 12 REAL ESTATE CONSTRUCTION LOANS BY STATE AND TYPE
(i millhor) o Deceiber M, 1996
Califnia Newmlih  ____ Tesm Orjon(l) Atioradtt  Ohicstes @) Allwas  (Now-
Tl Mo Tosal Tosml  Mone Toral Toosl Tl Nowe  Toml  New ““‘““3
loans  acerual lossiny s wcwrual T lonstin limpn ccral loans  mecrial 0':":““
by type
14 family:
Lane § 59 §3 § 37 § - $- $- $- $ 63 $- 53w §3 1%
Structures 206 fr 3 32 - 4 41 53 - i61 6 i
Shopping centers 70 - | L] 4 m - 3o - -
Lanid (excluding
1-4 family} 143 - 5 8 - i 4 53 L] 36 9 4
Apwriments 12 5 4 14 - 7 1 9% - 282 5 2
Truleastetal il - 9 7 - 1 1 13 - 104 - -
Ofhice buildings 44 - 1 1 - (1 12 i - 93 -
Hatelsfmotels M - 59 14 - 2 - 1 - 129 - -
Retail busilings {other
than shopping centen) 36 - - 15 - 2 3 10 - L - -
Tovarirutional 27 - L] 54 | 3 1] ' 1 159 1 1
Agriculiurl [ - - = = = 2 - % B - =
Orher B = 3 12 5 2 1 6 9% =
Total by state 1,063 14 188 $!_ﬂ0 §1 L2 $57 £688 s10 82,303 515 1%
B of voral bouns I=1'{'l'- __BR % A% 4% 0% 100%
Monnceruls sy %
of taral by stare 1% 1% 1%

(1) Thers were i b o momaccmial e Degember 31, 199,

(1) Camaiens ool 20 st wn stinte oail s ies escass ool S50 mill oty e Dcermiber 41, 1996

NONACCRUAL AND RESTRUCTURED
LOANS AMD OTHER ASSETS

Table 13 presents comparative data for nonacerual and

restructured loans and other nssers. Management's
classification of & loan as nonacerual or restructured does
not necessarily indicate thar the principal of the loan is
uncollectible in whole or in part. Table 13 excludes loans
that are contractually past due 90 days or more as o
interest or principal, but are both well-secured and in
the process of collection or nre real estate 1-4 family first
mortgage loans or consumer loans that are exempt under
regulatory rules from being classified as nonaccrual. This
informarion is presented in Table 17. Notwithstanding,
renl estare 1=4 family loans (first and junior liens) are

placed on nonacerual within 150 days of hecoming past
due and are shown in the table below. (Notes 1 and 6
1o the Financial Statements deseribe the Company's

accounting policies relating o nonacerual and restrue-
tured loans and foreclosed assers, respectively.)

TAH[IE I] NONACCRUAL AND RESTRUCTURED LOANS AND OTHER ASSETS

i i) Peeembor 11,
19596 1995 14 19 59

Nonaccrual losns:

Commercial (11011 $223 sz § 88 $ 132 $ 560
Real estate |4 family first mortguge @ 4 Bl L] a9
Oither real estute mortgage (1) 49 307 528 578 1207
Real estate construstion 25 46 58 15 235
Consumer:
Real estate |4 family janior lien morogage 15 L] 11 10 2%
Other revolving credit and monrhly paymient 1 | | ] 7
Lease finuncing 2 = = = ——r
Total nomsecrual loans (45 714 538 567 1194 FAEL]
Rescroctured loans (31 10 4 s 6 A
Nonneciual i restroctured loans (4) 14 552 542 1,200 1,142
Asa percentage of total loank 1A% 1.6% 1.6% 1.6% 5.8
Foreclosed assers (1h8) 219 186 mn 348 510
Rieal esture investments (1) _ 4 _n 17 15 40
Total nomscerunl and restrucrured losns and other assets 5947 $750 $871 §1,563 $2,6092
1) I ludes foans b 1) v wed extane devebopers and REET of $2 willion, $18 wmillion, $30 millon, $91 miblian srd $86 million ar Decenber 11, 1996,

1995, 1994, 1993 und 1991, respecrively

(2] Includes agriculiead fonns of $13 million, $6 million, $1 million. 59 million wd S8 oillion st December 31, 1996, 1905, 1994, 1993 and 1992, respectively

E3) Ineludes agricalimeal fomm secured Ty real estmne of $13 million, £1 million, $3 million, $24 million and $25 million ar Decenber 11, 1998, 1995, 1904, 1993 pnd |92,
reapegtively.

14) ©F thie temal mowaexrinal losnis, $490 million wed $S400 million st Decomber 81, 1996 anil 1995, respectively, were comaldernld nspaived sndes FAS 114 {Acoounting by
Creditors for mpatensens of # Laun),

(51 I slebision o o d b that were sibsequerith d, there were bssms of $50 million at eth Decemaet 31, 1996 and 1995 that were prarchisel o o sy
discount whose iontracts] tenms wiere modified sfer avipisiton. The miodifis) o did vor sifiess dhe bisok halance o the pields expooted or the dave of purchie.
O b wotml resmneiueesd] losma and boans purchased s o seep $50 millon were dered impainnd wndker FAS 114 a1 December 51, 1996 and 1995,

1) Related commmbtmints s linid asligiomal fimds wees approsinsancdy $44 million s December 11, 1006,
A7) Includes sgriculiural propervioy of $17 sillion, $22 million, $23 millive, 526 million and $55 willion st Deceniber 11, 1900, 1995, 1994, 1995 gl 1992, seipectively,
(8) Exchades inewibwitmmin foree hommes (1555 of $59 million veclasified 1o pomscerd foams ar fune 30, 1993 due v charfemum of covedn ased in denmining when i bon

18 (-l frtex o). Conngelere tnds b mist availabile For piie pierhods bowever, sig 5P thoe syl be peelassified i prior pecinds would ner be auterially
igher tham $99 mdllion;
(21 Ripresenas she snouns of weal esare [} imtewest lowns o for n ovemomsenin) chur would be classifod we nonscooil o sach wesers weo loan,

Reeul estive invements toealed $154 mallion, $95 mullion, $54 uallion, $34 willion aod 39 wdllivn s Decesber 31, 1996, 1095, 1994, 1993 s 1992, reapectively

. . S B - |
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Table 14 summarizes the quarterly trend of the apy
mate changes in nonaccrual loans, The Company anticlpares
normal influxes of nonacerual loans as it furcher increases
its lending activity as well ns resolutions of loans in the -
nonacerual portfolio. The performance of any individual
loan can be impacted by exvernal factors, such as the

mte envin or factors particulor to a bor-
rower such ns actions taken by o borrower's management.
In addition, from time to rime, the Company purchoses
loans from other hnancial institurions thar may be
classified as nonaceroal based on s policies.

TAHI.IE 14 QUARTERLY TREND OF CHANGES IN NONACCRUAL LOANS

{ir millivs)

Balunce, beginning of quarter
Nongecrual loans of First Interstate
Mew loans placed on nonacerial
Charge-offs

Payments

Transfors to forechosed assets

Loans nerurned v aceal

Balance, end of quarter

The Company generally identifies loans 1o be evaluared
for impairment under FAS 114 (Accounting by Creditors
for Impairment of a Loan) when such loans are on nonacerual
or have been restructured. However, not all nonscerual
loans are impaired. Generally, a loan is placed on non-
accrual status upon becoming 90 days past due as t interest
or principal (unless both well-secured and in the process:
of collection), when the full timely collection of interest
or principal becomes uncertain or when a portion of the
principal balance has been charged off, Real estate 1-4
family loans (both first liens and junior liens) are placed
on nenacerial status within 150 days of becoming past
due as to interest or principal, regardless of security, In
contrast, under FAS 114, loans are considered impaired
when it is probable that the Company will be unable to
l:('l"e:r I'III AMOounts du.c acconfing o T.hf C(ll'l‘m:tu.-'ll ferms
of the loan agreement, including scheduled interest pay-
menis. For a loan thar has been restructured, the conrme-
tual terms of the loan agreement refer to the contracrual
terms specified by the original loon agreement, not the
contractual terms specified by the restructuring agreement.
Not all impaired loans are necessarily placed on nonacerual
status, That is, restructured loans performing under restruc-
tured terms beyond a specified performance period are

N —— __ Ovomerendsd
December 31, Soptember 10, Jane W0, Masch 31, Docenibar 11,
19940 1996 10 1994 1995

Ll i §731 $515 $514 §3406

- = 201 - 3

213 156 173 13 106

148) (43) (48) (9 amn

(117 (54) (87) (54} (71}

(16) (36) (19 (300 (22)

135) 7 (14} 13 MELH

$ 714 7 $74 §525 $518

clussified as aceruing but may still be deemed impaired
under FAS 114.

For loans covered under FAS 114, the Company makes
an assessment for impairment when and while such loans
are an nonaccrual, or the loan has been restructured. When
a loan with unique risk characreristics has been identified as
being impaired, the amount of impairment will be measured
by the Compuny using discounted cash flows, except when
it is determined thar the sole (remaining) source of repay-
ment for the loan is the operation or liquidation of the
underlying collarernl. In such cases, the current fair value
of the collateral, reduced by costs to sell, will be used in
place of discounted cash flows. Addigionally, some tmpaired
loans with commitments of less than $1 million are aggre-
gated for the purpose of measuring impairment using
historical loss factors as & means of measurement.

If the T of the i 1 loan is less than
the recarded investment in the loan (including accrued
interest, net deferred lonn fees or costs and unamortized
premium or discount), an impairment is recognized by
crenting or ndjusting an existing allocation of the allow-
ance for loan losses, FAS 114 does not change the timing
of eharge-offs of loans to reflect the amount ultimarely
expected to be collected.

1f interest due on the book balances of all nonacerual
and restruerured loans (including loans no longer on
nonacerual or restructured ar year end) had been acerued
under their original terms, $60 million of interest would
have heen recorded in 1996, compared with $27 million
actually recordid. bo addition, the fnterest that would have
Ieen recorded under the original terms for the $30 million of
Toans purchused ar u steep discount (see Table 13, foomore 3)
for the year ended December 31, 1996 was $8 million, com-
pared with $6 million actually recorded.

Tible 15 summarizes the quarterly trend in foreclosed
assets, Table 16 summarizes foreclosed assers by stave and
type at December 31, 1996. Foreclosed assets ar Decem-
ber 31, 1996 increased 1o $219 million from $186 million
at December 31, 1995, Approximately 51% of foreclosed
assers nt December 31, 1996 have been in the portfolio
three years o less, with land and agricultuml properties
representing substantially all of the amount greater than
three years old.

TAHLE 15 QUARTERLY TREND OF CHANGES IN FORECLOSED ASSETS

R i {iiemn)  Quarier r_l_v_‘_lnl
December 31, Sepremhes 30, June 40, March 3, Pecember 1,
199 19 16 s 1095
Balance, beginaing of gquarter $117 5298 $196 $186 $214
Troree b ssets of Finst Inteestare - - 51 -
Adilitioms 34 15 ¥ 35 14
Sales (36) 42} i (18) (4
Cliige-offs 2) )] (2 (N (3]
Write-downs {2) i l_l] (§3] o
COehrer deductins ) - D (n
Balance, end of quarter $219 £227 $28 $198 $186
TA[II‘E lﬁ FORECLOSED ASSETS BY STATE AND TYPE
b milbiesn o L — Pecomber 5, 1996
“alifoenia Toesion Woaabsinigon Chher All Ao piwad
BL, stinen (1) statis Tomeulosed
amen
Lanad {exeluding 1-4 Gamily) L ] sl $ $6 $ 80 1%
-4 family i | - 41 19
Shopping center 19 = 7 = 26 {}]
Auticiltuiral 17 - - - 17 B
Tncdustrin) buildings | I - - 1
Office bt kb 14 5 = | w u
Apartments k] - 3 1
Hhowehifmwnels 4 - - 4 2
Orher 2 - - : 2 i
Teal by sure §194 b §7 510 219 100%
% of voual foreclined st BH%, .rl‘l, 3% 5% 100%:

LY Cumrivaets oof fillicen st wer state had fonclsed susets in encess of $4 il oy December 31, 199
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LOANS 90 DAYS OR MORE PAST DUE
AND STILL ACCRUING

Table 17 shows loans contractually past due 90 days or
more a5 to interest or principal, but not included in the
nonacerual or restructured categories. All loans in this
category are both well-secured samd in the process of col-
lection ar are real estate |-4 family first morrgage loans
or consumer loans that are exempt under regulatory rules
from being classified s nonacenal because they are auro-
matically charged off after being past due for a prescribed
period (generally, 180 days). Notwithstanding, real estate
|4 family loans (first liens and junior liens) are placed on
nonaccrual within 150 days of becoming past due and such
nonacerual loans are excluded from Table 17.
'MHI.E I LOANS S0 DAYS OR MORE PAST DUE
AND STILL ACCRUING

[l skl ) Dexember 31,
1996 105 1994 1993 1992
Commerciul § 65 § 12 § 6 $4 $ 4
Real essare
k-4 family
farst thostgage 42 4 18 19 29
Onhier real estane
mortgape 59 4 47 14 1
Real estare
CONSEHICLion 4 - - i i
Clonsamner:
Reul estute
I-4 family junior
Tien morguge 4 4 6 L]
Crodic card 120 95 42 4 i3
Othier revilving
eredit mn
momntlily
paymient 0 1 | I 2
Total consuner 163 100 47 50 6
Lense financing - - - - 1
Toal $333 §144 $118 §95 $13

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

An analysts of the changes in the allowance for loan losses,
including charjge-offs and recoveries by loan category, is
presented in Note 5 to the Financial Statements. At
December 31, 1996, the allowance for loan losses was
$2,018 million, or 3.00% of total loans, compared with
$1,794 million, or 5.04%, at December 31, 1995, The pro-
vislon for loan losses was $105 million in 1996, compared
with none and 5200 million in 1995 and 1994, respectively.

During 1991 and 1992, the Company had a significantly
higher provision for loan losses than in the years prior
resulting from a nationwide (particularly Califormia)
recession as well as the Company’s examination process
and that of its regulators, As both the economic environ-
ment and the eredit quality of the Company's loan port-
folio improved, the Company began reducing its provision
n 1993 and 1994, In 1995, as California continued o muke
pragress in 1t economic recovery and as the Company con-
sidered the allowance for loan losses adeguate in relation
to its existing loan portfolio, no provision was made. The
Company made o $35 million and $70 million provision
in the third and fourth quarters of 1996, respectively, which
were the first provisions since the fourth quarter of 1994,
The Company anticipates that it will continue making
incremental increases to the provision of approximately
$35 million through the fourth quarter of 1997, when it is
expected that the provision will approximate net charge-
affs. In addition, the Company absorbed the $770 million
in allowance for loan losses of First Interstate as a resuly of
the Merger. Net charge-offs in 1996 were $640 million, or

1.05% of average total loans, compared with $288 million,

or B3%, in 1995, Loan loss recoveries were $220 million
in 1996, compared with $134 million in 1995, Table 18
summarizes net charge-offs by loan category.

The largest categary of net charge-offs in 1996 was credit
cand loans, comprising more than 50% of the toral net
charge-offs. During 1996, credit card gross change-offs due
to banknupteies were 5171 million, or 42%, of total credit
card charge-offs, compared with $82 million, or 39%, and
$54 million, or 39%, in 1995 and 1994, respecrively, In
addition, credir card loans 30 o 89 days past due and still
aceruing totaled $199 million ar December 31, 1996, com-
pared with $127 million and $73 million at December 31,
1995 und 1994, respectively.

During 1994 and the first half of 1993, the Company grew
its eredit cand loan portfolio through nationwide direct
il campaigns as well as through retail outlers. The
objective of the direct mail campaigns was higher-yielding
loans to higher-risk cardholders. As these loans continue
to mature; the total amount of credit card charge-offs
and the percentage of net charge-offs to avernge credit
card loans are expected to continue at levels higher
than experienced prior to the campaigns. The Company
continuously evaluares and monitors its selection criterin
for direct mail campiigns and other nceount acquisition
methods to accomplish the desired risk fcastomer mix
within the credit card portfolio,

TA“I‘E 1H MNET CHARGE-OFFS BY LOAN CATEGORY

Cr milliom)

1956 1995 1
Aot ol Amouni W o At Wl
average: avoragy aveings
Tons lowans Novarm
Comnercial § 86 50 % $17 A9 % 317 23
Real estare 1-4 family st mortgogs 10 Al 10 17 12 14
Other real estire mongage 7 {.06) () (.02) 4 55
Reul estate canstruction 2 09 9 ) 4 34
Consumer:
Real estate 1-4 family junior len mortgage 19 33 13 A0 i) 39
Credie carnd 68 T4 195 5.46 120 445
Olther revalving credic nnd monthly payment 139 1.91 4 1.73 15 1.26
Towal conmumer 526 291 9 2.67 165 104
Lease financing 23 89 4 3t {2) (.15)
Tomal net lown change-offs 640 1.05 % §288 B3 W 5240 J0 %

Any loan that is past due as to principal or interest and
that is not both well-secured and in the process of collec-
tion is generally charged off (to the extent that it exceeds

Yewr inided Dvcember 31,

relationship of the upallocated component o the toral
allowance for loan losses may fluctuate from period 1o period.
Although management has allocated a portion of the

the fair value of any related collaernl) after a pred ined
period of time that is based on loan category. For example,
credit card loans generally are charged off within 180 days
of becoming past due. Additionally, loans are charged off
when classified as a loss by either internal loan examiners
or regulatory exnminers:

The C y has an establishéd process to derermine
the adeguacy of the allowance for loan losses which assesses
the risk and losses inherent in Irs portfolio. This process
provides an allowance consisting of two components,
allocated and unallocated. To arrive ar the allocated com-
ponent of the allowance, the Company combines estimares
of the allowances needed for loans analyzed individually
(including impaired louns subject to FAS 114) and loans
analyzed on a pool basis. While coverage of one year'’s losses
is often adeguare (particularly for homogeneous pools of
loans), the time period covered by the allowance may vary
by portfolio, based on the Company's biest estimate of the
inherent losses in the entire portfolio as of the evaluation
dare. The Coampany has deemed it prudent, when reviewing
the averall allowance, to maintain a roral allowance in
excess of projected losses, To mitigate the imprecision
inherent in most estimates of expected credit losses, the
allocated companent of the allowance is supplemented by
an unallocated component. The unallocated component
includes management's judgmental determination of the
Amounts necessary for concenteations, economic uncer-
tainties and ather subjective factors; correspondingly, the

llowance to specific loan categories, the adequacy of
the allownnce must be considered in its entirery,

The Company's determination of the level of the allow-
ance and, correspondingly, the provision for loan losses
rests upon various judgments and assumptions, including
general (particularly Califomia’s) economic conditions,
loan portfolio compasition, prior loan loss experience and
the Company’s angaing examination process and that of
its regulators, The Company has an internal risk analysis
and review staff that reports to the Board of Divectors and
continuously reviews loan quality. Such reviews also assist
management in establishing the level of the allowance.
Similar 1o a number of other large narional hanks, rhe Bank
has been for several yenrs and continues 10 be examined
by its primary regulator, the Office of the Comptroller of
the Currency (OCC), and has OCC examiners in residence-
These examinations cccur throughout the year and targer
various activities of the Bank, including specific segments
af the loan portfalio (for example, commercial real estave
andd shiared national credits). In addition w the Bank being
examined by the OCC, the Parent and its nonbank sub-
sidiaries are examined by the Federal Reserve,

The Company considers the allowance for loan losses of
£2,018 million adequate 1o cover losses inherent in loans,
commitments to extend crediv and standby lerters of eredit
at December 31, 1996,
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DEFPOSITS

Comparative detail of average deposit balances is presented
in Tible 5. Average core deposits increased 94% in 1996
compared with 1995 primarily due to the Merger. Average
core deposits funded 76% and 72% of the Company’s aver-
age toral assets in 1996 and 1995, respecrively.

Year-end deposit balances are presented in Table 19,

TABLE 19 oerosirs

i oo —— December 3, .
1996 1995 Chanee

Mestimerest-heusing £29,073 310,391 180 %
Initerest-benring chivking 2,792 BRT 115

Mucker ate aind

wther ssvings 35047 17,944 g
Savings cerificates 15,769 8,636 2]
Cuee deposits 81,581 37.R58 15
Otlver time dispasits 186 248 (25)
Drepamits in foreign offices 54 76 (24)

Tinal dipenies 381,821 $18,082 110 %

FAS 107 requires that the Company disclose estimated fair
vilues for certain inancial instruments. Quoted market
prices, when available, are used to refléct fair values. If
market quotes are not available, which is the case for most

of the Company’s inancinl instruments, manngement has
provided irs best estimate of the caleulation of the fair values
using discounted cash flows. Fair value amounts differ from
boak balances because fair values artempt to caprure the
effect of current marker conditions (for example, nrerest
mtes) on the Company's inancial instruments,

There was i decrease in the excess (premium) of the fir
value over the carrying value of the Company’s financial
instruments at December 31, 1996 compared with Decem-
ber 31, 1995, The Company's FAS 107 disclosures are
presented in Note 19 to the Financial Statements.

CAPITAL ADEQUACYIRATIOS

The Company uses o viriety of measures to evaluate capital
adequacy. Management reviews the various capital mensures
monthly and takes appropriate action o ensure thar they
are within established internal and external guidelines.
The Company’s currene capital position exceeds current
puidelines established by industry regularors.

RISK-BASED CAPITAL RATIOS

Thee Federal Reserve Board (FRB) and the OCC issue risk-
bhased eapital (RBC) guidelines for bank holding companies
and national banks, respectively. The FRI s the primary
regulator for the Parent and the OCC is the primary regula-
tor for the Bank, RBC guidelines establish a risk-adjusted
ratio relating capital to different categories of nssers and
off-balance sheet expasures, (See Note 17 1o the Financial
Statements for additional information.)

The Company’s total RBC mtio at December 31, 1996
was | L70% and its Tier 1 RBC ravio was 7.68%, exceed-
ing the minimum guidelines of 8% and 4%, respecrively,
The ratios at December 31, 1995 were 12.46% and 8.81%,
respectively. The decrease tn the Company's total and
Tier 1 RBC ratios at Décember 31, 1996 compared with
1995 resuleed primarily from an overall increase in risk-
weighred assers due to the Merger,

The Company's risk-weighted assers are calculared as
shown in Tahle 20. Risk-weighted balince sheer assers
were $26.7 billion and $11.1 billion less than total assets
on the consolidated balance sheet of $108.9 hillion and
$50.3 billion st December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively,
as a result of weighring certain types of assets ar less than
100%; such assets, for both December 31, 1996 and 1995,
substantially consisted of claims on or purrantes by the US.
government or ies agencies (risk-wclghu.\! ar 0% o 20%),
cash and due from banks (0% to 20%), 1-4 family first
mortznge loans (50%) and private collateralized mortgage
obligations backed by 1-4 Gimily fisst morrgage loans (509%).

HLF 2]] RISK-BASED CAPITAL AND
TA I LEVERAGE RATIOS

Ly Billisnss) Desemini ),
1994 1995
Tier 1:
Cammon stockholders” equity $ 135 § 38
Preferred atock 01) A4 5
Chinranteed preferred benehicial interdsts in
Compsiny's subordinnted debenrmes 1.2 =
Cloodwill arvd other deductions () {85 5)
Tonl Tier | capinal 6.6 36
Ther 2:
Whindutory consertible deli i 3 -
Subsordinated debe and unsecured senior debt 2.1 1.0
Allowance for loan losses allowable in Tier 2 L o
Tuital Ther 2 cupital 34 15
Totul risk-baved eapital $ 100 $ 51
Risk-weigghtod halnnce sheet wsers $ A2 § J9z
Risk-weighted ph-balance sheer ivems:
Commitments o mke or purchose loans 11 7
Standly betvers of credit 2.1 7
Other 5 4
Tutul risk-weighted off-balance sheet items 12.7 I8
Chowshwill nnd gher deductions 2 {8:5) {.5)
Allosance for loan losses not ineluded in Tier 2 (.9} (1.3)
Totul risk-weighted assers $ #5.5 $ 412
Risk-basedd capital ratios:
Tier | capital (4% minimum requirement) 768 881
Total cxpimal (8% minimum requirement) 170 1246
Leverige satio [ 3% minimum seguirement ) (1) B.65% TA6N

(8 Excchudes $171 milliin of Series 1 preferred stck due 1o b Comguany s
Thecember 1940 anmanmersment to redecm this sevies in Macch 1997

120 Oheher dechactions tane e C1 st after Febrary 1992 {rmmigalifytogy
GO0l thio aneealized ner gain (loss). ancavailable-forsale tnvestment
sevurivies camied o far villue,

U0 Ther 1 caplral dividisd by quismerly average ol ssers (eacluding gosdwill,
mapuitlifying COF and ther inome which were deducted w0 amive s
Tier | eapital)ls

LEVERAGE RATIO

To supplement the RBC guidelines, the FRE established
a leverage ratio guideline. The leverage mtio consists of
Tier | eapital divided by quarterly average total assers, exclud-
ing goodwill and cermin other items. The minimum levernge
ritio guideline is 3% for banking organizations thar do not
anticipate sipnifichnt growth and that haye well-diversified
risk, excellent asset quality, high liquidity, good eamings
and, in general, are considered top-rated, strong banking
organizations, Other banking organizations are expected
1o hive mrios of ar least 4% 1o 3%, depending upon their
particular condition and growth plans. Higher leverage rtios
could be required by the particular circumstances or risk
profile of a given hanking organization. The Company's

leverage mtios were 6.05% and 7.46% at December 31, 1996
and 1995, respectively, The decrease in the leverge mtio
at December 31, 1996 compared with December 31, 1995
resulted primarily from an overall inerease in quarterly
averape total assers due o the Merger,

FEDERAL DEFOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION
IMPROVEMENT ACT OF 1881 (FDICIA)

In nddition 1o adopring « risk-based assessment sysrem,
FDICIA required that the federal regulatory agencies adopt
regulations defining five caplml tiers: well capitalized,
acequiately capinlized, undercapitalized, significantly under-
capitalized and critically undercapitalized. Under the
regulations, a “well capitalized” institution must have

a Tier 1 RBC ratio of ar least 6%, a total capital mtio of
ar least 10% and a leverage rrio of at least 5% and not

be subject 1o a capital directive order. The Bank had o
Tier | RBC ratio of 8.53%, # total capital ratio of 11.00%
and a leverage ratio of 6.81% at December 31, 1996, com-
pared with 10.12%, 13.23% and 7.89% ar December 31,
1995, respectively.

The principal objectives of asset/linbility management are o
manage the sensitivity of net interest spreads ro potential
changes in interest mtes and to enhance profimbility in
ways that promise sufficient reward for understood and
controlled risk. Funding positions are kepr within pre-
determined limis designed to ensure thar risk-taking is
not excessive and that liquidity is properly managed.

Interest mre risk occurs when assers and liabilities
reprice at different times as interest rates change, For
example, il fixed-rate assets are funded with floating-mte
debr, the spread hetween asset and liability tates will
decline or turn negative if rates inerease, The Company
refers to this type of risk as "term structure risk!" There is,
l‘u}wﬂmr, ilnl“l‘:f source (lr I[nmﬂ.‘,b't rafe rlﬂh Wl\ll;l'l II'SUI“
from changing spresds berween loan and deposic res. These
changing spreads are not highly correlared 1o changes in the
level of interest rates and are driven by other market condi-
tions. The Company calls this type of risk “hasis risk”; it
is the Company's main source of interest rave risk and is
signiheantly more difficult o quantify and manage than
rerm structure risk.

One way to measure the impact that future changes in
interest rtes will have on ner interest income is through a
cumulative gap The gap rey the ner position
of assets and liabilities subject to repricing in specibed time
periods. Table 21 shows in summary form the Company's
interest mre sensitivity based on expecred inrerest rare

TERADATA, Ex. 1018, p. 15



repricing intervals in specific time frames for the halance
sheer and swaps as of December 31, 1996, A more detailed
report of the Company's interest rate sensitivity by majer
asset and linbility caregories, togerher with an adjusted
cumulativee gap measure is presented in Table 22. In addi-
tion, a detniled swap maturity schedule is included in
Tahle 24.

In cateporizing assets and liabilities according o expected
repricing time frames, management makes cermain judgments
and approximations. For example, a new three-year loan with
a rate that is adjusted every 30 days would be included in
the “0-3 months” category mther than the “over 1-5 years"
category. There are also balance sheet categories that have
u fixed sare and an unspecified maturity, or a mte that is
administered but changes slowly or not at all as market
rates change. An example of this type of account is inter-
est-bearing checking, which has balances available on
demand and pays o rate that changes infrequently. The
balances are relatively stable from quarter o quarter,
bt could decline because of disinrermedintion if tates
i 1 sul ially. Anotl ple s the revolving
eredit feature of hxed-rate credir card loans, which differ-
entiates these loans from loans with specified contractual
maturities, Given the unusunl rte maturiry chamcteristics
of these balance sheet items, they are placed in o "nonmarker
caregory.” This category is genenlly viewed as being rela-
tively stuble in terms of interest rate variability and the
net nonmatket liabilities are viewed as funding fixed-rate
assets with maturities grearer than one year. Nonmarket
assers include noninterest-carning assets, fixed-rare
credit cand loans, nonacerual loans and equity securities.
Nonmarket linhilities and stockhalders’ equity include
savings deposits, interest-bearing checking, noninterest-
hearing deposits, other ne bearing linbilities,
commion stockholders' equity and fixed-rate perpetual
preferred stock.

TABLE 2] summany or ins

Some assetfliability managers allocate these nonmarket
assets and Habilities to the various maturity caregories. The
Company believes that these allocations are mostly artbitrry
and tend to provide a false sense that the gap structure is
aceurately defined. For this reason, they remain in the
nonmarker category, in order to maintain the Company's
focus on their unusual mte maturity chamereristics.

Marrgage-hacked investment securities and fixed-rave
loans in the real estare 1-4 family first mortgage, other real
estate mortgage and consumer loan categories are based on
expected maturities mther than on contractual maturities.
Expected maturiries are estimated based on dealer prepay-
ment projections to the extent that such projections are
available. For certain rypes of adjustable-mte morgages and
consumer loans where denler prepayment projections are
not available, the Company uses its historical experience.
The gap structure also does not allocate Prime-based loans
and marker rate account (MRA ) savings deposits, included
in market rare and other savings, to specific marurity cat-
egoties. Statistical evidence indicates that both Prime-based
loans and MRA savings deposits have relatively shore
maturities, with that of MRA savings deposies being some-
what longer. Keeping them in distinet categories (as with
nonmarket) helps maintain focus on these rates, since
most of the Company's short-térm net interest income
vartabiliry depends on their relative movements.

The Company uses interest rate derivative financial
it s an asset/liability nt ool 1o hedge
mismatches in interest rate maturities. They are used to
reduce the Company's exposure o interest mte luctuations
and provide more stable spreads berween loan yields and
the rares an their funding sources. For example, the Com-
pany uses interest rate futures to shorten the rare marurity
of MRA savings deposits to better match the maturity of
Prime-based |aans.

RATE TIVITY

Lo walbiona ) — . December 31, 1996

Priee- MEA 0-1 10 612 »1-5 a5 Non- Toul

Trasech vt it maonths manths wean i market
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Assety $20477 $ - 519959 S$5061 §6305 SIZEI S15021 S 21,104 S106848
Lisbilies and stockhlden iy T M LIS 300 3 4000 3817 6363 1088
Giap befone interest rate swaps SI0477  SUSIH) § 8691 51160 §2403  $I16826  § 90504  SM42519) § -
[nterest e swips ) - {15,774) {3.268) 3,253 14,591 1,198 - -
Gap adjusted for interest rate swips §20477 S(18344) § (708))  HZI08) 55656 33341 $10,502  SM2519) § -
Cumuluive gap $ - $ (4950) S(T.08)  s(1401) 8320017 $1_2.5_I'1 : S

The under-one-year net liability position at Decem-
ber 31, 1996 was $1,402 million (1.3% of total assets),
compared with the under-one-year net liability position of
$394 million at December 31, 1995 (,8% of total assets).
This measure of term structure risk would indicate a nearly
balanced interest rare risk position. A significant under-one-
year niet liability position (greater than 4% of total assets)
would indicate that the Company's net interest income iy
exposed to rising short-term interest rates, while a similar
sive net asset position would mean an exposure to declining
short-rerm interest rates, The average under-one-year net
libility pusitions during 1996 and 1995 were $761 million
and $355 million, respectively,

The two adjustments to the cumulative gap amount
shown on Table 22 provide comparability with those bank
holding companies that present interest mte sensitivity
information in an alternative manner. However, mannge-
ment does not believe that these adjustments depicr its
Interest rate risk, The Arst adjustment line excludes non-
Interest-eaming assets, noninterest-bearing linbilivies and
stockholders” equity from the comulative gap caleulation
s0 that only ing assets, | bearing linbilities and
all interest rate swap contracts used o hedpe such assers
and linbilities are reparted. The second adjustment line
moves interest-bearing checking and marker rte and other
savings deposits in the nonmarker lability category to the
shortest rate maturity category. This second adjustment
reflects the availability of these deposits for immediote
withdrawal, The resulting adjusred under-one-yesr cumu-
lative gap (ner lability position) was $12.3 billion and
$8.7 billion at December 31, 1996 and 1995, respecrively.

I addivion, the Company performs enrnings at risk

lysis nend ne i Income si jons hased on
multiple interest mte scenarios and projected on- and off-
balance sheer changes to estimate the potential effects of
changing interest mies, The Company uses four standand
scenarios - rates unchanged, expected raves, high mtes and
low rates in anulyzing interest mre sensitiviry for policy
measurement. The expected rates scenario is based on the
Company's projected future interest rares, while the high
rates and low rates scenarios cover 90% probable upward
and downward mte movements based on the Company's
own interest rate models. Earnings at risk may be estimared
by multiplying the short-term gap positions by passible
changes in interest rates. The potentinl adverse impact on
eamings over the next 12 months is compared 1o an inter-
est mate rigk limit with a sublimit for the term structure risk.
The current interest rate risk limit allows up to 30 basis
paints of sensitivity in the average net interest margin over
the nexe year. The term structure risk sublimit is currently
2 percent of annual net interest income based on the eam-

ings at risk analysis, Subject to these limits, the Company
mary maintain o particular gap position to achieve o more
desirable risk/retum tradeoff. Earnings at risk analysis and
net interest income simulations allow the Company to fully
explore the complex relationships within the gap over rime
and for various rate environments. The results during the
year showed thar the Company's interest mte sensitivity
was well within the policy limit. The net interest income
simulation at December 31, 1996 showed a sensitivity ol

3 hasis points berween the net interest margins for the
high and the expected rate scenarios over the next year.

To get a complete picture of its current interest rate risk
position, the Company must look ar both term structure
risk and s risk. The two most significant components
of basis risk are the Prime/MRA spread and the rate paid
on savings and interest-bearing checking accounts. Ar the
penk of the rave cycle in 1989 and during the fiest quarrer
of 1991, the Prime/MRA spreads as well as lagged move-
ments in other deposit mtes caused spreads o increase to
historie levels, During this time, interest fare contracts
were purchased by the Company to hedge against margin
compression due to declining interest rates. As interest
rates once again began to rise in early 1994 and continued
through mid-1995, the spread between loans and deposits
began 1o rise again as the Prime e increased rapidly and
deposit mtes were slow to react. As o result of this move-
ment, the decline in hedging income was roughly offser
by the increasing loanfdeposit spread. During 1996, the
Company incorporated First Interstare’s inrerest mre risk
pasition into irs own balance sheer and assessed the newly
combined term structure risk and basis risk posirions.

Looking toward managing interest rate risk in 1997, the
Company is confronted with several risk scenarios. If inrer-
est rates rise, net interest income may actually increase i
deposit rates lag increases in marker mtes. The Company
could, however, experience significant pressure on net
interest income if there is a substantial movement in
depasit rates relative to marker mres. This basis risk
potentially could be hedged with interest mte caps, but
the Company believes they are nor cost-effective in rela-
tion to the risk they would mitigare.

A declining interest mte environment might result in a
decrease in loan rates, while deposit rates remain relatively
stable, sinice they did not significantly increase berween
1994 and 1996, This rate scenario could also create sig-
nificant risk to net interest income. The Company has
partially hedged against this risk with interest mue floor
contracts purchased in 1996 and those remaining from
previous years. Based on its current and projected balance
sheet, the Company does not expect that a change in
interest mres would affect its higuidity position,
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TA.EIIE 22 INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company uses interest mte derivative financial
instruments as an assetflinbility management ool o hedge
the Company’s exposure to interest rate lucroarions. The
Company also offers contracts to its customers, but hedges
sich contmers by purchasing other finnncial contraets or
yses the contraces for asset/linbility management.

Table 23 reconciles the beginning and ending notional or
contractual amounts for derivative inancial instruments

TA HllE 23 DERIVATIVE ACTIVITIES

for 1996 and shows the expected remaining maturity at
year-end 1996, Tahle 24 summarizes the notional amount,
expected maturities and weighted average muerest rates
associared with amounts to be received or paid on

i wiLe SWhp g gether with an indica-
tion of the asset/liability hedged. For o further discussion
of derivative financial instruments, refer to Note 18 o
the Financial Statements,
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TAHIIE 24 INTEREST RATE SWAP MATURITIES AND AVERAGE RATES (1)
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LiQuinITY MANAGEMENT

Liguidity refers to the Company's ability to maintain a cash
flow adequate to fund operations and meer obligations and
other commitments on a timely and cost-effective basts,

Inn recent years, core deposits have provided the Company
with a sizable source of relatively stable and low-cost funds.
The Company's average core dipasits and stockholders”
equity funded 89% and 80% of its average total assets in
1996 and 1993, respectively.

The remaining funding of average total assets was
primarily provided by senior and subordinated debrt, deposits
in foreign offices, short-term borrowings (comprised of
federal funds purchased and securities sold under repurchase
agreements, commercial paper and other short-term borrow-
ings) and trust preferred securities. Senior and subordinated
debr avernged $4:6 billion and $3.1 billion in 1996 and 1995,
respectively. Short-term borrowings averaged $2.1 billion
and $3.9 billion in 1996 and 1993, respectively. Trust pre-
ferred securities averaged $82 million in 1996.

s ot wed fuoe msetflibiliny managenment puspases. The notional amount rellects catomes accomitnodations s well s the

The weighred average expected remaining maturity of
the debt securities within the investment securities port-
folio was 2 years and 2 months at December 31, 1996. Of
the $13.4 billion debt securities that were available for sale
at December 31, 1996, $4.5 hillion, or 33%, is expected 1o
mature or be prepaid in 1997 and an additional $3.7 bil-
lion, or 28%, is expected to marture or be prepaid in 1998,
The Company purchased shorter-term dibe securities to
maintain asset liguidity and to fund loan growth.

Oxcher sources of liguidity include maturity extensions
of short-rerm horrowings and sale or runoff of assets.
Commercial and real estate loans toraled $44.1 billion
at December 31, 1996, OF these loans, $15.1 hillion matures
in ome year or less, $14.0 billion matures in over one year
through five years and $135.0 billion matures in over five
years, Of the $29.0 billion that marures in over one year,
$17.8 billion has floating or adjustable rates and $1 1.2 hil-
lion has fised mres. Of the $11.2 billion of fixed-tare loans,

approximately §2.2 hillion represents fised initinl-mee
maortgitge (FIRM) loans. FIRM loans carry fixed rates for
aminimum of 3 years to a maximum of 10 years of the loan
cerm andl earry acljustable mtes thereafier. (Refer o the
Consalidated Starement of Cash Flows for further infor-

trust preferred securities in private placements (see Note 10
10 the Financial Smtements). The proceeds from these
issunnees were invested n Junior subvedinated defermble
interest debentures of the Company. The proceeds fram
the sitle of these debentures were wsed by the Company for

mation on the Company’s cash flows from irs o
investing and hnancing activities.)

Liguidtity for the Parent Company and its subsidinries is
generated through its ability 1o mise funds in o variety of
deinestic and international money and capial markers, and
theough dividends from subsiciaries and lines of credit,

I 1996, the Company filed o shelf registmtion with the
Securiries and Exchange Commission (SEC) that allows
for the issuance of $3.5 billion of senior or subordinared
debt or preferred stock. The proceeds from the sale of any
securities will be wied for generml corporare purposes. The
Company issued $200 million of preferred stock ander
this shelf registration. Ar December 31, 1996, $3.3 hillion
af securities remuined unissued. No additional securities
Frave been issued under this shelf registearion.

In 1996, the Company also filed o universal shelf
regintration statement of $750 million with the SEC which
includes senior and subordinated debt, preferred stock and
common stock of the Company and preferred securities
ol special purpase subsidiary trusts. The vegiseation allows
einch special purpose subsidinry ro issue reust preferred
securities which qualify as Tier 1 capital of the Company
for regulatory purposes. The special pirpose subsidiary
will hold junior subordinared deferrable interest deben-
tures of the Company. Interest paid on these debentures
will be distributed to the holders of the st preferred
seeurities. As a result, distributions wo the holders of the
trust preferred securities will be mx deductible and treared
s inrerest expense in the copsolidared statement of income.
This provides the Company with o more cast-effecrive
meins of obtaining Tier [ capiel than if the Company
itself were to issue addivional preferred stock. In December
1996, the Company issued $400 million in trist preforred
securivies through one trust, Weells Fargo Capital 1. The
proceeds from the sale of these debenures will be used by
the Company for generl corporate purposes. At Decem-
ber 31, 1996, $350 million remained unissued under this

shelf registrarion. (See Note 10 to the Financial Sttements.)
In Jauary 1997, the Company tsued an additional §150
million in trust preferred securities through a new trust,
Wells Fargo Capital 11.

In addition 1o the publicly registered rrust preferred
securities, the Company estblished in 1996 chree special
Purpase trusts, which collecrively issued $750 million of

I | corporate purposes. Similar 1o the reglstered trust
preferred securlties above, these preferned securities qualify
as Tier | capital for regulatory purposes and the interest on
thee debentures i paid as mx deducrible distributions o the
trust preferved security holders.

Iny 1996, a significant portion of the Parent's source of
imeling was due o dividends paid by the Bank toraling
$1.461 million. The dividends received helped o fund the
Company's stock repurchiase program, The Company expecrs
the Parent to continue to receive dividends from the Bank
in 1997, (See Notes 3 and 15 1o the Financial Statements
for a discussion of the restriceions on the Bank's ability to
pay dividends and the Parent Company's financinl scare-
ments, respectively,)

To accommedare future growrh and current business
needs, the Company has a capiral expenditure progrmm.
Capital expenditures for 1997 are estinared ar about
$275 million for equipment fur superntarket branches,
relocarion and remodeling of Company ficilities and soutine
replacement of furniture and equipment. The Company
will fund these expenditures from varous sources, inelud-
Ing retained earmnings of the Company and borrowings of
varions maturities.
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COMPARISON OF 1995 VERSUS 1294

Ncr income in 1995 was $1,032 million, compared with
$841 million in 1994, an increase of 23%. Net income per
share was $20.37, compared with $14.78 in 1994, an increase
of 38%. The percentage increase in per share eamings wits
greater than the percentage increase in net income due o
the Company's stock repurchase program. Return on average
assets (ROA) was 2.03% and return on average common
equity (ROE) was 29.70% in 1995, campared with 1.62%
and 22.41%, respectively, in 1994,

The increase In eamings in 1995 compared with 1994
reflected a $163 million ($94 million afer tix) gain
resulting from the sale of the Company's joint venture
interest in Wells Fargo Nikko Investment Advisors
(WENIA) and a zero loan loss provision, compared with
$200 million in 1994

Net interest income on a taxable-equivalent basis was
$2,655 million in 1995, compared with $2,610 million in
1994. The Company's net interest mangin was 5.80% for
1995, compared with 5.55% in 1994. The increase in the
tmargin was artributable to an inerease in the spread berween
loans and deposits and a change in the mix of average cam-
ingg assets, ps higher-yielding loans, such as credit card and
small business, replaced lower-yielding securities and
single family loans.

Noninterest income was $1,324 million in 1995, compared
with $1,200 million in 1994. Credit card membership and
other eredit card fees increased from $64 million in 1994
10 $95 million in 1995, an increase of 48%. The growth
was predominantly due to late fees and other transaction
fees incurred by customers. The decrease in mutual fund
and annuity sales fees from $64 million in 1994 to §33 mil-
lion in 1995 substantially reflected a lower sales volume
of commission-based fixed-rate annuities, The increase in
“other" fees and e jons in 1995 compared with 1994
includes mortgage loan servicing fees of §55 million and
$17 million, respectively, offset by the related amortization
expense of $39 million and $8 million, respectively.

Trust and investment services income increased 19%
to 5241 million in 1995 compared with 1994 and was
primarily due to greater mutiial fund investment muanage-
ment fees, reffecting the overall groweh in the net assers of
furd families, These fees amounted to $71 million in 1995
compared with $46 million in 1994, The investment secu-
rities losses of $17 million in 1995 largely resulved from the
sale of debt securities from the available-for-sale portfolio.
The investmenr securities gains of $8 million in 1994
teflected the sale of both earporare debt and markerahle
cquity sécurities from the available-for-sale portfolic.

In December 1995, the Company sold its joint venture
interest in WENIA as well as its MasterWorks division
to Barclays PLC of the UK., resulting in a $163 million
pre-tax gain. The Company’s joint venture interest in
WINIA was accounted for as an equity investment under
the equity method. The income from the equity invest-
ment in WENIA, included in noninterest income, toraled
$27 million and $21 million in 1995 and 1994, respectively.
Noninterest income from the MasterWorks division, included
iin “all other” trust el investment services income, totaled
%26 million and $20 million in 1995 and 1994, respectively.

In 1995, losses from dispositions of operations included
2 $70 million fourth quasrter accrunl related to the dispo-
sitton of premides and, to a lesser extent, severance and
miscellaneous expenses associated with the scheduled
closures of 120 waditional retail branch locations. In addi-
tion to the $70 million accrual, there was also a $13 mil-
lion lizbility at December 31, 1995, representing o third
quarter 1995 acerual for the closure of 21 branches. In 1994,
lsses from dispasitions of pperations included fourth quarer
aceruals for the disposition of premises and, wo o lesser
extent, severance of $14 million associared with scheduled
hranch closures and $10 million associated with ceasing
the direct origination of 1-4 family first mortgage loans by
the Company's mortgage lending unit. Partially offserting
these accruals was an $8 million payment received in the
first quarter of 1994 that was contingent upon performance
in relation 1o the alliance formed with Card Establishment
Services (CES), Additional payments from the CES agree-
ment are also contingent upon future performance.

Gains and losses on sales of loans for 1995 included a
first quarter $83 million write-down ro the lower of cost or
estimated marker resulting from the reclassification of certain
types of products within the real estare 1-4 family firse
martgage loan portfolio o mortgage loans held for sale.
During the second hall of 1993, as all mortgage loans held
fior sale were sold and hecause such sales were ar prices
greater than originally estimated, the Company recorded
a $19 million gain on sale.

Noninterest expense increased from $2,156 million in
1994 1o $2,201 million in 1995. The increase in salaries
expense in 1995 compared with 1994 was primarily aterib-
utable to increased temporary help expense and higher
salary levels. The Company's full-time equivalent staff,
including houtly employees, averaged 19,520 in 1995,
compared with 19,558 in 1994

The decrease in incentive compensation from $155 mil-
lior in 1994 to $126 million in 1995 was predominantly due
toa differing mix of produce sales, reflecting a shife away
from commissioned retil products, such as fixed-rre
annuities. Additionally, the decrease reflected a decline
in incentive compensation related to Mortgage Business'
decision ar year-end 1994 o cease the origination of
first mortgages.

The increase in equipment expense to $193 million
in 1995 compared with $174 million in 1994 was related
to a higher level of spending on software and technology
for product development and increased depreciation
expense on equipment related to business initintives and
system upgrules.

It August 1995, the FDIC sipnificantly reduced the
depesit insurance premiums paid by most banks. Under the
revised mte structure (retroactive to June 1, 1995), the best-
mited institutions insured by the Bank Insurance Fund (BIF)
patic] four cents per $100 of domestic deposits, down from

the previous mre of 23 cents per $100. In the third quarter
of 1995, the Company received a $23 million refund for
the OvVErpay of its made for the period June |
through Seprember 30, 1995. In November 1995, the
FDIC further reduced the rate by four cents per $100 of
domestic depasits, effective January 1, 1996, Under the
most recent mte structure, the best-mted institutions
insured by the BIF pay the statutory annual minimum
ssessment of $2,000.

In the fourth quarter of 1995, the Company adopted
Financial Accounting Standard Nos, 121, Accounting for
the Impairment of Long-Lived Assers and for Long-Lived
Assets to be Disposed of (FAS 121), and 122, Accounting
for Mortgage Servicing Rights (FAS 122). These adoptions
did not have s material impact on the inancial smte-
menis. For a further discussion of FAS 121 and 122, refer
to Nete 6 of the Financial Statements.

Toal loans were $35.6 billion ar December 31, 1995, a 2%
decrense from December 31, 1994, The decrease resultid
from the sale of $4.4 hillion of real estate 1-4 family first
mortgoges in 1995, mostly offser by increnses in other
loan porttolios.

There was no provision for loan losses in 1993, compared
with $200 million in 1994, Ner charge-offs in 1995 were
$288 million, or 83% of avernge wial loans, compared
with $240 million, or .70%, in 1994, Loan loss recaveries
were $134 million in 1995, compared with $129 million
in 1994, The allowance for loan losses was 5.04% of rotal
loans at December 31, 1995, compared with 5.73% at
Diecember 31, 1994,

Total nonacerual and restructured loans were
$552 million, or 1.6% of rowal loans, at December 31,
1995, compared with $582 million, or 1.6% of total loans,
at December 31, 1994, Foreclosed assers were $186 million
at December 31, 1995, compared with $272 million at
December 31, 1994,

The average volume of core deposits in 1995 was
$36.6 billion, 7% lower than in 1994, Avernge core depasits
funded 72% of the Company's average total assets in 1995,
compared with 76% in 1994,
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

1
ljnmmnn stock of the Company is resded on the New
York Stock Exchange, the Pacific Stock Exchonge, the

London Stock Exchange and the Frankfure Stock Exchinge.

Thie high, low and end-of-period anmual and quarterly
closing prices of the Company's stock us teported on

the New York Stock Exchange Composite Transietion
Reporring System are presented In the graphs. The num-
her of holders of record of the Company'’s common stock
wits 42,234 ns of January 31, 1997,
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Commen dividends declared per share womlbed $5.20 in
1996, $4.00 in 1995 and $4.00 in 1994, The dividend was
inerensed in thie first quareer of 1995 from $1.00 per share
o $1.15 per share and inereased again to $1.30 per share
Iy Janwary 1996, Quurterly dividends ove considered ue the
Pvand of Diirectons meeting the month following quarter
end. Dividends declared are payable the second month
alter quarter end. The Company, with the approval of the
Board of Directors, intends o continue its present policy
of paying quarterly cash dividends to stockholders, The
level of future dividends will be derermined by the Board
of Direcrors in light of the enmings and financial condi-
iy of the Company,

In 1991, the FRE approved an application by Berkshire
Hathoway, Ine. (Berkshire) to purchase additional shares
of the Company's common stock in the open market, up
ra total of 22%. Berkshine entered into o passiviey agree-
ment with the Company, in which it agreed not to exercise
any control vver the Company's management or policies.
Acconlingly, Berkshine granted its proxy to the Company
1o vote Berkshire's shares in accondance with the recom-
mendations of the Board of Directors of the Company. As
avesule of the issunnce of addirionsl Company commaon
stock in the Merger, Berkshire's percentage awnership of
the Company's stock was reduiced from approximately
14.5% ar December 31, 1995 1o approximately 7.6%.
Based on this reducrion in percentage ownership to below

10%, Berkshire communicared to the FRB and to Wells
Fargo its desive to terminate commitments previously
made, fncluding the passivity sgreement. The FRE and
the Company agreedd to Berkshire's request.

The accompumying notes ane an insesgral puart of these sumesens.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

(i milliona)

1996 1995 19
INTEREST INCOME
Fedural tunds sold and securities purchased under réesnle agreements § 29 b4 § 7
lvestient securities 779 599 40
Mortgnge loans held for sale - i -
Loans 5,688 3,403 3015
Other 27 i 3
Teienl interest income 6,523 4,085 3,765
INTEREST EXPENSE
Dl:posiﬂl 1,586 997 854
Federal funds purchised wnd securiies sold under repurchise agreements 92 199 99
Commiercial paper and other short-term barrowings 16 32 10
Senior and subordinared deby 302 FIE] 192
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interests in Company’s subordinnted debentures 6 - -
Totnl interest expense ) 2,002 1431 1,155
NET INTEREST INCOME 4,521 21,654 2610
Provision for loan losses 105 - 200
Met interest income after provision for loan losses 4,416 Zﬁ‘ié 2.'.11.0
NONINTEREST INCOME
Service charges on deposic secounts 868 478 473
Fees and commissions 740 433 387
Trust and investmient services incoimie 377 el 03
Investment securities gaing (losges) 10 {17 8
Sale of joint venture interest - 163 -
Other 205 2 129 '
Total noninterest income 2,200 1,324 1,200 |
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries 1,357 T3 67l
Incentive compensition 227 126 155
Employee benefies 373 187 201
Eguipment j9g 193 174 I
Net pecupancy 366 21 215
Goodwill 250 35 %
Care depiit intungible 243 42 49
Other 1422 94 655
Toral noninterest expense 4,637 2,201 2,156
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1,979 1,777 1,454
Incame tax expense 908 745 613
NET INCOME §1,071 $1,032 § 841
NET INCOME APPLICABLE TO COMMON STOCK $1,004 $ 990 $ 798
PER COMMON SHARE . o
Net income $12.21 $20.37 $14.78
Dividends declred $ 5.20 $ 4.60 $ 4.00
Average common shares outstanding . 822 _‘h“u_t‘: 53‘_(.9
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(v o lfoniad

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks

Federal funds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements
Investment securities at fair value

Loans
Allowance for lpan losses

Net loans
Due from customers on acceptances
Accrued interest receivable
Premises and equipment, ner
Core deposit intangible
Goodwill
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Noninterest-bearing deposits
Interest-bearing deposits

Toral deposits
Federal funds purchased and securities sold under repurchase agreements
Commercial paper and ather short-rerm borrowings
Acceptances outstanding
Accrued interest payable
Other liabilities
Senior debr
Subordinated debe
Guaranteed preferred beneheial interests in Company's subordinared debentures

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Preferred stock

Common stock—$5 par value, authorized 150,000,000 shares;
issued and outstanding 91,474,425 shares and 46,973,319 shares

Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Cumulative foreign currency tmnslation adjustments

Investment securities valuation allowance

Total stockholders' equity
Total liabilities and stockhalders' equity

The sccomfariying nodes are an integrad pecet of these stolements.

§ 11,736
187
13,505

67,389
2,018

65,371
197

665
2,406
2,038
7,322
5,461

$108,868

§ 29,073
52,748
81,821

2,029
401
197
171
3,947
2,120
2,940
1,150

600

$ 3375
177
8920

35,582
1,794

33,788
98
308
862
166
382
2240

$50316

$10,391
28,591
18,982
2,781
195

98

85
1,071
1,783
1,266

489

235
1,135
2,174
(4)

2
4,055
$30,316

sdnsinia

BiEs

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS®’ EQUITY

(it milticin)

BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 1993

Net income 1994
Commaon stock issued under
employee benefir and
dividend reinvestment plans
Preferred stock redeemed
Common stock repurchased
Preferred stock dividends
Common stisck dividends
Change in unrealized net giins,
after applicable txes
Tramsfer

Net change
BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 1994

Net incaome--1995
Common stock issued under
employee beneht and
dividend reinvestment plans
Common stock repurchased
Preferred stock dividends
Common stock dividends
Change in unrealized net losses,
after applicable taxes
Transfer

Net change
BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 1995

Net income 1996
Preferred stock issued to
First Interstate stockholders
Preferred stock issued,
net of issuance costs
Common stock issued 1o
First Intesstate stockholders
Common stock fssued under
employee berefit and
dividend reinvestment plans
Preferred stock redeemed
Comman stock repurchased
Preferred stock dividends
Common stock dividends
Change in unrealized net gaing,
after applicable raxes
Fair value adjustment related 1o
First Interstate stock options

Net chunge
BALANCE DECEMBER 31, 1996

Preferoed
wock

$ 639

(150)

150

g

3|

5,

350

200

(439)

The accomparying notes are an ibegral part of these statemenis,

Caominon
stock

$279

3

(26)

4
(23)

_an
255

260

4

(42)

25
8

Audditioral
povidde iny
capital

$ 551

54
(734)

&6
(822)

1,000
4
1,135

10
(€Y
11,037

113

(2,116)

111
9152
$10,287

Rerined

$

carmings

2,829

841

(43)
(218)

(1,000)
(420)

2409
1,032

(42)
(225)

(1.000)
(235)

2174

1,071

(67)
(429)

Ferelgn
CUITEnCY
translation
adjuscments

5(4)

@

$4)

Investment
securities
valunticmn

allowance

5 21

(131)

(131)
(110)

(3)

NG
LI )
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Tatal
stock-
holders’
equirty

5 4315

841

57
(150)
(760)

(43)
(218)

(131)

(404)
3911
1,032

197

11,297

117
(439)
(2,158)
(67)
(429)

(3}

_in
10,057

$14,112




iy mnilliond)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustn
rowvisivn for loan loses
Dleprectation nod amortization
Lawsies om dispawition of operations
Chabny o saale of joint venture interest
Deferred ineome ax expenye (henchr)
Inerense (decrease) in net deferred loan foes
Net (inenense) decrense in acorned interest receivable
Weitedinen on muortege loans held for sale
Net {(lecrease) increise in pecrued interest payable
MNet decrense (Inerease) in loans acguired for sale
Other, net

Net cash provided by opemting activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
lovestment securities:
At fnir value:
Proceeds from sales
Proceeds from prepaymeits and maturities
Purchases
At cost:
Proceeds from prepiyments and mauritics
Purchases
Ciash neguired from Fisst Interstte
Proceeds from sales of morgage hans held for sale
Net (Inerease) decrease In loans resulting from orginations wnd collections
Proceeds from sales (ineluding participations) of loans
Purchuses (ineluding participations) of loans
Proceeds from sales of foreclosed ssets
et dicrense in federal funds sold and securities purchiased
under resale aprecments
Uther, vet

Mt conh provided (osed) by nvesting setivities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net (du:mm‘ incremse in deposics
Mot (decrease) increme in shor-teom bormwings
Proceeds from issuance of senior dibe
Repayment of senior delbi
Proceeds from issuance of subordinaced debt
Repayment of subordinated debr
Proceeds from issuinee of puaranteed preferred beneficial interests in
Company's suborclinared debentures
Proweeds from issusnee of preferred stock
Privceeds from issunce of common stock
Reslempricm of preferred stock
churcium- of commuon stock
Payment of cash dividends on preferred stock
Pryment of cash dividends on commaon stock
Chther, ner
Net cash provided (used) by financing octivities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (due from banks)
Clash und cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year
Supplemental diselomres of cosh Tow information
Sash paid during the year for:
Inrerest
Enecime taxes
Nomcush investing and financing activities:

Trarisfers from mvestment Securties At cost b investment securities ut firr value

Translers fram loans t i
Tranwfers from lims t

ition of First Interstate
mimion stock fssed
value of preferred siock issied
vitlue of stock oprivn

Fair vitlue of assets acquined

Fair value of labilivies assumed

i assets
lenins held for sale

The secennguuizsing notes ane di innegral ot of thess diinments.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLows

ents 1 reconietle pet income o nee cash provided by operating perivities:

Yeur eoded Diecember 31,

1906
§ LO71
105

BOY

95

169

22
“49)
()

390
{1,536)
1,075

719
5,047
(2,759)
6,030
2,301

364
(133)
153
2,064
_(756)
13,032
(4,609)
(892)

1,260
{1,183}
800

(5,746)
B,361
3,375

$11,736
g 1,916
641

$ =
g 141
$11,297
360
11

55,797
51,214

1995
51,082

m

1994
§ B4
20
46
i
(32) Wells Farzo 8 Company ( Parent) is o bank holding com-
(‘E?} pany whose principal subsidiary is Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.
- (Bank ). Besidies servicing millions of cuscomers in ten
(" western stares, Wells Fargo & Company and Subwidiaries
L?;} (('b!np.'mr) provide a full range of banking and fimancial
e services to commercial, ngribusiness, teal estore and small
List fusiness customers acoss the nation.
The accounting and reporting palicies of the Company
confurm with generally nccepred accounting principles
] (GAAP) andl prevailing pracrices within the banking
gﬂ, industry. The preparation of hnoncial statements in con-
formity with GAAP requires management 1o make estimates
3,866 ancd mssumprions that affect the reported amounts of assets
(2,598) and linbilities ar the dive of the fmancil starements and
- Income and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
(3,338) resules could difer from those estimnees. Ciertain imounts
{;‘?‘;j In.tlu: I}n.n“c‘iul stitements for prior years .lli\\'t' lcen rechis-
240 sified to conform with the current hnancial statement pre-
sentation. The following is a deseription of the signibcanr
I";ﬁ, accounting polictes of the Company.
g CONSOLIDATION
il
! m The consolidkaead Tmaneiol statements ol the Company
(1.101) inelude the nccounrs of the Parent, the Bank and other
< bank and nonbank subsidiaries of the Parent.
(526) Significant majority-owned subsidinries are consolidited
- an i line-by-line basis. Significant intercompany sccounts
= ancl transactions are eliminated fn consolidation. Other
“g] stibsicdinries and athlinres in which_rhuw Is ot lenst 20%
(7600 ownership wre geneally necounted for by the equity method;
15:'3; those in which there is less than 20 ownership are gen-
ey erally carried av cost: Subsidiories and affillstes vhar are
149 acconmted for by cither the equity or cost method are
== included in oeler pssers.
1644
$ 2974
$ 1,158
§ 680
. .
5 I
1 -
§ =

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

SECURITIES

Stecurities wre acammred for peconding o their purpose and
halding peried.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Securitivs generally ncquired o meet long-term invesement
objectives, inclading yieldand lguidity management
purposes, are classified as investment securities, Realized
eains and losses are recordied in noninterest income using
the identified certihicare method. For cervain debr securities
(for example, Government National Mortgage Associn-
thon securitics), the Company anticipates prepayments of
principal in the caleulition of the effective yield.

Securities at fair value Debr securities that may not be
held until maturity and marketable equity securities are
considered available for sale and, as such, are classified as
securities earried ar fair value, with unrealized gains and
lossses, after applicable tses, reported in a sepamte compa-
nent of stockholders” equity. The estimared fair value of
investments is derermined hased on eurrent quotarions,
where availuble. Where current guotations are nor avail-
able, the estimared fair valie is determined based primarily
i the presenr value of furaee cash lows, adjusted for the
qualivy rring of the secirities, prepayment assurprions
and other factors. Declines in the value of debt securivies
andd marketable equity securities that are considered other
than temporary are recorded in noninterest income as o
lisss on investment securities.

Securities at cost Debt securities acguired with the posi-
tive intent and ability o hold w marority are classified as
securities carried ar hisrorical eost, adjusted for amortization
af premivm and sceretion of discount, where appropriare.
18 it s probeable ehar the carrying value of any debe security
will oot e readizad due ro other-thin-temporary impainment,
the estinmed loss s reconded in noninterest income s a loss
om investment securities, I n decision is made w dispose of
securities at cost or should the Company become unable
to hold securlties wntil maturiry, they would be reclissified
tosecurities ar fur value, .
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TRADING SECURITIES -

Securities acquired for shore-term apprecintion or other
rading purposes are recorded in a rading porefolio and
are carried at fair value, with unrealized gainsand losses
recorded in noninterest income.

NONMARKETABLE EQUITY SECURITIES

Nonmiarketable equity securities are acquired for various
purpeses, such bs troubled debt reseructurings aind as o
regulacory requirement (for example; Federal Reserve Bank
stock). These securities are necounted for at cont and are
included in other nssers as they do not fall within the defini-
tion of an investment security since there are westrictions
on their sale or liquidation, The asser value is reduced
when declines in value are considered w be ortbuer than
temporary and the estimated loss is reconded in non-
interest income s 1 loss from equity investments,

LOANS

Lowns are repented at the principal amount ouestanding, net
of ynesmed income, Uneamed income, which includes
deferred fees net of deferred divect incremental loan origi-
mation costs, is nmortized o interest income generally over
the contractual life of the loan using an interest method
or the steipht-line method if it is not materially different.

Loans identified as held for sale are carried ar the lower
of cast or marker value, Nonrefundable fees, related direct
loan originarion costs and related hedging gains or losses,
il any, are deferned and recognized as o component of the
wnin or loss on sale reconded in noninterest income.

Nonaccrual loans Loans are placed on nonacerual statis
upon becoming 90 days post due as 1o Berest ar principal
(unless both well-secured and in the process of eallection),
when the full timely collecrion of interest ar principal
becomes uncertain or when o portion of the prineipal bal-
ance has been cil:u]:t'(luﬂ- Reol estate 1-4 fnmily Josans
(hoth first liens and junior liens) are placed on nonacerual
status within 130 days of becoming past due as o imerest or
principal, regardless of security. Generally, consumer loans
not secured by real estare are only placed on nonacenml
status when a portion of the principal has been charged
off, Genetally, such louns are entirely charged ol within
180 days of becoming past due.

When a loan is placed on nonscerun! status, the necrued
and unpaid inrerest receivable s reversed and the loan is
accounted for on the cash or cost recovery method there-
after, unril qualifying for rerum 1 scorml st Generally,
a loan may be returned to scerual starus when all delinguent
interest and principal become current in accordance with
the terms of the loan agreement or when the loan is both
well-secured and in the process of collection.

Impaired loans Effective January 1, 1995, the Company
adopted Starement of Financinl Accounting Stndards
No. 114 (FAS 114), Accounting by Creditars for Impair-
ment of a Loan, as amended by FAS 118 (collectively
referred to ns FAS 114). These Starements nddress the
accounting treatment of certain impaired loans and amend
FASB Starement Nos. 5 and 15, However, these Smrements
do not sddress the overall adequacy of the ollowsnee for
loan lasses and do not apply o large groups of smaller-
halance homogeneous lonns, such as most consumer, real
estare -4 family irst morrgage and small business loans,
unless they have beer involved in a restructuring,

A loan within the scope of FAS 114 is considered
impaired when, based on eurrent information and evenrs,
it is probable that the Company will be unable o collect
all amogunts due sccording ro the contmctual terms of the
loan agreement, including scheduled interest payments. For
a loan that hos been restrucrured, the contractual verms of
the loan agreement refer to the contractual rerms specified
by the original loan agreement, not the conrractual terms
specified by the restructuring agreement.

For loans covered by these Starements, the Company makes
an assessment for impairment when and while such loans
are o nonacerual, or the loan has been resenictured, When
a loan with unigue risk chameteristics has been idenrified
as being impatred, the smount of impairment will be mea-
sured by rthe Company using discounted cnsh flows, except
when it is determined that the sole (remaining) source of
vepayment for the loan is the opemtion or liguidation of the
underlying collateral. In such cases, the current fair value
of the collateral, reduced by coses to sell, will be used in
place of discounted eash flows. Additionally, some impnlmf
loans with commitments of less than $1 million are aggre-
gared for the purpose of measuring impsairment using
historical loss fucrors us a means of measurement.

If the measurement of the impaired loan is less than
the recorded investment in the loan (including acerued
imterest, net deferred loan fees or costs and unmmortized
premium or discount ), an impairment is recopnized by
creating or adjusting an existing allacation of the allow-
ance for loan losses. FAS 114 does not change the timing
of charge-offs of loans to reflect the amount ultmarely
expecred o be collected.

Restructured loans In cases where o borrower experiences
financinl difficulties and the Company makes certain con-
cessionary modifications to contmctial terms, the loan is
classified s a restructured (accruing) loan, Subsequent o
the adoprion of FAS 114, loans ressructured ar a rare equal
1o or greater than that of & new loan with comparable risk
at the time the contract s modified may be excluded from
the impairment assessment and may cease to be considered
impaired loans in the calendis years subsequent tw the
restructuring if they are not impaired based on the
maodificd rerms.

Generally, a nonacerual loan that is rescruerured remaing
on nonaccrual fora period of six months to demonstrate
thar the borrower can meet the restructured rerms, How:
ever, performance prior to the restructuring, or significant
events thar coincide with the restructuring, are included
in assessing whether the borrower can mect the new terms
and may resalt in the loan being returned w accrual ar
the time of restructuring or after a shorter performance
period. I the borrower's ability 1o meet che revised payment
schedule bs uncertain, the loan remains ¢lassified as a
nanacerual loan.

Allowance for loan losses The Company’s determination
af the level of the allowance for loan losses rests upon
various judgments and assumptions, including general eco-
nomic conditions, loan portfolio composition, prior loan
loss experience, evaluation of credit risk related to certain
individual borrowers and the Company's ongoing exami-
natlon process and that of ies regulators. The Company
considers the allowanee for loam losses adeguare to cover
losses inherent in loans, loan commirments and standby
letters of credit.

PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment are stited at cost less accumulited
depreciation and amareization. Capiral leases are included
iny and equi at the lized amount less
accumulated smortization.

Depreciarion and amortization are computed primarily
using the straight-line method. Estimared useful lives mnge
up 1o 40 years for buildings, 2 vo 10 years for furniture and
equipment, and up mw the lease term for leasehold improve-
ments. Capitalized leased sssets are amortized on o straighte
line basis over the lives of the respective leases, which
generally rmnge from 20 to 35 years.

GOODWILL AND IDENTIFIABLE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill, representing the excess of purchase price over
the fair value of net nssers acquired, results from nequisi-
tioms made by the Company, Substantially ull of the
Campany’s goodwill is being amortized using the soraight-
line method over 25 years. The remaining period of
amortiztion, on o welghted nverage basis, nnim:ilnillm]
24 years at December 31, 1996,

Core deposit intangibles are amortized on an acceler-
ared basis based on an estimated useful life of 10 10 15 years,
Certain identifinble intangible assets thar are included in
other assers are generally smortized using an accelerred
method over an ariginal life of 5 w 15 years. Approximately
38% of the December 31, 1996 remaining balance will be
amortized in 3 yenrs,

The Company reviews irs intungible assets periodically
fior other-than-temporary impatrment. If such impairment
is indicated, recaverbility of the asset Is asessed hased an
expected undiscounted net cash flows,

INCOME TAXES

The Company files a consolidared federal income rax
return. Consolidared or combined stite tx retums are
filed in cermin stares, including California, Income mxes
are generlly allocared o Individual subsidiaries as if each
hiad filed 1 separate rerurn, Payments are made wo the Parene
by those subsidinries with net tx liabilities on a sepamte
return hasis. Subsidinries with et tax losses and excess 1ax
credits receive payment for these benefits from the Parenr.

Deferred income tx assers and liabiliries are derermined
using the liability (or balanee sheet) method. Under this
method, the ner deferred tax asser or liability is determined
hased on the tax effects of the differences between the
Dbosok and tax bases of the various balance sheet pssets and
linhilities and gives currens recognition to changes in rx
rtes and laws,

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Interest rate derivatives The Company uses interest
rate derivarive financial instruments {(urures, caps, floors
aned swaps) primanily to hedge mi in the mte
maturity of loans and their funding sources, Gains and lesses
on interest rate futures are deferred and amortized as o
component of the interest income or expense m|lunm] o
the asset o liability hedged. Amounts payable or recel
for switps, caps and foors are acorued with the passage of
time, the effect of which is included in the interest income

e
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or expense reported on the asser or lability hedgped; fees
on these pneial contmets are amortized over their
conerneranl Hife ns a compotient of the Interest reported on
e asset or abilivy hedged. 1 hedged aser or lability
settles before maturity of the interest rate devivative hrun-
cial instruments used as g hedge, the derfvarives are closed
ant or sertled, and previousdy untecognized hedge resulis
wned the ner settlement upon close-out or termination are
sounited for s part of the gains and losses on the asset or
linbilivy hedgel. 1F inverese rave dervarive inancisl instr-
menits used tnan eflective hedge are closed our or termimared
betore the hedged item, previously unrecogmized hedge
resules sl the nee sertlement upon cldse-out or terming-
thon are deterred and amortized over thee life of the asse
o liability hedged. Cash flows resulting from interest rre
derivative st s thut are ace 1 for as
Iecligies of wssers and liabilivies ave classitiad i the sime
catepory as the cash lows from the items being hedged.

Ineerest rare derivarive financial instruments entered
TRV Jum a0y A I'“‘"l“ T s ﬂnd I e
dervarive trancinl mseruments used o offser the inrerest
rate risk of those contracs are carried o fair value with
vireilized gains aod losses recorded m noninterest income.
Caaly owes resulting from ioterest e derivative hnascial
instruments carried we e valdue are classibed as aperacing
cusly flows.

Clredir risk related v interest mte derivative hoancial
Instruments is considered and, if material, provided for
separately from tie allowance for loan losses,

Foreign exchange derivatives The Company enters
o forelpn exchange derivative hnancial instruments
(farward and spor cpnteaets and opricns) primarily as an
pecommodirion ro customers and offsets the relired foreign
exchange risk with other foreign exchange derivarive
tnancial instruments, AlL contmcrs are carried at faie value
with unrealized gains and losses recorded in noninteresy
ineome. Cosdy flows resulting from foreign exchange
derivarive hnancial instruments are elassified as opemting
washy lows, Credin visk relaved o horeign exchange deriva-
tive binancial instruments is considered and, I miterial,
prowhided for seg Iy from the all e for loan losses.

NET INCOME PER COMMON SHARE

Net tncome per common shaee is computad by dividing
net incorae (afrer dedueting dividends on preferred stock)
by the averge number of common shares outsending
during the year. The impact of commuon stock equivalens,
such s stock options, amd ather potentially dilurive secu-
vittes s not materialy therelore, they are nor included in
the compuration,

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS TO BE
ADOPTED IN FUTURE PERIODS

In June 1996, the Financial Accotinting Srandards Boand
(FASE) issued Statement of Financial Accounting Stan-
dard Mo 125 (FAS 125), Accounting for Transfers and
Servicing of Finuncinl Assets wod Exeinguishment of Linbili-
ties, This Statement provitles guidance for disvinguishing
tramnfers of fimaneinl assers that are sales from teansfers
that are secured bormowings. FAS 125 supersedes FAS 76,
77 and 122, while amending both FAS 65 and 115, The
Statement is effective January 1, 1997 and s 1o be applied
prospectively, Enrlier implementation is not permirred. In
Decerber 1996, the FASE issuied FAS 127 which defers
certain provisions of FAS 125 for one year,

A veansfer of hrancial nsers in which control is surren-
dered over rthose assers is accounted for as a sale o the
extent that consicertion other than beneficial interests in
the ransferred assets bs received inthe exchange. Liabilirvies
and derivatives incurred or ohtained by the trnsfer of
fimancial nssets are requined o be messaeed at fair value, if
prct icable. Alsa, ANy SCTVICing uesers and other remined
interests in the rransferned nssers must be mensured by allo-
cating the previous carrying value berween the msser sold
el the interest verinied, i1 any, based on their relativee fair
varluies at the dore of transtier. For each servicing contract
in existence belore January 1, 1997, previously recoghizad
servicing rights aned exeess servicing receivables dhat do not
exceed contrerually specified servicing are required ro be
combined, nerof sy previosly recoenised servicing oblig-
vions under that contrer, as a servicing asset ar liabiliey.
Previously recopnized servicing receivablis that exceed
contractually specified servicing fees are meyuired to b
reclnssthed as interest-only strips receivible.

The Stavement also reguires an assessment of inferest.
only strips, loans, other receivables and remined inrereses
i gecuritizacions. 11 these nssets can be contmerunlly
prepaid or otherwise serled such thar the holder would
not recover substantially all of ity reconded investment,
the asser will e mensured like available-forsale securities
or imiding securlties, under FAS 115, This assessinent is
requited for financial assers held on or acquired alter
January 1, 1997,

The adoption of FAS 125 1s not expected 1o have a
materin] effect on the Company’s inancial statements.

e OC T e e e ORI e e e e

MERGER WITH FIRST INTERSTATE BANCORP

On April 1, 1996, the Company complered jrs acquisithon
(Merger) of Fies Interstare Bancorp (Fiest Interstare), the
14th fargest bank holding company in the naton as of
March 31, 1996 with 405 offices in Californin sind o toml
of approsimorely 1,150 offices in 13 western states. The
Merger tesulted dn the ereation of the eighth largest bank
holding eompany it the United States based on asets ns
of Devember 31, 1996, The purchase price of the transaction
was approscimately $11.3 billion based on Wells Fargo's
shirre price on Junuaary 19, 1996, the bt cading day before
Wells Fargo sl Fiest [ntersmre agreed on an eschange ratlo
First Interstare shareholders received twoethirds of a share
of Wells Fargo common stock for each share of commpn stock
owned; 52,001,970 shares of the Company'’s commuin stock
waere issued. Each share of First Interstare preferred srock
was converted inm the right o receive one share of the
Company's preferred stock. Each outstanding mowd uneser
clsed option granted by First Inrerstate was converted into
an aprion o purchise Compaty common stock based on
the original plan and the agreed upon exchange mrio,

The Menger was accounted for as a purchise mrnsaction.
Aceordingly, the results of operations of First Interstare ane
Included with those of the Company for periods subsequent
1o thee dave of the Merger (1., the financial information
for periods prior o April 1, 1996 included in this Annual
Report excludes First Interstate), The name of the com-
bined company is Wells Fargo & Company.

The major camponents of monagement's plan for the
combined company include the realignment of First
Interstire’s husinesses w rellect Wells Farpo's struce,
comsolicdation of retail brnnches and adminismtive facilities
aned reduction in staffing levels. As aresult of this plian,
the adjustments to goodwill included acerals wraling
approximorely $302 million (3178 million slter mx)
relared o the disposition of premises, including an acefunl
aof $116 millivn (568 million afrer tx) nssocinted with the
dispositions of traditional former First Interstnce branehes
in California and our of stare. The Californin dispositions
included 176 branch closures during 1996, The Company
has also enrered inro defimitive agreements wirth several
imstitutions 1o sell 20 former First Interstare branches,
including depesis, locared in California. The sales of 17
of these branches were closed in the fisg quarter of 1997,
The out-oi-stare dispositions asociated with the goodwill
adjustment ane expected to be completed In 1997, Addi-
tionally, the adjustments to goodwill inclisded geenuls of
approximately $415 million ($245 million after mx)
relired to severance of former First Interstate employees
throughour the Company who will be disphaced rhrongh
December 31, 1997, Severnnee paymuents of $131 million
were paid during 1996,

Asa condition of the Merger, the Company was reguired
by regulitory agencies w divest 61 First Intersiane brnches
in Califormian. The Company complered the sale of these
hranches to Home Savings of Americn, principal subsidiary
of HLE Ahmansin & Company, in September 1996, [n
addivion, the Compiny completed the sale of the former
First Interstate banks in Wyoming, Montana and Alsska
in the fourth quarter of 1996, Thie 61 branches and the
thiree banks had npgregate assers of approximaely $1.7 bil-
Lion and spgregate deposits of approximarely $2.4 billion.

Thie Company enterad into an agreement with The Bank
of New York o sell the Corparate and Municipal Bond
Administration business. The sale is schesduled ro close
during the hirse quarter of 1997,

Other significant sdjusemenes wo poodwill included the
serite-off of First Interstate’s existing goodwill and other
Incangibles of $701 million,

The unaudied pro foomm amoins in the mble below are
presented for informational purpodes and are nor necessarily
Indicarive of the vesults of operations of the combined
cumpany for the periods presented. These smonnts are also
not necessarily fndicative of the furre resulis of opertions
al the combined company. In particalar, the Company
expects to achieve significant aperting cost svings as
a result of the Merger, which have nior been melided in
the unasdired pro forma amounes.

The following unaodited pro formn combined sumnry
of itcome gives effect to the combination as if the Merper
wits comsunmated on Jonoary 1, 1995,

UNAUDITED PRDO FORMA COMBINED
FIMAMCIAL DATA

Ll s lfisens, v et byt Juna)

19w Jimag
Summary of income
Nt initenest income $5.125 M
Prorpbsdenny four Lisany lmsios 105 .
Nohinterest incone 2,505 2428
Nomintenen expense 1) 4826 4870
Net o (1) L4s1 1580
Per commaon share
Mer mwome i1 51537 S15.19
Divaikinds declaal 520 460
Average common shares outstamling 915 w0

(11 Mymsrrsrenonn expernse cxcfiides $257 malbion E524% million atier vad el 575 mil
Digyen 0525 bl hiioms alen o) door b goones prvcbes] Dnsvandser 1, 1006 qonl 1005,
denghecrivedy, of somstwciumaog serger et e moondial Ty Firo e
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The unaudited pro forma combined net income of
$1,481 million for the year ended December 31, 1996 con-
sists of second, third and fourth quarter 1996 net income
of the combined company of $807 million, hrst quarter 1996
net ineome of the Company of $264 million and a finse quarter
net loss of First Interstate of $23 million, plus unaudited
pro forma adjustments of $433 million, The unaudited
pro forma combined net income of $1,580 million for the
year ended December 31, 1995 consists of net income of the
Company of $1,032 million and First Interstate of $885 mil-
lion, less unaudived pro formu adjustments of $337 million.
The unaudived pro forma combined net income for both
periods Includes amortization of $288 million relating
10 57,191 million exeess purchase price over fair value of
First lnterstate’s net assets acquired (goodwill), Goodwill
is amortized using the strighe-line method over 25 years.

I/ CasH, LOAN AND DIVIDEND RESTRICTIONS

Goodwill may change as certnin estimates and contin-
gencies are finalized, although any adjustments are not
expected tw have a significant effect on the ultimate amownt
af gaadwill.

In aeldition to Fiese Interstate premise and severance costs
affecting goodwill, an estimated $60 million, $80 million
and $300 million of costs related to the Company'’s premises,
employees and operations as well as all costs relaring to
systems conversions and other indirect, integrmtion costs
were expensed during the second, third and fourth quarrers,
respectively, The Company expects to incur additional
integration coses, which will be expensed as incurred. With
respect to timing, it is assumed thar the integration will be
completed and thar such costs will be incurred nor later
than 18 months after the closing of the Merger.

Federal Reserve Board regulations regquire reserve balances
o deposits to be maintained by the Company’s banking
subsidiaries with the Federl Reserve Banks, The average
required reserve balance was $2.0 billion and $1.2 billion
in 1996 and 1995, respectively.

The Bank is subject to certain restrictions under the
Federal Reserve Act, including restrictions on extensions
of credit to ivs uffilintes. In particular, the Bank is probibited
from lending ro the Parent and its nonbank subsidiaries
unless the loans are secused by specified collateral, Such
secured louns and other regulited transactions made by the
Bank {including its subsidiaries) are limived it amount as
o each of ity affilinees, including the Parent, i 10% of the
Bank's capital stock and surplus (as defined, which for this
purpose represents Ter 1 and Tier 2 capital, as caleulated
under the risk-based eapital guidelines, plus the balanee of
the allowance for loan losses excluded from Tier 2 capital)
anl, in rhe nggregare ro all of its affiliates, v 20% of the
Bank's capital stock and surplus. The capiral stock and
surplus at December 31, 1996 was $9 hillion.

Dhvidends payable by the Bank ro the Parent without
the express approval of the Office of the Comptroller of

the Currency (OCC) are limited to the Bank’s retained
net profits for the preceding two calendar years plus
retained net profits up to the dare of any dividend declara-
tion in the current calendar year. Retained ner profits are
defined by the QUC as net income, less dividends declared
during the periad, borh of which are based on regulatory
accounting principles. Based on this definition, the Bank
declared dividends in 1996 and 1995 of $650 million in
excess of its net income of $2,431 million for those years.
Therefore, before it con declare dividends in 1997 withour
the approval of the OCC, the Bank must have net income
of $650 million plus an amount equal o or greater than
the dividends declared in 1997, Dividends declared by
the Bank in 1996, 1995 and 1994 were $1,461 million,
$1,620 million (including a $489 million deemed dividend)
and $1,001 million, respectively.
The Company’s other banking subsidiaries are subject
to the same restrictions as the Bank. However, any such
reserictions have not had a marerial impacr on the banking
bsidiaries or the C
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INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The following tble provides the major components-of investment seeurities 8t fair value and af cost:

1986
Cowi Fatimaned  Entinsared  Estimated
wnrvalized  uneealized ke vadue
forons gabie  pross Josses
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE
SECURITIES AT
FAIR VALUE:
LLS. Trensury sccuritios § 2.824 S8 $3 § 2897
Securities of US.
EOVITIIENT MEnCica
el cosperesitions (19 7043 46 3% 7050
Privine collarenslized
mortgase ohlignrions (3 3,237 16 23 32%
Orher 342 2 1 343
Tl dhetir securivies 13,446 80 66 13,460
Marketuhle squiry seeurities I8 7 - 45
Towal $13,464 $107 $66  $13.505
HELD-TO-MATURITY
SECURITIES AT COST:
LIS, Trewsiiny seciaritics ] - 5 - §- 5
Sectritienof US,
ETTIent Bgencics
el corporarions (1 - - -
Privare eolliseralized
myrggie obligivom 2y - - -
Onber - - -
Towal & - 5 - $- 3

Phiveniber 11,

(L]

o Bamiaied Earimanel G Esaimated
untenlized  Gpsalisnd fisix vl

g gais g b

31,047 513 53 $1,157 § 302 $ a2
5,218 5} 30 5223 1470 1,380
PR | 9 A A F 1290 1178
169 12 ~ 161 4 EE]
4,855 o 41 #8854 1162 1958
18 19 - " 16 i
$8,473 S8 41 8020 S8 §1.089
§F - = ] 5§ - sLi $1,720
- - - 5,304 5101

- - - - 130 L2l

- - = = 147 141

& - § - $- § - F5.619 38,185

A1) Al secuarislis of 1L, jervetisseie sgieneies ind corportions are nwsgpe ki s,

{2) Suks 1 i I
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In November 1995, the FASB permitted @ one-time
apportunity for companies 1o reassess by December 31, 1995
their clissification of securities under Statement of Finan-
cial Accounting Standards No. 115 (FAS 115), Accounting
for Certain Investments in Debr and Equity Securities. As
 result, on Nowember 30, 1995, the Company reclassified ol)
of its helduro-mararity secarities at cost portfolio of $6.5 bil-
lion o the available-for-sale securities at fair value portfolio
in order o provide increased liguidiey flexibility 1o meet
anticipated loan growth. A relared unrealized ner after-
tax lass of $6 million was recarded in stockholders’ equity.

Proceeds from the sale of securities in the available-for
satle partfolio vataled $719 million, $674 million and

A wtrmatage olslig AAA-tmed borsls collaesatized by 14 famiby cosiclintial firr montigige

F18 million in 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. The
salies of debt securities in the available-for-snle parrfolio
resulted noa $ 1 million gain, w $13 million loss and o

35 million gain in 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively, These
were sold for ssserfLinbility manpgement preirpeses. Adidi-
tionally, a $1 million loss was realized in 1994 resulring
from a write-down due 1o other-than-temporary mpaire
ment in the farvalue of certain debe seeurities. The sales
of marketable equity securities in rhe nvailable-for-sale
partfolio resulted 0w gain of $9 million, none and $4 mil-
lion in 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively. Additionally,

a 84 million loss was realized in 1995 resulting from o
write-down of certain equity securities due 1o other-thun-
temporary inpairment.
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The following rable provides the remaining contractinl
principal maturities and yields lmxuhln:-m]uiv_ul:nr tusis)
of debit securities within the investment portfolio. The
remaining contractual principal muturities fur mortgage-
hackied securitics were allocated assuming no prepayments.

Expectes] remaining matarities will differ from contractuil
maturithes becatse borrowers may have the vight to prepay
phligations with or without penalties. (See the Investment
Securities seetion of the Financial Review for expected
remaining maturities ind yields)

G pmtfhioma )

Toval  Weidred  Welghned Tenwrsrar conmwetpsl prmscpal ety
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SECURITIES i1 ‘
LS. Toeasury secunitnes § 15 S9R%  §-10 & 680 570%  SL)ae 60 § 3 T $ | BN
Securities of LS,
::‘]"'.":"n""::.‘u'l:“""" T3 B3 5 1AW 25 LITH .51 1827 (kL 1,184 (iR}
A o
Privane collueralizal R . ., - . il
i 320 (X T ws 044 1056 (B2 i 4 4
m‘}‘:‘:‘ﬂ'# e 42 T80 v [N g4 177 (s “ b’ W T4
:;‘é;;;:x:m#:as 511446 6ATN 411 51385 £15%  $8515 A3 SL155 T15% $2171 hANS
51.588 $in342 $LI57 52,173

ESTIMATED FAIR VALUE §1 460
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There was no dividend income in 1996, 1995 and 1994
included in interest income on Investment securines m
the Consolidated Starement of Income. Substantially all
mcome on investment seaurities is rasahle.

LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR

A sumimary of the major categories of lonns onpstanding
and related unfunded commitments to extemd eredit is
shown in the table on the nest page. At December 31,
1996 and 1995, the commercial loan category and relaved
commitments did not have an indusery concentration that
exceedid 10% of taral loans and commitments, Tables 11
and 12 in the Loan Portfolio section of the Financial

Diesemibyr 11, 1000

Ivestment securitics pledesd primarily to secure trust and
public deposits and for ather purposes as required or per-
mitred by liw was $3.3 billion, $4.8 billion and $3.1 billicm
ar Diecember 31, 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively,

LOAN LOSSES

Review summarize real estate mortzge loans (excluding
=4 family first mortgnge laans) by state amd propeny type
and real esmate construction laans by state and project
types A majority of the Company's real estive 1-4 family
first mortgazes wnd consymer loans are with customers
locared in California

Lim millism)

Commercial (1)

Reenl estate 1o family first mpostgage i)

Other real estate muangige

Real estate comtmiction

Consmer:

Real estave -4 fomily jivior fien morgage
Ciredit coml

Oxher revolving crediv amd monthly paymen

Testul comsumer
Lesmes Binnaanecting
Foreipn

Tewal loanes (1)

P drmtancderys brilinces inicdade b g ly A1 o rweal e chevedey

In the course of evaluating the eredin risk presented by a
customer and the pricing that will adequately compensar

the Company for e that risk, n ! i

o regquisite amount of colluterd support. The type of colliteral
held varies, bur may include accounts receivable, inventory,
lanud, buildings, equipment; income-praducing commercinl
properties and residential real estute. The Company has
the same collateral policy for loans whether they are funded
i Jiately or on a delayed basis (commitment).

A commitment to extend credie is o legally binding
agreement 1o lend funds to w customer and is usually for

n specified interest mre and purpose. These commiments
have fixed expimtion dates and geneally require a fee. The
extension al a commitment gives rise to credit risk. The
nctual liquidity needs or the credit risk thar the Company
will experience will be lower than the contractun] smount
of commirments to exrend credit shown in the mble above
because @ significant portion of these commitments is
expected w expire without being drwn upon. Certain
commitmients are subject to a loan ngreement containing
covenanits regarding the finincial performance of the cus-
tomer that inust be met befiure the Company is required to
furid the commirment. The Company uses the same credit
policies in making commirments to extend credin as it
does in making loans.

o Diecounber 31,
1996 10es

( Bl Cunml U i i
o extend o exteesd
wredit comlit
$19.515 $28,125 $ 9,750 % BI68
10425 778 4440 23
11,860 Bz #2163 Rl
2303 1L719 Lok 45
6,278 4,781 3,358 $053%
5462 15,737 4001 B4
#,374 3,123 L5706 2045
o4 23,641 9,35 15782
003 - 1,78 -
169 101 il -
$67,389 $35,2%6 £15,582 $24,45

sord BEETTw o 58,070 innliions and $700 milkion an Docember 11, 1956 amd 1995, nepecrivdy,
{10 Sebsmapstally bl vho commmiimanmes o expenid coodit seline i e aipiy e that e soamely s monmginges
0 Cptbprniliing bossan blnmneres sin Divcombaeg 10, 1908 ancd 1905w ot o avsssannnd dosnareie, dnclinding e deiermed b fows, of S5 imillion aml S0 % nillin, mnpeciively.

Inv sddivion, the Company manages the potential eredic
risk in commirments o extend credit by limiting the twtal
amount of armngements, both by individual customer and in
the nggregate; by monitoring the size and maturity structure
of these portfolios; and by applying the same credic standards
maineained for all of its credit activivies. The crediv visk
nssociated with these commitments is considered in man-
apement’s derermination of the allowance for loan losses.

Standby letrers of credit totaled $2,981 million and
$921 million ar December 31, 1996 and 1995, respecrively.
Srandby levters of eredit are tssued on behalf of customers
in connection with contmcts berween the customers and
third parties, Under n standby letter of eredit, the Company
nssures that the thind party will receive specified funds if
a customer fails to meet his contractual obligation. The
liqul't‘li[v risk 1o the C»lu[wmy arises from its ohligation w
muke payment in the evenr of a customer's contractunl
defaul. The erediv risk involved in issuing letters of credic
and the Company's management of thar eredit risk is con-
sidered in managements determination of the allowanee
for loan lusses. At December 31, 1996 and 1993, standby
letters of eredit included approximately $243 million and
$159 milllon, respectively, of parricipations purchased, net
wf approximarely $61 million and $90 million, respectively, of
partleipations sold. Approsimarely 72% of the Company’s
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year-end 1996 standby letrers of credit had matarities of one
year o less and substanially all had maturities of seven
years or less.

Included in stundby letters of eredit are those that back
fimamncial instruments (fnancial g ees). The Company
Tatel issuedd or purchased participations in financial guamntees
af approximately $1,798 million and $450 million ar Decem-
ber 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively. The Company also had
commitments for commercial and similar letrers of credir of
$406 million and 5209 million ar December 31, 1996 and
1995, respectively. Substantinlly all fees received from the
isstance of financial guarnnrees are deferred and nmortized
ot straight-line basis over the term of the guarantee. Losses
on standby letrers of credit and other similar lerrers of eredi
have been immaterial.

The Company considers the allowance for loan losses of
$2,018 million adequate to cover losses inherent in loans,
loan commirments and standby lerters of eredic ar Decem-
ber 31, 1996. However, no assurance can be given thar the
Company will not, in any particular period, sustain loan
lasses that are sizable i relation to the amount reserved, or
thar subsequent evaluations of rhe lnan porifolio, in light
of the factors then prevailing, mcluding economic condi-
tions and the Company's ongoing examination process and
that of its regularons, will not require significant increases
in the allowance for loan losses.

Loans held for sule are included in their respective loan
categories and recorded at the lower of cost or market. At
December 31, 1996 and 1995, loans held for sale were
5308 million and $640 million, respectively.

Chimges in the allowanee for loan losses were as follows:

(R Year pnded December 11,
1906 (1] (L2
Balance, beginning of year $1.79%4 32,082 sun
Allowanee of First Intestate 70 - -
Sale of farmer Fioe lnerstaee banks (1) - -
Prowision for loan losses 105 - 00
Loan ¢horge-offs;
Commerctal (1) {140 (53) (34
Real estare |4 family
first g {18} (13 {18y
Orbier renl estate it gge (40} (32) (66)
Real estare construetion (IE}] (1o 19y
Clansumer:
Reul estate 14 family
Junior lien misrgge (28) 16} {24
Credic cand 1404) {208} (138)
Ohhier revalving credir and
mnthly payment (186} (53) (38
Total ecnsue (618) 27 (198)
Lisisie finavcireg (31) (15} (14)
Tostal lovens chisrge-olls (B60) “2n (369)
Tooan recovenies:
Commercial (21 54 i8 37
Reul estute 14 fumily
hirst mortgage 8 3 6
Oxhier real estate mortgage A7 53 n
Real esture constnuction 1" I 13
Conaupmer:
Real estare 1-4 fumily
junior len martgape 9 L] 4
Crelit eand 36 13 18
Orher revolving credin and
monthly paryment 47 12 11
Total cormimer 92 8 E1]
L Brancing 8 I 16
Tl loan recoveries 220 134 129
Towul e s
ehisge-olla (640) (288) (240)
Balance, end of year S2018  S1M S22
Total ner Taan chirge-offs as
 percentage of averge
ttal loans (1) 1.05% A J0%
Allownnce sy i percentige
of total ke 3.00% 5.04% S73%

1) IneTudus hongse-tis of baar (pimurily woecured) io ol esmte dovalopens and
TUEITs of 2 ol e and 14 wmillion in 19956, 1995 and 1994, respecnively.
121 Inchiackes pocowerhes fromm oo 1o real esture tevelopers mad REITs of
F10 mnillion. $3 million anc $2 million in 1996, 1095 aid 1994, repectively.
(3 Average vonal fowns exchude o mortgme b Dield fosde o 1993,

In accondance with FAS 114, the table below shows the
vecanded investment in impaired loans by loan caregory
anil the related methodology used to measure impairment
at December 31, 1996 and 1995,

Lok e PRl ) Devember 41,
o =
Comnmercial 5155 $7
Bl e 44 family fiest tewortgage | 2
Cither real estibe mormege 1) L1 10
Real esrare constretion 4 46
Oher 1 ]
Toeal 12 %543 $458
Tt msasirement basl on: . .
Callaieral valu: method 416 74
Piscomintedd cpsly flow snerhiid 101 ]
Historical loss fuctom 26 18

LAY Pl scesmaling boaris of 300 millican ar bosehy Ereveniber 31, 1950 and 199% dhist
wiew puarchuived i ey disconirn whise cotmitil s were ool slrer
acaesttion. Thi: mocdived o il mor affeer e bk balimee o thie vickls
expected at thir date of purihse,

{2 eehides S27 maiMion el 322 wiillin of bnspairsd bssisy with s ool FAS 114
Al o £2 million s 33 maltion w Diecemiser 31, 190 and 1295,
napectively,

PREMISES, EQUIPMENT,

The average tecorded investment in impaired loans during
1996 and 1995 was $542 millfon und $472 million, respec-
tively. Total interest income recognized on impaired loans
duting 1996 and 1995 was $17 million and $15 million,
respectively, substntially all of which was recorded using
the cash method,

The Company uses either the cash or cost recovery
method to record eash receiprs on impaired lodns that are
an nonacerual. Under the cash methesd, contrc il interest
is credited o inrerest income when received, This method
s used when the ultimare collectibility of the toral pringi-
pal i not in doube. Under dhe cost recovery method, 111
payments received are applied 1o principal. This merhod is
used when the ultimare collectibility of the torml principal
isin doubt. Loans on the cost recovery method may he
changed to the cash method when the application of the
cash payments has reduced the principal balanee ro i level
where collection of the remnining recorded investmenir is
no longer in doubt.

L LEASE CEM_M]TMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

The following rable presents o
andd equipment:

ive chiveat for I

Lo mmeillipmns) Diecuimber ¥1,
1996 |°_;‘
Fard $ 234 $ %
Buildings 1,687 520
Fuarvtliune and euipmient 1,362 7w
Letebold improvenents 392 n
Premises kewved under cipienl leases 1 6
Tl 3,766 1682
Loss accumulated depreciation
nd amamisiton L38O 820
Nt bouk value 82406 § 862

Deprecintion and amortiztion expense was $238 million,
$154 million and $142 million in 1996, 1995 and 1994,
respectively, Losses on disposition of premises and euuip-
ment, recprded in noninterest income, were $46 million,
$31 millionand $12 million in 1996, 1995 and 1994,
respectively. In addician, also recorded in noninterest
income were losses from disposition of opertions primarily
relared o the disposition of premises associared with
scheduled branch closures of $95 million, $89 million
and $5 million in 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

The Company is ohlignted under o number of noncan-
celable operating leases for premises (including vicant
premises) and equipment with terms up to 25 years, many
of which provide for periodic adjustment of rentals hised
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on changes in various economic indicarors. The following
table shows future minimum payments under noncaneelable
operring leases and capital leases with terms in excess of
one year as of December 31, 1996:

Income from ketable equity in s
accounted for using rhe cost method was $137 million,
$58 million and $31 milllon in 1996, 1995 and 1994,
respectively.

Total amortization expense for certain identifinble
ible assers recorded in noninterest expense was

Qi il Operaring leaws  Claprieal beses

Yeur endal December 31,

1997 $ 257 13
1998 09 3
19 s, 12
1000 I fd
2001 iy 10
Therealter 578 7
Tial mininun lese payments $1,355 12
Excicutory costs (3
Aduunts iepresenting interest (62}
Present valie of net minimum hese payments $ .67

Total future minimum payments to he received under
noneancelable operating subleases at December 31, 1996
were approximately $266 million; these payments are not
reflected in the preceding rable.

Renmal expense, net of rental income, for all operating
leases was $199 million, $111 million and $97 million in
1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

The companints of other assers ar December 31, 1996
andd 1995 were as follows:

L il marad Phvarmber 1,

194 (L)

N kerable equity imn £ 97 S 428

Neet defeered e ser (0 437 87

| Cormin ientifiable intmngilsle mwets 471 0
Fateelosal mets 19 186

| il 397 s
Tortl uther assets 45401 53.210

(14 relatind wrkotiide eguiny ostaboh S 176 skl

sl 8095 b o Dlecemiber ¥, |59 w1999, respecnively
123 S Noew 14 10 the Finnneial Starements.

$26 million, $12 million and $13 million in 1996, 1995
and 1994, respecrively.

Foreclosed assers consist of assets (substantially real
estare) acquired insatisfaction of troubled debe and are
carried at the lower of fair value (less estimared coses 1o
sell) or cost. Foreclosed assers expense, including disposi-
tion gaing and Josses, wos $7 million, $1 million and none
in 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

The Company adopred on December 31, 1995 5
of Financial Accounting Standards No, 121 (FAS 121),
Accounting for the Impatrment of Ling-Lived Assets and
for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of. This Statement
requires that long-lived assers and certain identifiable
intangibles ro be held and used by an entiry be reviewed for
impairment whenever events or chianges in circumstanees
indicare thar the carrying amount of an asset may nor be
recoverable. Additionally, FAS 121 requires thar long-lived
assery to be disposed of be reported at the lower of their
carrying amonnt or fir value, lest costs to sell. The impace
aladopting FAS 121 was immaterial. Independent of
FAS 121, the Company periodically reviews its space
requirements, During the course of 1995, such reviews
resulted in two properties being designoted as held for sale.
Regardless of FAS 121, assets designnted ps held for sale are
enrried at the lower of cast or fair value, less costs to sell,
Accordingly, the Company recomded 0 $21 million write-
down in 1995 in noninrerest income relared o these
properties. These properties had a carrying value of
$15 million at both December 31, 1996 mud 1995,

In 1995, the Company adopred Starement of Financial
Accounring Standards No. 122 (FAS 122), Accounting
for Mortgage Servicing Righrs, This Statement amends
FAS 65 to require that, for mortgage loans originated for
sale wirh servicing righes retained, the right 1o service
thase loans be recognized asa separate asset, similar to
purchased momgage servicing rights. This Starement also
requires thar capitalized mortgage servicing rights be
assessed for impairment hased oo the fair value of thos:
rights. Mortmge servicing righes purchased during 1990,
1995 and 1994 were $165 million, $95 million and $89 mil-
lion, tespectively. There wete no originared morgage
servicing rights capitalized in 1996 and 1995. Purchased
mortgage servicing rights ave amortized in proportion o
and over the period of esrimared ner servicing income.

Amaortization expense, recorded in noninterest income,
totmled $63 million, $39 million and $8 million for 1996,
1995 and 1994, respectively. Purchased morgage servicing
rights included in cermin idenrifinhle intangible assers were
$257 million (including $72 million from Firse Interstane),
5152 million and $96 million ar December 31, 1996, 1995
aned 1994, respectively.

For purposes of evaluaging and measuring impairment for
purchised mortgige servicing rights, the Company stratified
these rights hased an the type and interest mre of the under
Iyirg loans, Impairment is mensired us the amount by whicl
the purchased morgige servicing rights for n stratum exceed
their fair value. Fair value of the purchased mortgage

DEPOSITS

At December 31, 1996, the marurities of fme certificares of
deposit and ather ime dipasivs were as follows: $12,961 mil-
Tion in 1997, $1,496 million in 1998, $643 million in
1999, $376 million in 2000, $236 million in 2001 and
£245 million thereafter, Subsantinlly all of these depssirs
were interest-bearing at December 31, 1996.

Time certifcates of deposit and other time deposits each
with o minimum denomination of $100,000 roraled
£3.495 million and $2,099 million at December 31, 1996

The table on the right provides comparative data for securi-
ties sold under repurchase agreements. These barrowings
penerally matire in less than 30 duys.

|—

servicing rights is determined hased on valyarion rechniques
urilizing discounted cash flows incorporating assumptions
that market participants would use and tomled $289 mil-
lion and $153 million s December 31, 1996 and 1995,
tespectively. Impaiement, net of hedse results, s recognized
through a valuation allowance for each individual strtum.
At December 31, 1996 and 1995, the balance of the valus-
tion allowances totled $382 thousand and $352 thousand,
respectively. Certain mortgage servicing rights owned by
the Company have not been capitalized as they were
weguired by origination prior to the adoption of FAS 122,
These rights were not included in the valuation,

and 1995, respectively. Time certificates of deposir and
other time deposits issued by foreign offices in amounts of
$100,000 or more represent suhstantially all of the foreign
deposic liabilivies of $54 million and $876 million ac
December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively.

Demand deposic overdrafts thae have been reclassified
as loan balances were $800 million and $210 million at
December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively,

SECURITIES SOLD UNDER REPURCHASE AGREEMENTS

s mnalicra Diocenabor 31,

(L 1w 1944
Averapge smount oustnding () § 689 51,788 § B84
Fligghvest month-end balance (1) 1,100 2,716 LT
Vewrend balance 533 B 1,7

L1 Awerge bulances weene compered ming dully st
L2 Maghemn umomhyensd bulisices were ar Febeuiry 1900, April 1995 and December
1994, respectively.
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SENIOR AND SUBORDINATED DEBT

The following is a summary of senior and subordinared debt (reflecting unamortized debr discounts and premiums, where

applicable) owed by the Parent and irs subsidiaries:

Lo ol i)

SENIOR
Parent: Floaring: Rate Medivm: Term Notes
Moren i)
Misdivam: Term Notes (1)
Mates puryalde by sulwicdianiis
Ofbbigrions of subsitdinsies under capinl leasies (Note 6)

Tootail sesnborr ke

SUBORDINATED

Parerit: Floaging: Rate Motes (00
Fluaring-Rate Notes {1u4)19
Floaing-Rare Nowes (24
Flosring-Rave Capionl Nows (s
Floating-Rate Notes (040
Capital Notes i)
Mot
Nowes (1700
Nues
Notes
Notes
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Nowes 1)
Notes (137101
Notes (11
Notes (11
MedivTerm Notes 1

Towal mibondisired deb
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359
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At December 31, 1996, the principal payments, including
sinking fund payments, on senior and subordinated debr
are due as follows in the table on the right.

The interest mres on floaring-rate notes are determined
|‘ﬂrltlﬁfi|"" l“’ f(‘rﬂ'll.lL'l.'i l'}ilﬁfd On certain moncy “'iﬂrkl:l
rates, subject, on cermain nores, ro minimum or maximum
interest rates,

The Compuny’s mandatory convertible deby, which
is identified by nore (6) to the table above, qualibes as
Tier 2 capital but is subject 1o discounting and note fund

fin millions)

1997
1998
1999
2000
01
Thereafier

Toreul

Parint

$1.168
992
1
118
159
1941
$4925

Compatay

$1,173
999
152
128
60
142
§5,000

restrictions under the risk-based capital rules. The rerms
of the $200 million of the Mandatory Equity Notes, due
in 1998, and 3190 million Mandatory Equity Notes, due
in 1999, require the Company to sell or exchange with

the noteholder the Co I ,'5 Stm:k.,_ P |

preferred stock ar other capital securities at maturity or
earlier redemption of the Notes. At December 31, 1996,

$200 million of stockholders' equity had been designiaed
for the retirement or redemption of those Notes,

Certain of the agreements under which debt has been
fssued contaln provisions that may limit the merger or sale of
the Bank and the tssuance of its capital siock or convertible
securities. The Company wis in compliance with the provi-
sions of the borrowing agreements at December 31, 1996,

GUARANTEED PREFERRED BENEFICIAL INTERESTS IN

COMPANY'S SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

In 1996, the Company established four separmte special
purpose trusts, which collectively issued $1,150 million in
trust preferred securities as described below, The proceeds
from such issuances, together with the proceeds of the related
issuances of common securities of the trusts, were invested in
junior subordinated deferrble interest debentures (deben-
tures) of the Company. The purpose of issuing these trust
preferred securities was 1o provide the Company with 4
mare cost-effective means of obtaining Tier | capital for
regulatory purposes than if the Company itself were 1o
issue additional preferred stock because the Company is
allowed o deduce, for income mx purposes, distributions to
the holders of the trust preferred securities. The sole nssers
of these special purpose trusts are the debentures. These
debentures rank junior to the senior and subordinated debt
issued by the Company, The Company owns all of the
cotmmon securities of the four tmases, The preferred securities
issued by the trusts rank senior to the commen securities.
Concurrent with the (ssuance of the preferred securities by
the trusts, the Company tssued guarantees for the benefit
af the securiry holders. The obligations of the Company
under the debentures, the indentures, the relevant rust
agreements and the guarantees, in the aggregare, consti-
tute o full and unconditional by the Company
af the obligations of the trusts under the trust preferred
securities and rank subordinate and junior in right of
payment to all liabilities of the Company,

Listed below are the series of trust preferred securities of
Wells Fargo Capital A, Wells Fargo Capital B, Wells Fargo
Capital C and Wells Furgo Capital | issued ar $1,000 per
security. The distributions are comulative and payable
semi-annually on the first day of June and December for
Wells Fargo Capital A, Wells Fargo Capital B and Wells
Fargo Capital C and on the fifteenth day of June and
December for Wells Fargo Capital 1. The trust preferred
securities are subject to mandatory redemprion at the seated
matirity date of the debentures, upon repayment, or earlier,
pursuant to the terms of the Trost Agreement.

Wells Fargo Capital A This trust issued $300 million in
trust preferred securities in November 1996 and concurrently

invested $309.3 million in debentures of the Company
with o stnted maturity of December 1, 2026. This class of
trust preferred securities will acerue semi-annual distribu.
tions of $40.63 per securiry (8.13% annualized rare).

Wells Fargo Capital B This vrust fssued $200 million in
trust preferred securities in November 1996 and concurrently
invested $206.2 million in debenmres of the Company
with a stated maturiry of December 1, 2026, This class of
trust preferred securities will accrue semi-annual distribu-
tions of $39.75 per security {7.95% annualized mte).

Wells Fargo Capital C This truse issued $250 million in
trust preferred securities in Movember 1996 and concurrently
invested $257.8 million in debentures of the Company
with a smred maturity of December |, 2026, This class of
rrust preferred securities will accrue semi-annual distriby-
tions of $38.05 per security (7.73% annualized rate).

Wells Fargo Capital 1 This trust issued $400 million in
trust preferred securities in December 1996 and concurrently
invested $412.4 million in debentures of the Company
with a stated muturity of December 15, 2026, This class of
rrust preferred securities will acerue semi-annual diseribo-
tions of $39.80 per security (7.96% annualized rare).

On and afrer December 2006, each of the series of trust
preferred secarities may be redeemed and the comesponding
debentures may be prepaid at the option of the Company,
subject 1o Federal Reserve approval, av declining redenp-
tion prices. Prior to December 2006, the securities may be
redeemed at the ogition of the Company on the oecwrence
of certain events that result ina negative tax impact,
negative regulatory fmpact on the s preferred securities
of the Company or negative legal or regulatory impact on
the appropriate special purpose trust which would define it
as an investment company. In addition, the Company has
the right to defer ppyment of interest on the debentures
and, therefore, distributions on the tst preferred securi-
ties for up to five years.
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PREFERRED STD_I.:K

OFf the 25,000,000 shares authorized, there were 6,600,000
shures and 2,327,500 shares of preferred stock issued amd
entstanding at December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively.
All preferred shares mnk senior to common shares both

as o dividends and liquidation preference but have no
general voring rights.

The following is a summary of preferred stock (adjusmble
anel fixed):

Shsares bnite]
and vutseanding

Iceinber 11,
1996 195

Adljistnble:Rare Cumalarive, Serles A -
(Liguidation preference $50) (1)
Adjustable-Rate Cumulative, Series B

{Lispuidatiom peeference $50)

9 Cumubative, Series - 477,500
(Lhguidation peeference $500) (2)

BN Clmulative, Serim D 350,000 150,000
{Lhubckaticm prefesence $500)

Fihs Cumuilarive, Series F = =]
{Liguidation preference $200) (3)(4)

9% Cumulitive, Seriex G 750,000 ’
(Liguidation preference $200) (3)

6. 59% Adjusable Rate Moncumulutive
Protervesd Stock, Series H
{Liuidation peeference $30)

Toral 6600000 2,327,500

1500000 1,500,000

4,000,000 -

Clarnjing smwnant Adjuseabile hiciderads declared
i frllicma )  dividends e {in maillicwss )
Phcemiber 31, Monimain M Yeur eneked Decvmber 11,
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B = $ - 00% 120 $- - 52
s ] 55 105 4 i 4

- v - - 21 21 Il
175 175 - 16 16 I
- = ’ - 1z = =
150 - - - 1 - -
200 - 78 130 4 = =
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Adjustable-Rate Camulative Preferred Stock,

Series A In March 1994, the Company redeemed all
$150 million of its Series A preferred stock ata price of
$50 per share plus acerued and unpaid dividends. Dividends
were camulative and payabile on the last day of each calendar
quarter. For ench quarterly period, the dividend mte was
2.75% less than the highest of the three-month Treasury bill
discount rate, 10-year constant maturity Treasury security
yield or 20-year constatit maturity Treasury bond yield, bue
linnived o i of 6% wnd ol 12% per year.
The average dividend rare was 6.1% (annualized) in 1994,
Adjustable-Rate Cumulative Preferred Stock,

Series B These shares were redeemable ar the option of
the Company through May 14, 1996 at a price of $51.50
per share and, therealtrer, ar $30 per share plus accrued and

unpaid dividends, Dividends are cumulative and payable
quarterly on the 15th of February, May, August and
November. For each quarterly pericd, the dividend rate

i 76% of the highest of the thresmonth Treasury bill
discount rare, 10-year constant maturity Treasiry security
yield pr 20-yenr constant maturity Treasury bond yield, but
limired 1o a minimum of 5.5% and a maximum of 10.5%
peryear. The avernge dividend mte was 5.5%, 5.8% and
5.7% during 1996, 19935 and 1994, respectively.

9% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series C In Decem-
ber 1996, the Company redeemed all $239 million of les
Series U preferred stock at o price of $3500 per share plus
accrued and unpaid dividends, This elass of preferred
stock hid been issued as depositary shares, each represent-
ing ane-twentieth af @ share of the Series C preferred

stock. Dividends of $11.25 per share (9% annualized
rate) were cumulative and payable on the last day of each
calendar quarter.

Bi4% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series D This
class of preferred stock has been issued as depositary shares,
ench representing one-twentieth of o share of the Series 1D
preferred stock. These shares are redeemable ar the opion
of the Company on and after Mich 5, 1997 ava price of
$500 per share plus ncerued and unpaid dividends. Divi-
dends of $11.09 per share (875% annualized rate) are
cumulative and payable on the List day of each calendar
guarter. In December 1996, the Company announced that
It will redeem all outstanding depositary shares represent-
ing its Series 1 preferred stock on March 5, 1997.

994% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series F In
November 1996, the Company redeemed all $200 million
of its Series F preferred stock at a price of $200 per shore
plus acerved and unpaid dividends. This class of preferred
stock hod been issued as depositury shares, each repre-
senting one-eighth of o share of the Series F preferred
stock. Dividends of $4.94 per shure (9%% annualized
rate) were cumularive and payable on the last day of
each calendar quarter,

9% Cumulative Preferred Stock, Series G This class
ol preferred stock has been issued as depositary shares,
ench representing one-cighth of a share of the Series G
preferred stock, These shares are redeemable ar the oprion
of the Company on or after May 29, 1997 at a price of $200
per share plus acerued and unpaid dividends. Dividends of
$4.50 per share (9% annunlized rre) are comulative and
payable on the last day of each calendar quarcer.

6.59%/Adjustable Rate Noncumulative Preferred
Stock, Series H These shares ave redeemable ot the
aption of the Company on o ofter October 1, 2001 at o
price of $50 per share plus acerued and unpaid dividends.
Dividends are noncumulative and payable on the fist day
of ench calendar quarter av an annualized me of 6.59%
theough Ocrober 1, 2001, The dividend rare after Ocro-
her 1, 2001 will be equal to 0.44% plus the highest of the
Treasury bill discount rate, the 10-year constant maturity
ke wnil the 30-year constant maturity mre, as devermined
in nchvanee of such dividend period, limired w0 minimum
of 7% and o maximum of 13%.

CoMMON STOCK, ADDITIONAL PAID-IN

CAPITAL AND STOCK PLANS

COMMON STOCK

The following rable summarizes common stock reserved,

issued, outstanding and authorized as of December 31, 1996:

Blunber o shies

Tax Advantage and Retiement Plan 2,718,228
VasrnggTietrmi rnd Eoquaby Teesrmive Plans 1,780,721
Dhividetl Reinvestmen: and

Common Stock Purchma: [Man 402,062
Emplayee Stock Purchase Plan 673,097
Dhseeios Clption Mans 164,599
Suock Bonus Plan 14405

Toual shares veservd 11363812
Shtres e sl outsranding 91474425
Shures v cesiervend 47,161,763

Towal shares authorized (1) 0000000

A0 e 1500, shuavhobbers appmmed i incrise i the mtherted dumes of commmmn
ok SO0UO00.000 This seill becomne effictivee whien w smendnient 1o the
Remsaredd Cervificare of Ineonperation s ilad with the Secnemny of Stuae
o Dhelininee

Under the terms of mandatory convertible debr, the
Company must exchange with the noweholder, or sell,
various capital securities of the Company as described in
Note 9 to the Financial Statements.

Reprirchuses made in connection with the Company's stock
repurchase program result in @ reduction of the additional
paiddin capial (APIC) aceount equal to the amount paid
in repurchasing the stock, less the $5 per share representing
par vilue that is charged to the common stock necount, In
orcder vo absorb furre repurchases of common stock, the
Company trmsferred $1 billion from Remined Earmings
o APIC in ench of the years 1995 and 1994,
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DIRECTOR OPTION PLANS

The 1990 Director Option Plan (1990 DOP) provides for
anawal grants of oprions o purchase 500 shares of common
stock to each non-employee di leered or re-elected
at the | meeting of shareholders. Non-employ
direcrors who join the Board berween annual meetings
TCCiEivE OPHONS On @ p | basis. The options may be
exercised until the renth anniversary of the date of grant;
they become exercisable nfter one year ar an exercise price
equal to the fair marker value of the stock ar the time of
grant, The maximum total number of shares of common
stock issuuble under the 1990 DOP is 100,000 in the
aggregare and 20,000 i any one calendar year. No com-
pensation expense wis recorded for the stock options under
the 1990 DOP, as the exercise price wis equal 1o the quoted
market price of the stock art the time of the grant.

The 1987 Director Option Plan (1987 DOP) allows par-
ticipating directors to hle an irrevocable election to receive
stock options in liew of their retainer to be eamed in any
ane calendar year. The options become exercisable after
ane year and may be exercised until the renth anniversary
of the date of grant. Options grnted prior 1o 1995 have an
exercise price of £1 per share, Commencing in 1995, options
granted have an exercise price equal to 50 percent of the
quoted marker price of the stock at the time of grnt.
Compensation expense for the 1987 DOP is measured as
the difference berween the quated market price of the
stock nt the date of grant less the oprion exercise price.
This expense is acerued as retainers are earned.

Long-Term and Equity Incentive Plans The Wells
Farpo & Company Lang-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)
became effective in 1994, The LTIP supersedes the 1990
Equity Incentive Plan (1990 EIP), which is itself the suc-
cessor to the original 1982 Equiry Incenrive Plan (1982
E1PY. No additional awards or granes will be issued under
the 1990 or 1982 ElPs.

The LTIP provides for awards of restricted shares in
addirion to the stock oprions, stock appreciation rights
andd share rights thar could have been awarnded under the
1990 EIP. Employee stock aptions granted under the LTIP
can be granted with exercise prices at or, unlike the
1990 EIP, above the currént value of the common stock
and, excepr for incentive stock options, can have rerms

longer than 10 years, the maximum provided in the

1990 EIP. Employee stock options generally become fully
exercisable over 3 years from the grant dare. Upon termi-
nation of employment, the option period is reduced or the
options are canceled. The LTIP also provides for grants

to recipients not limited 1o present key employees of the
Comy The total ber of shares of common stock
issuable under the LTIP is 2,500,000 in the aggregate
{excluding ourstanding awards under the 1990 awd 1982 EIls)
and 800,000 in any one calendur year, No compensation
expense was recorded for the stock options under the LTI
{or 1990 and 1982 EIPs), s the exercise price was equal
the quoted market price of the stock at the time of grant.

Loans may be made, ar the diseretion of the Company,
to assist the participants of the LTIP and the EIPs in the
acquisition of shares under oprions. The total of such
interest-bearing lomns were $2.9 million and $5.8 million
at December 31, 1996 and 1995, respectively:

The holders of the restricted share rights are entitled at
nio cast ro the shares of common stock represented by the
restricted share rights held by each person five years afrer
the restricted share rights were granted. Upon receipt of
the restricted share rights, holders are entitled to receive
quarterly cash payments equal to the cash dividends that
wonld be paid on the number of common shares equal to
the number of restricted share rights, Except in limited
cireumstances, restricted share rights are canceled upon
termination of employment. n 1996 and 1995, 95,233
and 69,778 restricted share rights were granted with a
weighted-average grane dare fair value of $236.87 and
$173.90, respectively. As of December 31, 1996, the LTIP,
the 1990 EIl and the 1982 EIP had 199,014, 218,434 and
12,483 restricted share rights outstanding, respectively, o
1,442, 648 and 49 employees or their benehcinries, respec-
tively. The compensation expense for the restricted share
rights equals the market price at the time of grant and is
accrued on o stmight-line basis over the vesting period,

Other Stock Plans P to the Merger ag

the First Interstate stock option plans were converted into
stock option plans to purchase the Company's common
stock based on the ariginul stock option plan and the agreed
upan exchange ratio (see Nate 2 for additional information
concerning the Merger).

The stock oprion plans adopred in 1988 and 1991, by
First Interstate, provided for the grmnring of options o key
employees to purchase common stock of First Interstare ar
o price not less than 100% of the fair market value on the
date of grmt. The First Interstate Bancorp 1991 Director
Optian Plan, as amended and restared, provided for the
granting to non-employee directors of oprions w purchase
common stock of Flest Interstate at a price not less than
100% of the fair market value on the date of grant. Pursuant

option granted by First Interstare was converted into an
aption to purchase Company commaon stock based on the
origingl plan ani the agreed upon exchange ratio. As a
result of the change in contol, all ourstanding First Inter-
state options became exercisable as of April 1, 1996. The
1988 and 1991 First Interstate stock option plans also
pravided for the issuance of restricred commaon stock. As
of April 1, 1996, all outstanding restricred shares beeame
vested and were issued. As no additional awards were made
under these plims wnd all outstonding granes became fully
vested ar the time of the Memger, no compensation expense
was recognized hy the Compeiny for these plans in 1996,

The following mble is a summary of the Company’s stock
aption acriviry and related information for the three yenrs
ended December 31, 1996:

to the Merger ag cach ling andd unexercised
(LA E A N crr 1990 and 1982 E11* Firni Innestase
MNariber Weightel- Ml Weighsed: Nunyber Wetshred- Nusnber Weighnd:
avermge v avenage avorag
erercic X i e
e price pre e
Options outstanding as
of December 31, 1993 24,158 $ L5 - $ - 2007400 $ 6423
1994
Girantedl 6,149 18297 284,000 146.75 - -
Transdvrred — - 400,400 11065 (400.400) 11065
Canceled - - (28,500 Hos {28,663) 7
Exercised (2000} 18 (7200 Hogs (30347) 5229
Oprions outstanding as
of December 31, 1994 w07 83.18 655,160 126.27 1,274,388 .6
19%5:
Ciranied T4 13483 254,700 W37 = =
Canceled - - (8,500) 12154 (2,530) 5.0
Exercived (1,000 147 (66.870) 3 (Ul (471,625) 6373
Options outstanding as
of Pecomber 31, 1995 33,571 L] §64.510 15487 500433 GELOY
15496
Granted 11,391 22530 232,620 17486 - -
Aciquiral (1) - - - - - - 926,857 $93.78
Caneeled - - 19,2800 115.27 - = 1104200 95.49
Exercised (500 66.25 (33,922) 130.73 (1214440 6548 (499.472) 97.94
Ohprions outstanding as
of December 31, 1996 444462 130,08 1,053,928 F181.38 678,989 $69.26 416,965 FHRET4
Ohiestanading opticna
exvrcuble asaf:
Dicember 31, 1996 33,071 § 97.14 544,508 $138.54 678,989 S69.26 416,965 $H8.T4
December 31, 1995 16,507 LR E] 287,575 12178 80433 LLEC
Deecember 31, 1994 22,158 s 371180 11064 1.274.388 Hi80
1V ptavms incisid fronm Farst Eniorstiate ot 0 Menger sgreement, Agnl |, 1996
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The following table is o summary of selected information
for the Company’s compensarory stock oprion plans:

Dxcsaber M. 1900
Wekihal: Munber  Wiefchieb
Py virage
st el
waninaciual s
Lifie Gl v
RANGECF EXERCISE PRICES
1990 and 1987 DOP (1)
100
Ohptiins cutspndingfesinciaabibe 5.1 4019 F 10
$44.60-891.00
Options outstandinglexerclsabile +0 EEH] Tl
$108.00-5 1 60.00
Optivns outstnding iy 1h043 13949
Optinns exercisable 16,714 14113
136,38-8250. 18
Oyt outseanding i ] 462 249.69
Options exercinble - -
LTTIP iy
£107.25-8159.63
Ot onestaiding (0% 356,310 1898
Optionn exercisdle 459,765 1252
210 -82100
Ohptiuns onestmding B4 47618 13995
Options exercisible 4,743 11138
1990 and 1982 EIP
$40.50-575.61
Ohptivns ourstardingfesercbsable 40 T8, 959 6926
First Intorstate
$17.75-%83.00
Oypttions ourstardinglesercisable 4.2 214,078 65
£100.31-8125.81
Olptions outstandinpfexen bl 8.2 202,887 "

1D The wekithwedsrverage fair vadio of optivas grosoed wees 88051 apd STOAS o
100w 1993, respuecrivly,

123 Thie wweigthsedsavuruge fnir vidae of aprions grinred wirie $00.86 and $TL2T bor
10096 ol 1995, respectively

Employee Stock Purchise Plan Tamsactions involving
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP) ane summarized
s follows:

Options 1o purchnse 750,000 shares of common stock
may be grantesd under the ESPP. Employees of the Com-
pany who have complered their introducrory period of
employment, except hourly employees, are eligible ro par-
ticipate. Cermin highly compensated employees miy be
excluded from participation at the diseretion of the Man-
agement Development and Compensation Committee of
the Baard of Direcvors. The plan provides for an oprion
price of the lower of market value ur grant dare or 55% o
100% (as determined by the Board of Divectars for each
aption period) of the macket vidue ar the end of the one-
year option period. For the current aption period ending
Jul‘r 31, 1997, the Board up]lrtwn.l wclosing option price of
85% af the marker value: The plan is noncompensarory
and resules in no expense 1o the Company.

Naone of the options outstanding ns of December 31,
1996, 1995 and 1994 was exercisable. For aptions out-
standing as of December 31, 1996, the exercise price for
each option was $227.80, and the remaining contractual
lifee was seven months. The falr value of options granted
in 1996 and 1995 was $52.46 and $39.25, respectively.

The total compensation expense recognized for the
employee stock plans described above was $10 million,
$8 million ancd $8 million in 1996, 1995 and 1994,
respectively.

In October 1995, the FASB issued Starement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 123 (FAS 123), Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation. Tlis Statement establishes a
new fair value based accounting method for stock-based
compensation plons and encourages (but does nor require)
employers to adopt the new method in place of the
prowisions of APB 25, Companies may continue o apply
the accounting provisions of APB 25 in determining
net income; however, they must apply the disclosure
requirements of FAS 123 for all grmnts issued after 1994,

MNurmber
Uhptions ourstanding, beginning of vear 129,960
e 157,878
Cateeled (1) 61.524)
Exvrelsed {76,803)
Ohptbores outseanding, end of year 148,531

159590 15 14
Weighted- Nuwuher Wetglwd- Munbyr Weighyed-
uvernge verg

EneTeise AT EECh
it firken

$182.25 143404 §153.38 160476 F114:73
212750 143,012 182,25 130,515 13138
15900 (73,3539) 158.5% (H1.7H) 122,07
182,25 (83,157) 153,38 (92.853) 11471
$227.80 129,950 518225 143404 $151.38

C10 A thee Beghnniling of sl wption et prirrcipanes e glhaced o addigons] 505 of apmions tha aie sxeaciseil dnly ot exnenn G thi: ching oprtion price 0 scimily
bcliow -t wvunnot iabune onb e st sk oed oo dhie partacapmt’s bl of e spusiion. Saoce e clomsg optis pree wen gl in 15996, 1995 al 19540, the ackditwaal
aprbin gees were conelil Thee aptions repress oomajoriry of the cancebol oprives thown above.

The Compiny electid to continue 1o apply the provisions
of APB 25 in accounting for the employee stock plans
described on the preceding pages. Accordingly, no con-
prensation cost has been recopnized for fixed stock oprions
granted under the LTI, 1990 and 1982 EI and First Inter-
state plans or the ESPP stock purchase plan.

Had compensation cost for these employee stock plans
been derermined hased on the new fair value method wnder
FAS 123, the Company’s net income und earnings per
share would have been reduced to the pro forma amoumits
indicated below.

i pni s Vo eondisl Precembyer 11,
15EM, 1995
Mot i
As reported $1,071 $1032
PP forma (1) 1,063 1250
Net incosme pee commnon slare
As reporrad $12.21 $20.47
oo farma (11 a2 05

E13 T ooy freonis soprmonstavn evond b ondy vefleey dhirelfects of sock- busesd coni
prenmsatlons grarets i glrer DO, Bocise sk opthions are granted each yesr
e gemerally viost oncvr dhree yome, hise pro fosmi Ansnitsts iy oo vefler the
Full s oo appolvinns thie Lot bosrsal) B winlie methis] sualibished by FAS 123
s woub b exproined i wll ounaarding sioek oplion grists wie sceod
ot wmder i werold.

_—

The fair valug of each option grant is estimared based on
the date of grant using n modified Black Scholes option-
pricing model, For the fixed stock option plans, the following
weighted-avernge sssumprions were used for 1996 and
1995, respectively: dividend vield of 1.4% and 1.6%;
expected volatilivy of 29.0% and 33.3%; risk-free interest
raves of 6.0% and 5.7% und expected Life of 5.4 years fue
Dol yenrs. For the stock purchase plan, the [ollowing
assumptions were used for 1996 and 1995, respectively:
dividend yield of 1.8% for both years; expected volatilivy
of 23.8% and 18.000; risk-free interest rres of 5.8%
and 3.7% and expecred lite of one year for bark years.

For information on employee stock ownership thrpugh
the Tax Advantage and Retirement Plan, see Note 13,

DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

The Dividend Relnvestment and Common Stock Purchase
and Share Custody Plan allows holders of the Company's
cammai stock to purchase additional shires either by
reinvesting all or pare of their dividends, or by making
opticnal cash payments, Parricipants making optional cush
payments to purchase additional shares may do so by making
payments hetween $150 and $2,000 per month. All pus-
chases of additional shares are made ot fair mocker value.
Shares may also be held in custody under the plan even
without the reinvestient of dividends. Diring 1996 qad
1995, 103,580 and 87,868 shares, respectively, were issued
under the plan.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND OTHER EXPENSES

RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company’s retitement plan is known as the T
Advantage ard Rerirement Plan (TAP), a defined contri-
bution plan, As part af TAF, the Company makes basic
retirement contributions to employee retirement accounts.
Effective July 1994, the Company inereased its basic
revirement contributions from 4% o 6% of the ol of
employee bise salary plus payments from cerain bonus

plans {covered compensation). The Company alsa makes
specinl transition congriburions related ro the rermination
of a prior dehned hener plan of the Company ranging
from 5% o 3% of covered compensation for certain
employees. The plan covers salaried employees with ot
least omve year of service and contains o vesting schedule
ghlduult\] from three 1 seven yenrs of service,
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Pricw to July 1994, the Company made suppl
retirement contributions of 2% of employee-covered com-
pensation. All salarled employess with at least one year of
service were eligible to receive these Company contribu-
tioms, which vested immediarely. Effeetive July 1994, the
supplemental retirement contributions were discontinued,
except for those contributions that are made o employees
hired befure January 1, 1992, Those employess will continue
o receive the supplemental 2% contribution and the 4%
hasic retirement contributions until fully vested, Upon
becoming 100% vested, the basic rerirement contribmtion
will increase to 6% of employec-cavered compensation
and the supplemental 2% contributions will end.

Salaried employees who have ar least one year of service
are eligible to cantribute to TAP up to 10% of their premx
covered compensation through salary deductions under
Sectiom 401(k) of the Intemal Revenue Code, although a
lower contribution limit may be applied to certain employ
in ander to maintain the gaalified starus of the plan. The
Company mukes matching contributions of up to 4% of an
employee’s coverad compensation for those who lave at least
three years of service and elect to contribute under the plan.
Effective July 1994, the Company began to partially match
contributions by employees with at least one bur less than
three years of service. For such employees who eleet o
contribute under the plan, the Company marches 50% of
eachdollar on the first 4% of the employee's covered com-
pensation. The Company's matching contributions are
immediately vested and, similar ro retirement contributions,
are tax deductible by the Company.

Employees direct the investment of their TAP funds and
may elect 1o invest in the Company’s common stock.

As o result of the Menger, certain benehr plans were
acquired from First Interstate, These plans and their cur-
rent status are described as follows.

First Interstate had » detned contribution plan available
ol eligible employees who had complered one year of
service. Employees could contribure up to 6% of their base
salary, which was marched 150% by First Interstate. Addi-
tional pre-tax or after-tax contributions could be made by
employees of up 1o 6% or 10%, respectively, of their base

salary with no marching contributions. Pursuant to the
Merger agreement, accounts for active employees became
fully vested on March 28, 1996, On July 1, 1996, this plan
swits merged ot TAP, and all eligihle employees began
participation in TAP.

Expenses related to TAD for the years ended December 31,
1996, 1995 and 1994 were $95 million, $57 million and
$56 million, respectively.

First Interstate also had a noncontributory defined
benehit plan that provides rerirement benefits that are o
function of both years of service and the highest averge
compensation for any five (consecurive) year period dur-
ing the last 10 years before retirement. Pursuant to the
Merger ag acerued benefis, as of June 30, 1996,
for all participants employed ns of March 28, 1996 became
fully vesred. Effective June 30, 1996, all accrued benchivs
under the plan were frozen, There is no intention at the
present tine to teeminate the plan,

The funding policy for the defined benefit netirement
plan is ro make contributions sufficient to meer the mini-
mum requirements set forth in the Employee Retirement
Income Security Act of 1974, with additional contributions
being made periodically when deemed appropriate. The
following table sets forch the funded status of the plan as
of its M Date (Seprember 30, 1996) and
amounts recopnized in the Cs y's Consolidated Bal-
ance Sheet as of December 31, 1996, (The plan was not
included in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet
as of December 31, 1995.)

firs mmillicns § Decrmibwes 3, 1006

Actuatiol present value of henefin obligtions:

Accimmulared benefir abligarion (fully vested) $975.2
Plon assers at fair valie (1) GBH.5
Projecrd hemmefit obligation 975.2
Plun awmets in excess of projected beneht obligation 133
Unwecigmized net gain (due wo ot expenience differens frem

wsemptiones wapde nred efles o of chanzes o msempooms) f13.3)
Prepoiil penston wwer (aceried pension lisbility) I

1) Premaily bivcsrocd tn equity securithos

The net periodic pension cost far 1996 included the
Tollowing:

Lol Vear erichnl December 11, 1996
Servhee oo (benehits enmed during the period) $ 74
Lintetest cost on projecied benchr obligation 5.9
Actusl rerum an plan sssets (59.1)
Met amortization and deferml (1.2)
et periodic pension ot 5 -

The weighted-averape discount rre used in determining
the pension benefir obligation was 7.5%. No increase in
future salary levels was asumed as all acerued benehits
under the plan were frozen effective June 30, 1996. The
expected long-term mie of return on assets was 8.5%.

HEALTH CARE AND LIFE INSURANCE

The Campany provides health care and life insurance
benefits for certain active and retired employees. The
Company reserves irs right to rerminate these benefits at
any time. The health care benefits for active and retired
employees are seli-funded by the Company with the Point-
of-Service Managed Care Plan or provided through health
miintenance organizations (HMOs), The amount of subsi-
dized health care coverage for employees who retired prior
to fanuary 1, 1993 is based upon their Medicare eligibility.
The amaunt of subsicized healch care coverage for employees
wha retire after December 31, 1992 is based upon their eli-
gibility to retire as of January 1, 1993 and their years of
service at the time of reri - Active employees with
an adjusted service date after September 30, 1992 are not
cligible for subsidized health care covernge upon retirement.
Employees with an adjusted service dite after January 1, 1994
are not eligible for Company paid life insurance benefits,

Asaresule of the Merger, certin benehir plans were
acquired from First Interstate. These plans and their cur-
rent status are described as follows.

First Interstare had o group benehts plan thar provided
healrh and welfare benefies to active employees, Purssant 1o
the Merger agreement, portions of the Fiest Interstte plan
were discontinued, effective June 30, 1996, and eligible
employees were allowed to participate in similar plans
provided by the Company. The inder of the prog
under the First Interstate group benefits plan will be dis-
continued for ictive employees after December 31, 1996,
and eligible employees will be allowed o participate in
similar plans provided by the Company.

First Interstate also provided health care benefits to retived
employees through its group benefirs plan. Employees hired
prior ta January 1, 1992 and who retire at or ofter age 55
with ar least 10 years of service wete eligible for a fixed
contribution from First Incerstare. Employees hired afeer
December 31, 1991 were not eligible for retiree healch
care benefis, This plan will be discontinued after Decein-
ber 31, 1996, All active and rerired employees covered
under the plun will become eligible for similar benefits
provided by the Company.

The Company recognized the cost of health care benefits
for active eligible employees by expensing contributions
totaling $78 million, $37 million and $45 million in 1996,
1995 and 1994, respectively. Life insurance benefits for
active eligible employees are provided through mn insurance
company. The Company recognizes the cost of these benefits
by expensing the 1 e premiums, which were
$1.2 million in 1996 and $2 million in 1995 and 1994,
Ar December 31, 1996, the Compiny had approximately
33,400 nctive eligible employess and 10,000 retirees par-
ticipating in these plins.

Effective January [, 1993, the Company adopted Stare-
ment of Financial Accounting Standards Mo, 106 (FAS
106), Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits
Orher Than Pensions. This S changed the
method of secounting for postretirement bencfits other
than pensions from a cash 1 an accrual basis.

Under FAS 106, the determination of the scenied
liability requires a calculation of the accumulared
postreticement benefir obligation (APBO). The AFBO
represents the actuarial present value of postretirement
benefits other than pensions to be paid out in the furure
(€., health benefies to be paid for retirees) thar have
been earned as of the end of the year. The unrecognized
APBO at the rime of adaption of FAS 106 (transition
obligation) of $142 million for postretirement health care
benefits is being amortized over 20 years.
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The following rable sers forth the net periodic cost for
postretivemient health care benefits for 1996 and 1995

[ Yoar ikl December 11
L a5
Trsteevest cont o AFBO S14. $ H5
Ammetazation of tmnsition oblgntion 71 71
At izathon of et galn 4.2) A5
Servige comt (betvelits sorribured
epvice duting the period) 20 [ 4]
Toual §19.2 s13.2

The following whble sers forth the funded status for
postretivement health care benefies and provides an analysis
of the scerued postretirement benefit cost included in the
Company's Consolidared Balance Sheet ar December 31,
1996 anud 1995,

Lo il Yeur epcdind Desepber 31,
1994 s

APERD (i
Rutirees $ 1747 § 2
Eligible active employees 14 119
Orler wetbve emiplinees 35.1 187
212 948

e e e - -
AP i exoess of plan s 2.2 Q48
Unirecopnized net giin fnom pad experienes

ifferent from that asumed aid

o changes i msampinns 62.0 554
U ized it bl (113.7) (120.8)
Accried postrerineroent henenn cost

Gimeclidesd in othver Balilire) § 1695 § 153

1) Mhbscsd oy o hisentink e ol 7,0 7% st B SHEC b 19906 autid 1R, ety
L0 A e v oo thsie Mg, thee Clnngustiy rocogmind o Tiabiling of $140.7 milliom
foun the ovt kel smatstamdiing ol il w these bechis

For measurement purposes, a health care cost trend mre
was used to recagnize the effect of expected changes in
future health care costs due to medical inflation, utilization
changes, technological chang rlarory requi
and Medicare cost shifting. Average annual increases of
5.5% for HMOs and 7.5% for all ather types of coverage
in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits were
asumed for 1997, The rare for other coverge wis assumed
1o decrease gradually 1o 5.5% in 2001 and remain at that
level thereafter. Increasing the ossumed health care trend
by ane percentage point in each year would increase the
APBO a4 of Decenber 31, 1996 by §7.3 million and the
aguregate of the interest cost and service cost companents
of the net periodic cost for 1996 by $0.4 million.

Thye $10.7 million increase in the unrecognized net gain
i 1996 wits due to n kower average per capita cost of health
care coverage and an increase in the discount rare, which was
partially offser by an increase in the number of participanes
and amorrization of the previously unrecognized net gain.

The Company also provides postrerd lifee i Z
to cortain existing retirees. The APBO and expenses related
1o these benefits were nor materml.

The following rable shows expenses which exceeded 1% of
rotal interest income and noninterest income and which
are not vtherwise shown separarely in the financial state-
ments or notes therero.

i milliond Ve lisd Dhcier 31,
1996 195 (L2
Contract servicey 5295 $149 10
Opernring lisses (1) 145 45 (.13
Teleoummiinications 140 58 49
Aulveetbsing and prodwostion 1a 7 (]
Clutlide professhonal services 112 LA 3}

Pontivge 9o 52 44

11 Bwchundes s fromm Dengapsan, frmd aend orbies marmens.

INCOME TAXES

Total income taxes for the years ended December 31,
1996, 1995 and 1994 were recorded as follows:

(i milione) Ve exuded Decesiber 11,
196 1095 1094
Ineome tixes applicalile o fncon
B Ancoite s expenng $908 $745 $611
Gioodwill for b benehis relaned
s acquained assers - - (25)
Subworal B
Stockholdess' equity for = = =
compenstion expense ki ris
Jrirpones i exces of ot
recognized for fnancinl
fepating purposes X
Stvckboblen’ equiry for tax effecy of o = i
the change in set imreilissd gain
(lonia) om imeisimment securities (5 100 (951
Tostal inscome raves SRR 821 480

The following is s summary of the components of

incame mx expense (beneit) upplicable o income before
Income mxies:

Amounts for the current year are based upon estimates
and assumptions us of the date of this report and could vary
significantly from amounts shown on the tax retums as
filed. Accondingly, the variances from the amounts previ-
ously reported for 1995 are primarily o resulr of adjustments
to conform 1o tax retumns as filed.

, The Company's income tax expense (benefit) related to
investment securities trinsactions was $4 million, $(7) mil-
lion and §3 million for 1996, 1995 and 1994, respectively.

The Company had ner deferred tax assets of $437 million
aned 3817 million ar December 31, 1996 and 1995, respec-
tively. The tax effecr of remporary differences that gave rise
o significant portions of deferred tax assets and liabilities
ar December 31, 1996 and 1995 are presented below:

{in il ~ Yeor ensded Docomber 31,
1 (L) a4
Currens:
Fedoml 8557 $507 $
472
State and local 182 153 146
734 69 als
Dheferred:
Federl 139 7 b
Sratic and Jocal W 15 lI?
169 55 5
Toeal 908 5745 $613

i il lhossns ) Yeue eruded Diecemnber 11,
1996 (L]
Dieferred “Fix Assers
Na :;nx-d:l’njrm! expenses § 879 $ 196
Allewance for loan liwses THe 77
Stute tax expeise 63 56
Cermin idenuifable mrangibles - 40
Fitvechomed qmaects 45 4?2
Presmises and eyulpment - e
Cuore deposit intngible - 7
Vil 1 1l ll??’ I.m
“Tonal defervad pay sasets,
T valution alloviance LTl 1,000
Deferred Thx Lishilitics
Coe deposit inminpible 759 -
Lemsing 393 254
Prenmises ansd equipment 106 -
Investments 40 10
Cermin identifishle intangibles 16 -
Oihee 0 9
Tl defierred v liabilivies 1.334 k]
Net Deferred Tax Asuet § 47 $ Bi7
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Substantially all of the Company's net deferred rax isset
ol $437 million at December 31, 1996 reluted o net expenses
(the largest of which were the net tx-deferred expensey
and the provision for loan losses, offset by the core deposit
inrangible) that luve been reflected in the financial state-
ments, but which will reduee future mxable income. Ar
December 31, 1996, the Comparny did not have any net
operating loss carryforwands. The Company estimates
that approximately $401 million of the $437 million net
deferred tax assct ar Decenber 31, 1996 could be realized
by the recovery of previously paid fedeml taxes; however,
the Company expeers 1o actually realize the federal net
defcrred tnx asser by claiming deductions against furure
tasable income. The batance of approximately $36 million

primarily relates to approximately $448 million of net deduc-
tions that are expected 1 reduce furore Californin axable
income (California tax low does not permit recovery of
previously paid raxes). The Company's California mxable
income has averaged approximately $1.5 billion for ench of
the last three years. The Company believes that it is more
likely than not thar it will have sufficient future Califormia
rxnble income to fully utilize these deductions, The amount
of the toml defermed tx asser considered realizable, however,
could be reduced in the nest term if estimates of future
taxable income during the carryforward periods are reduced.

The following is a reconcilintion of the statutary federl
income tax expense and rare 1o the effective incame tax
expense and e

(i milions)
Amaant
Spatutory feeral oo s expense and e Sou3
Chinge v i mate resultng from
Szt and local taxes on income, pet of fedenld
I g benehit 124
A iztiom of cettain piltlies niw
eductibile for ms retum purps e 10z
Chher an
Fifective locome i experse aml ne 5908

The Company has not recognized a federal deterred rax
linbility of $36 million on §102 million of undistribured
eamings of a foreign subsidiory because such carnings are
indefinitely reinvested in the subsidiary and are not tax-
able under current liw. A deferred tax liability would be
recopnized to the extent the Compuny changed Its intent
1o not indefinitely reinvest & portion af all of such undis-
eributed earnings. In addition, @ current mx liabilivy would
be recopmiized if the Company recovered those undistribaneal
enmings in o taxabl such as through the receipt
of dividends o sale of the entiry, or if the tax changed.

Yirur evubidd December 11,

190 1905 1994
- i - Aot "
3500 621 15.0% §509 V0
63 e 4 1o 75
52 14 8 Ik 12
1.6) 2n (1 (2% (1.5}
45.9% §745 4200 so1d $22%

PARENT COMPANY

(:Dl'&dlt.lml finmncial information of Wells Fargo & Company (Parent) is presented below. For information regarding the
Parent’s long=term debe and devivarive fimancial instruments, see Notes 9 and 18, respectively,

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF INCOME

CONDENSED BALANCE SHEET

s il s} Yeuur enndin] Piecembies 11,
1996 1005 (]
INCOME
Thviderudy fromn sabsiidinres:
Wells Firngo Bank, N.A. §1.461 LINE]] §1.001
UOther bank subsidinries 33 - -
Menbank subsidiaries | - -
Inkerest income from)
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A, 99 Hi 4l
Ohher bunk subsidiaties 9 L] -
Munbank subsiliaries A 1l 15
Chthey 71 33 il
Muninterest inconse 163 52 ]
Toaal inconne 1,845 1,17 1,186
EXPENSE
ovverest on:
Commercial paper and
her dwsrt-tenm bormowlngs i 14 )
Senior and subordinaned debt 299 19 181
Moninterest expense @3 15 56
Tl expretie 402 143 45
Incwvese befione ineome
et henein anal
wnaliribunesd income
of subsidigries L4 (Fut] 41
Inconie tax benefit 17 17 7
Bty in undismibnmed income
ol mitmacdiaries:
Wells Fatgzo Bank, N.A, (1 (455) (16) (138
Other hank whwiliaries 48 (651 -
Nonhank sil=idinties 18 11 1
NET INCOME $1.071 f1o2 5 541
A T *-,w:u.r—..wa..x‘m;....m

of s 1906, 1595 sl 194 st o of $1,006 willioses, $1, 105 sl vl
80 millimmn, sempetividy.

e iyl Mevennbet 11,
1996 s

ASSETS
Canhs i o from Wells Fango Pank, N.A.
(includes tnterest-eaming dopemits of

SO0 rua i lion seemd 1 mmillion) $ 1,043 § 4
Irevestmient secugithes it fakr vailue 395 424
Liwins 210 108
Allowance ot ki lasses Gy 58

Net B 15 us
Lowwms anad advances o subsidisrics:

Wells Fango Bank, N-A. 2,156 117

Other hank subwblaries 75 W

Nonbank subsidipries 90 141
Tnvestoment in subsidlatios (i

Wiells Fangir Bank, NA, 13,912 4322

Ohebser bank subsidiaries 1439 m

Newibank subsiiliavies 213 13
Other wssets 1.457 508

Tiopinl nssers $11,104 745

LIABILTTIES AND STOUKHOLDERS BQUITY

Cuammmsercinl paper and otlper

shusienieemn boetowings $ 170 § 160
Other abilivies 742 0
Senthor deli 1.984 1708
Subsstelimuged delsi 2,940 1,266
Truhebwedns o sibwidineies () 1 186 -
Stockhobders’ equity 14,112 44055

Total labilicies gl seockholden' aquity.— $21,134 §7434

(1) The dherilrles beverme e, whisch ppmesc s thie patio o e Paresin's deal gy
o sadbgail L i o] hvolders” bty s |10 Wil |14,
o Plecember 81, 19980 amd 1995, sosprertvely
12) The Ine v i ndobiediness o bbbl for 1996 v st e 1o
Wells Farge Capieal A, Wells Fargs Capivad 1 Wells Farge Capiral C mul Wells
Fagoy Capinal |,
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CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Ly emibfina)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Met income
Adjustiments to recongile pet ineaeme
to nek cash prowided by
operiting activities:
Diefarred Income o benefit
Equiry i undistrilwiel loss of subsicliaries
Ohthier, ner
Mer cash provided by operating scrivities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Inwestment secrirics|
At foir varlue:
Proceeds from sales
Proceeds from prepiyinerts
anel maturities
Puschnses
At it
Proceeds from prepayments
and tmaturitien
Purchases
[ Net decreare in loan
Met {increase) decrease in Joans arid
nadvances to subsidianes
et (incrense) decrense in ivestment
in subsidiaries
Net decrease in securitivs porchased
uniler resale agreemeniy
O, net
Ner cash provided (used) by
investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net incrense (decreme) in
shart-term bormwiigs
Proceeds from issuance of senior debt
Regayment of sentor debt
Proceeds from msuance of
subardinated debt
Repayment of subordinared debr
Proceedh from isuance of guaranteed
prefereed beneheinl interents in
Company's subonliruted debentures
Priiceeds from tssimnce of prefermsd sock
Proceeds from wsamnce of common stock
Redemmption of prefermal sock
Reprrehsse of common stock
Paymienit of cash dividesnds on
preferred srock
Puyment of cash dividends an
crnmmion stock
Othen ner
Wet cash used by fnancing sceivities
Net change in cish and cosly
equivalents (due from
Wells Fargo Bank, M.A.)
(s ol cosh equivalenios at
Beginning of year
| Cash and b equivalents at
el of year

| Mancash investing acrivirhes:

Transfers from Investment securifhes it cost

oo rwestmens securiies o falr vl

Your pondod Decumber 3,

1996

51071

3}
isa
155

1.612

206
(183)

50

(216)

(B8)

0
1,260
(1,183)

BOO

1,186
197
L8543

{439)
(2,158}
(73)

(429
42

(670)

Loz

31

$1,043

5 >

1®5 (L]

§1.052 § B4

(15 4
™
(52) (4
1044 40
4 5
2 .
() (175
s 256
- um
0 4
(2 59
(266) 5
- 250
119 12
(266) 784
Py (5}
1230 248

(811) (L1on
(o (526)

o0 57
- (1500
(B47) (7600
(42) (M)
(215)  (218)
16 57
(712) (2432)
6 (708)
5 i
s 318 B
§ M7 § -

15 LEGAL ACTH.‘)NS_ B

In the normil couse of hisiness, the Company isavall
times subject to numerous pending and threatened legal
actions, some for which the relief or damages sought are
substantial. After reviewing pending and threatened arions
with counsel, management considers thar the outcome of
such actions will not have a material adverse effect on
stockhalders’ equity of the Company; the Company is not
able to predicr whether the outcome of such actions may or
muy tot have o material adverse effect on results of opera-
tions in a particular future period as the timing and amount
of any resolution of such actions and ivs relavionship to the
future resulrs of operations are not knowe.

|
[ 17 RISK-BASED CAPITAL

The Company and the Bank ane subject to various regulatory
capital ndequacy requirements sdministered by the Federal
Reserve Board (FRB) and the OCC, respecrively. The Fed-
eml Deposit [nsumnce Corporation Improvement Act of
1991 (FDLCLA) required that the federal regulatory agencies
addopt regulations defining five capital tiers for banks: well
capitalized, adequately caplitalized, undercapitalized, signifi-
cantly undercapitatized and eritically undercapitulized.
Failure to meer mini capital requi s can initinte
certain mandarory and possibly addidonal discrerionary
actions by regulatars that, if undertiken, could have a direet
materinl ¢ffect on the Company’s inancial statements.

Quantitative measures, established by the repularors to
ensure capital adequacy, require thar the Company and
the Bank mainmin minimum ratios (set forth in the mable
bielow) of eapital vo risk-weighted assers. There are two
categories of capital under the guidelines. Tier | capital
includes common stockholders’ equity, quulifying preferred
stock and trust preferred securivles, less goodwill and cer-
ain other deductions (including the unrealized net gains
and losses, afrer applicable taxes, on available-for-sale
investment securities carried at fair value). Tier 2 capiral
ineludes prefiecred stock not qualifying as Tier | capital,
mandarory convertible debr, subordinared debe, certain
unsecured senior debt issued by the Parent and the allow-
ance for loan losses, subject to limitarions by the puidelines.
Tier 2 capital is limited to the amount of Tier | capital
(i.e., ot least half of the toral capital must be in the form
of Tier 1 capiral).

Under the guidelines, capital is compared 1o the relative
risk relared o the balance sheer. Tos derive the risk included
in the balance sheet, one of four risk weights (0%, 20%,

50% and 100%) is applied ro the different balance sheet
and off-balonce sheet assets, primarily based on the relative
credit risk of the counterparty. For example, cloims guar-
anteed by the LLS. governmenr or one of irs agencies are
riskeweighred ar 0%:. Off-balance sheer items, such as loan
commitmients and derivative fimaricial instruments, are also
apiplied o risk weight after ealeuluting balance sheet equi-
varlent amounts. One of four credit conversion factors (0%,
20%, 50% and 100%) are assipned to loan commitments
based on the likelihood of the off-halance sheer item
Becoming an asset. For example, certain loan commitments
are converred at 50% and then risk-weighted ar 100%.
Derivative financial instruments are converted to balance
sheet equivalents based on notional values, replscement
costs and remaining contractual rerms. (See Notes 5

and 18 for further discussion of off-halance sheer irems.)
The capital amounts and classifieation are also subject to
qualitative judgments by the regulators about compunents,
risk weightings and other fictors.

Management believes that, as of December 31, 1996,
the Company and Bank met all capital adequacy require-
ments to which they are subject.

Under the FDICIA prampt corrective action provisions
applicable to banks, the most recent notification from the
OCC eategorized the Bank as well capiralized. To be cat-
egarized a5 well capitalized, the institution must maintain
a total risk-based capital ravio as set forth in che bllowing
table and not be subject to a capital ditective onler. There
are no conditions or events since that notihcation that
management believes have changed the Bank's risk-based
capiral category.

Cin 1sjiess)
Ay
As of December 31, 1996
Total capital (o risk-weighted wsets)
Wells Fargo & Clompany $100
Wells Fargr Bk, N.A. 8.0
Tier | capital (to risk-welghted ases)
Wells Farpo & Company § 06
Wells Fargis Hank, N.A. )
Tier | capital (1o aveoge sets)
{Leverge ratin)
Wells Fang & Compniny § 0.6
Wells Famer Fank, N.A. 6.2

Acnsl
Hatho

T b weell catpial iz
Foe caparal unleer vhye FISICUA promgpr
inlijracy puispuses catiéctive iCtion proviskais
Amemint Mathis Anwit Rarin
11.70% 2568 2H.00%
258 =800 2571 21000
768 %34 =4, 00%
210 2400 2544 2 6,00
6.63% 280 =4.00%(n
z b 24.00 (1 2543 2 5.00%

1) The beverage nin consis of Tier | cpersl divided by quarterly svensge sl sseo, excluding goodwill and ceston huer i The manimio lovmge s goideline i 3%
Gt butrking oogntsaions that do o anpiipate sigibcm el und dhus bove well diversiied ral, eiellenn nsee qualivg, high leiding, pood eanmirgs s, o genesal, ste

womiderenl v -tend, o rongt Danking enmiions,
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DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company enters into a variety of hnancial contracts,
which include interest rre furares and forward contraces,
interest rate floors and caps and interest rte swap agree-
ments. The contract or notional amounts of derivatives
do not represent amants exchianged by the parties and
therefore are not a measure of expasure through the use of
derivatives. The amounts exchanged are determined by
reference to the notiomal amounts and the other rerms of
the dervatives. The contract or notional amounts do nort
represent exposure t liguidiey risk. The Company is not a
dealer but an end-user of these instruments and does noc
use them speculatively. The Company also offers contmers
1o its customers, bur offsers such contracts by purchasing
other financial contmets or uses the contracts for asset/
linbility management.

The interest rate derivative inancial instruments that are
used primarily to hedpe mismarches in interest me -
rities serve to reduce rmther than increase the Company's

¥ T ni rates. These instruments
are accounted for by the deferml or acerual method only
if they are designaved as a hedge and are expected 1o be
and are effective in substantially reducing ineest mte risk
arising from assers and liahilities exposing the Company
to interest rare visk ar the consolidated or enterprise level.
Furthermore, futures contraces must meet specific correln-
tion tests. If periodic assessment indicares derivatives no
longer provide an effective hedge, the derivarives ane closed
out or sertled; previously unrecopnized hedge results and
the net settlement tpon close-our or rerminarion that off-
set changes in value of the asser or liability hedged are
deferred and amortized aver the life of the asset or liabiliry
with excess amows recognized In noninterest income.

The Company also enters into foreign exchange derivative
financial instruments (forward and spot contracts and
options) primarily as an sceommodation o customers and
offsers the related foreign exchange risk wirh other foreign
exchange derivarive fimancial instruments:

The Company is exposid ro credit risk in the event of
nonperformance by counterparties to hnancial instruments.
The Company controls the credit rsk of its inancial con-
tracts (except futures contmets and floor, cap, and opion
contracts written, for which eredir visk is de minimus)
through credit approvals, Himits and monitoring procedures,
Clredir risk related o derivative financial instruments is
considered and, if marerial, provided for separarely from
the allowanee for loan losses. As the Company genemlly
ENCETS 1N TTNSAcions nnly with high quality counter-

parties, losses associated with counterparty nonperdormance
on derivative financial inst s have been inl

Thee rable on the right summarizes the aggregare notional
or contractual amounts, credit visk amount and ner fuir
value for the Company's derivative Anancinl instruments
at December 31, 1996 und 1995,

Inwerest mate hutures contrmers are contrmets in which
the buyer agrees to purchase and the seller agrees to make
delivery of a specific financial instrument ar o predetermined
price or yield. Gains and losses on futures contmets are
sertled daily based on o notionil (underlying) principal
valie and do not invalve an actual transfer of the specific
imstrument. Furures contraces are standardized and are
traded on exchanges. The exchange assumes the risk that
acounterparty will not pay and generally requires margin
payments to minimize such risk. Marker risks arise from
movements in interest rites and security values. The
Company uses 90- 1o 120-day furures contmers on Euro-
dollar deposits and U.S. Treasury Notes mostly to shorten
the nte maturity of market mte savings to hetter march the
rare maturity of Prime-besad loans. Inital mangin requirements
on futures contriets are provided by investment securities
pledged as collateral. The ner deferred gains relared 1o
mterest mte futures contmcrs were 34 million ar Decem-
ber 31, 1996, which will be fully amortized in 1997,

Inrerest rare floors and caps are interest rare protection
instruments that involve the payment from the seller w the
biryer of an interest differential. This differential represents
the difference berween a short-rerm rare (e theee-month
LIBOR) and an agreed-upon e, the strike mue, applied
tova notiomal principal amount. By purchasing o loor, the
Company will be paid the differential by a counrerparry,
should the current short-term rate fall helow the suike level
of the agreement. The Company generlly receives cash
quarterly on purchased loges (when the curment interest mte
falls below the strike rre) and purchased cops (when the
current inrerest rate exceeds the strike rre), The premiums
paid for inverest e purchased floor snd cap agreements
are included with the assets hedged. OF the toal purchased
flooes of $20.6 billion at December 31, 1996, the Company
had $19.0 hillion of purchased oo w protect varinble-
rate loans from a drop in incerest tates. These contraces have
o weighted avernge matarity of 2 years s 8 months. Inclided
in purchased loors are forwand starting floor contracts of
$155 million starting in January 1997, $300 million stirt-
ing in March 1997, $225 million starting in April 1997,
$473 million starting in May 1997 and $2,000 million

other specific assets and linbilities,

$1.6 billion and purchased caps of §.4 billion ac Decen-
ber 31, 1996 were used 1o hedge interest mire risk of various

literest rre swap contracts are entered into primarily

as an asset/liability management strategy to reduce interest
rate risk. Interest mte swap contmets are exchanges of
mrerest payments, such as ixed-rote payments for Hoating-
rate payments, based ona notional principal smount.
Payments related to the Company's swap contracts are
male either monthly, quartierly or semi-annually by one of
the parties depending on the specific terms of the related
contraet, The primary risk associared with swaps is the
exposure o maverments in incerest rtes and the ability of the
couterpartics o meet the terms of the contract. At Decem-
ber 31, 1996, the Company had $16.7 hillion of interest

L e i b Iy 31,
] ) 1995
MNotionad ar e risk Estiuied Mastiesal on it thak Earisiin]
contractyal amardnt (4] falr value oo ol a4 ke vk
At RITE TS
ASSET/LIABILITY MANAGEMENT HEDGES
Initerest Fate comnttacts:
Futures contrces § 5,188 $ - ¥ - $ 5312 $ §
Floom purchised (11 20640 1o 101 15522 W6 06
Clips purchssed (1) 435 i ] 3 il 1 1
Swap contrcts (112 16,661 217 7 6514 133 173
Foreign exchinge contemens:
Forwand contrscrs () 2 - - 15 - -
CUSTOMER ACCOMMODATIONS
Irterest e coniticts:
Futures conteicis o - - 3 - -
Flowys writren 405 - (10 103 = n
Clips wrbriien 2,174 - ) LiT0 - 4
Flowes priwchised (1) 404 ] g 105 I I
Caps purchased (1 1,088 4 4 1.139 4 4
Swap coneraoes (1 1,325 12 2 1518 5 1
Foreipn exchange comrmers (40
Foswrind anid sput contraies (1) 1,313 14 1 909 10 1
Cprion contmrens panchised (1) 65 1 1 n - -
Ohpticn contmers written 59 - (o 3 - -
(13 The Camupuing ipaties by ik 0 for thess fnsatnecil ustivimnests.
€21 The: Parer’s shune of thee ool pinetpal swing ourssnding wis $1.230 milllon sod 224 williva oe Décenbor 31, 1900 mod 1905, sespectively:
81 Thes Comanpmy: bunw senmarcnind tombing pesitions i commin of thess ponmace.
(41 Creddsr risk ammommte peflect the replagemens cou for thise contmers in o gaim position in the event of pomperimmmmce by asmorpsaiies
srarting Ocrober 1998, The remaining purchased floors of rate swaps outstanding o interest rate risk pement

purposes on which the Company receives payments hased
on fed interest rates and makes payments based an variable
rares (e, one- or three-month LIBOR rate). Included

in this amoune, $11.2 billion was used to convert floating:
rate loans into hixed-mte assets. These contmers have a
webhred average marurity of 3 years and 2 months, o weighred
avernge receive rate of 6.53% and a weighted average pay
rate of 5.61%. An additional $3.5 billion was used 1o con-
vert fixed-rate deposits inro foating-rte deposics. These
contracts have a weighted averge maturity of 3 yeurs and
11 menths, a weighted avernge recelve mre of 5.49% and
A weighred average pay mre of 5.61 %, The remaining swap
contracts used for | rate risk gement of $2.0
billicn ar December 31, 1996 were used to hedge inrerest
e risk of various other specihic assets and liahilivies.
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Sttement of Finaneial Accounting Standards No. 107
(FAS 107), Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial
Instruments, requires thar the Company disclose estimated
fair values for its financial instruments. Fair vialue estimates,
methods amd ASSUIMPLIONS scl forth below for the Company'’s
financial inseruments are made solely wo comply with the
requirements of FAS 107 and should be read in conjunction
with the financial statemients and notes in this Annual
Report. The carrying amounts in the table are recorded
in the Consoliduted Balanee Sheet under the indicared
caprions, except for the derivative Anancial instruments,
which are recarded in the specific asset or lability balance
being hedged or in other assers if the derivative inancial

s C PN dation

Fair values are hased on estimates or caleulations at the
rransaction Jevel using present value rechnigues in instances
where quoted market prices are not available. Because
broadly tradked markers do nor exist for mose of the Company’s
financial instruments, the fair value caleulations artempr
to incorporate the effect of current market conditions at
a specific time. Fair valuations are management's estimates
of the values, und they are often caleulated bused on curment
pricing policy, the economic and competitive environment,
the charcteristics of the inancial instruments and other
such facrors, These calcularions nre subjective in nature,
involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
and do not include tax mmifications; therefore, the results
cannot be determined with precision, substantiated by
comparison to independent markets snd may nor be
realized in an acrual sale or immedinte sertlement of the
instruments. There may bee inherent weaknesses in any
culeulation technique, and changes in the underlying
assumptions used, including discount rates and estimares
of future cash flows, could significantly affect the results.
The Company has not included cermain marerial items in
its disclosure, such as the value of the long-term relation-
ships with the Company's deposit, eredi card and trust
customers, since these intangibles are not financial instru-
ments. For all of these reasons, the aggregation of the fair
value ealeulations presented hervin do not represent, and
should nor be construed ro represent, the underlying value
af the Company,

FINANCIAL ASSETS

SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL ASSETS

This category includes cash and due from banks, federal
Tunds sold and securities purchased under resale agreements
and due from customers on scceprances. The carrying
ambunt is o reasonable estimate of fair value because of
the relatively shor period of time berween the origination
of the instroment and s expected realization,

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Investment securities ut fair value ar December 31, 1996
vl 1995 are set forth in Nowe 4,

LOANS

The fair valuation caleularion process differentiates loans
based on their financinl charmcreristics, such as product
classification, loan category, pricing features and remaining
maturity. Prepayment estimates are evaluared by product
and loan rate. Discount rates pr Lin the paragrapl
below hinve o widke mnge due to the Company's mix of fixed-
anel variable-rate products. The Company used varinble
discount taves which ineorporate relative credic quality
1o reflect the credin risk, where appropriate, on the fair
value caleulation,

The fair value of commercinl loans, other real estate
maortzage loans and real estate construction loans is caleu-
lnred by discounting contractual cash flows using discount
rares that reflect the Company's current pricing for loans
with similar characteristics and remaining maturity. Most
of the discount mtes for commercial loans, ather real estare
mortgage lonns andd real estate construction loans are
herween 7.75% and 9.5%, 7.79% and 12.25%, and 7.75%
and 11.0%, respectively, ar December 31, 1996. Most of
the discounr rates for the same portfolios in 1995 were
Between 6.3% and 9.5%, 7.0% and 11.3%, and 7.3% and
10.0%, respectively.

For real estare 14 family first and junior Hen mortgages,
fair value is ealeulated by discounting contrcrual cash
flows, adjusted for prepayment estimates, using discount
rates based on current industry pricing for loans of similar
size, type. remaining maturity and repricing chancieristics,
Muost of the discount mies applied o this partfolio are
berween 5.5% ond 8.5% ar December 31, 1996 and 6.0%
and 9.0% ar December 31, 1995,

For credic card loans, the portfolio’s yield is equal o the
Company's current pricing and, therefore, the fair value is
equal o book vilue.

The following table presents a summary of the Company's financial instruments, as defined by FAS 107:

Ll il

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cashy il dhive: from banks
Feckeril fipmcds solid zetnl sectihes porchaged undes resile agreements
Investment securitied ot fnir viloe
Tapne
Commercial
Renl estate |4 Bmily fime mortiape
Ohvbier real estate mormgig:
Renl estate constroction
Consumer
Lesese francimmg
Foreign

Less: Allowance for loan loaes
Weer defernod foes vn loan comminmens snsd smdly leters of credin

Wt loans
Dhee fromn customers on scceprances
. - Bl “l‘-'"\'

Uit financiol ssets

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Depamies

Fosderal funads prerchinned and securities sold pnder repunchase agreemens
Clommmereia] paper sl sther shiit-term bomowings

Acceprinees ourstniding

Sentor ddeby (1)

Subenlined delu

Gunisigneed prefesred heneheilil interests in Company's sibwnlinated debennnes

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (1)

Ineerent ste oor contmets purchased in o eeeivabli position
Initerest mate floor contracts written in a payable position
Interes rone cap prrchased in o bl pusition
Enteses me cap coneracts weitten in i poyuble position
bnecrest pte swap conteacts i o receivabile position

Interest st wwap contracts i a payable posithon

Forelgm exchanse contracts i o galn position

Fosreign exchinge comtmcts in o loss position

$11,736
187
13,505

19,515
10425
11,860
2,303
20,114
3.00%
169

67,389
LOIB
T0
65,205
197
937
67

S81.821
2,029
40

197
2,053
2940
1150

s ®m

“
12
[l

15
(14

1990
Fatimared
Ve valise

S11,736
187
13,505

19,550
10,343
11,772
2319
19,149
3,022
162

66,317

66,317
197
1,301
637

$81,943
2,029
401
197
v
2,600
1,151

oy

"
]

) Thoe waseryteng wmmvanny and faby valoe exchiode sfdbigions snder capieal kooses of 367 miflion sl $32 mallion e December 31, 1990 il 1995, nsjeaively
23 Thoe carryiing smsciars dnchide szl foes pakd ot recehond, difioered gt or bonses sl st o lowees o derivatiie franital imsmmemn moeing
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For other consumer loans, the fair value is calculated
by discounting the contractual cash flows, adjusted for pre-
payment estimates, based on the current mres offered by
the Company for loans with similar characteristics. Most
of the discount rmtes applied o this portfolio are between
8.0% and 10.5% at December 31, 1996 and 7.3% and
16.5% nt December 31, 1993,

For auto lease financing, the fair value is calculated by
discounting the contractual cash flows at the Company's
current pricing for items of similar remaining term, with-
out including any tax benefits. The discount rare applied
to this portfolio was 8.22% ar December 31, 1996 and
8.35% at December 31, 1995,

Commitments, standby letters of eradit and commercial
and similar lerters of eredit not included in the previous mhle
have contractual values of $55,236 million, $2,981 million
and $406 million, respectively, at December 31, 1996, and
$24,245 million, $921 million and $209 million, respectively,
ar December 31, 1995, These instruments generate ongoing
fees ar the Company's cureent pricing levels, Of the com-
mitments at December 31, 1996, 63% mature within one
year and 92% are commitments to extend credic ara
Noaring rate.

MOMMARKETABLE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

The Company’s nonmarketable equity investments,
including securities, are carried at cost and have a hook
vitlue of $937 million and $428 million and an estimared
Fair value of $1,361 million and $694 million ot Decem-
ber 31, 1996 and 1993, respectively. There are restrictions
on the sale andfor liquidation of the Company's interest,
which is generally in the form of limited partnesships; and
the Company has no direer control over the investment
decisions of the limited partnerships. To estimare fair value,
asignificant portion of the underlying limited partnerships'
investments are valued hased on market quores.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

FAS 107 states thar the fair value of deposits with no stared
matiirity, such ns noninterest-bearing demand deposits,
interest-bearing checking and market rare and other savings,
is equal to the smount payable on demand at the measure-
ment date. Although the FASE's requirement for these
categories is not consistent with the market practice of
using pruvni'ling interest mtes to value these amounts, the
amount included for these deposits in the previous rable is
their carrying value at December 31, 1996 and 1995. The
fair vailue of other time deposits is caleulated based on
the discounted value of contmetusl cash flows, The discount

rate is estimared using the mtes curcently offered for like
deposits with similar remaining maroriries,

SHORT-TERM FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

This catepory includes federal funids purchased and securities
sold under repurchise agreements, commercial paper nnd
ather short-term borrowings. The earrying amount ls a
reasonable estimate of far value because of the relatively
short period of tme berween the origination of the instu-
ment and its expected realization.

SENIOR AND SUBORDINATED DEBT

The fair valug of the Company's underwritten senior and
subordinated debr is estimared based on the quored market
prices of the instruments. The fair value of the medium-
rerm note programs, which are parr of senior dichr, is
calculated based on the discounted value of contracrual
cash flows. The discount rate is estimated using the

rates currently offered for new nores with similar remain-
ing maturities,

GUARANTEED PREFERRED BENEFICIAL
INTERESTS IN COMPANY'S SUBORDINATED
DEBENTURES

The fair value of the Company's trust prefermed
securities is estimated based on the quored market
prices of the instroments,

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Derivative financial instruments are fuir valued based

on the estimated amounts that the Company would
receive or pay to terminate the contracts at the reporting
date {i.e., mark-to-marker value). Dealer quotes are avail-
able for substantially all of the Company's derivative
financial instruments.

LIMITATIONS

These fair value disclosures are made solely to comply with
the requirements of FAS 107, The calculations represent

2 s best estimates; however, due to the lack of
broad markets and the significant items excluded from this
disclosure, the calculations do not represent the underdy-
ing value of the Company, The information presented is
based on fair value caloulations and market quotes s of
December 31, 1996 and 1995, These amounts have not been
updated since year end; therefore, the valuations may have
changed significantly since that poing in time.

e e e
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Weells Fargo & Company:

Wi have audited the panying consolidared balance sheer of Wells Fargo & Company and Subsidiaries as of Decem-

ber 31, 1996 and 1995, and the relared consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' eiquity, and cash flows
for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 1996, These consoliduted financinl statements are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidared financial
statements based on our pudits.

We conducred our audits in accordance with genemlly nceepred auditing standards, Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit t obtain rensonnble assarance about whether the fnancial stmements are free of material misstatement.
Ancaudit includes examining, on o rest basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial sttements.
Anauditalso includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by minagement, as well s eval-
uating the ovenll financial statement presentation. We helieve that our audits provide o reasanable hasis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present faviely, in all marerial respeces, the finangial
position of Wells Fargo & Company and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 1996 and 1995, and the resulis of their operations
and their cash flows for euch of the years in the threesyenr period ended December 31, 1996, in conformity with generally
aceepied accounting principles.

Yot Rz Mawich T

KPMG Pear Marwick LLP
Clertified Public Accountants

San Francisco, Californin
January 21, 1997
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